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WHO WE ARE - OUR PROPERTIES

" ESG AT A GLANCE

Independent Auditor’s Report

On Review of Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF

Brookprop Management Services Private Limited
(the “Manager”)

(Acting in capacity as the Manager of Brookfield India Real
Estate Trust)

INTRODUCTION

1. We have reviewed the accompanying unaudited
Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements
of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust (the "REIT"),
("the Condensed Standalone Interim Financial
Statements”) which comprise of the following:

. the unaudited Condensed Standalone Balance
Sheet as at 30 September 2024;

» the unaudited Condensed Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income) for the quarter and half
year ended 30 September 2024;

» the unaudited Condensed Standalone
Statement of Cash flow for the quarter and half
year ended 30 September 2024;

» the unaudited Condensed Standalone
Statement of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity for
the half year ended 30 September 2024,

. the unaudited Statement of Net Assets at Fair
Value as at 30 September 2024;

» theunaudited Statement of Total Returns at
Fair Value for the half year ended 30 September
2024;

» the unaudited Statement of Net Distributable
Cash Flow for the quarter and half year ended

30 September 2024; and

= summary of the material accounting policies and
select explanatory notes
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These Condensed Standalone Interim Financial
Statements are being submitted by the REIT pursuant
to the requirements of Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations,
2014 as amended from time to time read with Master
Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43
dated 15 May 2024 (the "REIT Regulations”).

2. The Condensed Standalone Interim Financial
Statements, which is the responsibility of the
Manager and approved by the Board of Directors of
the Manager, have been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the REIT Regulations; Regulation
52 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended; Indian Accounting
Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” (“Ind AS
34"), prescribed under Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with
the REIT Regulations. Our responsibility is to express
a conclusion on the Condensed Standalone Interim
Financial Statements based on our review.

SCOPE OF REVIEW

3. We conducted our review of the Condensed
Standalone Interim Financial Statements in
accordance with the Standard on Review
Engagements (SRE) 2410 ‘Review of Interim Financial
Information Performed by the Independent Auditor
of the Entity’, issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). A review of interim
financial information consists of making inquiries,
primarily of the Manager's personnel responsible
for financial and accounting matters, and applying
analytical and other review procedures. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted
in accordance with Standards on Auditing issued
by ICAl and consequently does not enable us to
obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in an audit.
Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.
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CONCLUSION

4. Based on our review conducted as stated in
paragraph 3 above, nothing has come to our
attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying Condensed Standalone Interim
Financial Statements, have not been prepared in
accordance with the REIT Regulations; Regulation
52 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended; Ind AS 34, prescribed
under Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended)
and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the
REIT Regulations or that it contains any material
misstatement.

HALF YEARLY REPORT 2023-24

"~ STATUTORY DISCLOSURE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

5.  We draw attention to Note 9(a) of the Condensed
Standalone Interim Financial Statements, which
describe the presentation of “Unit Capital” as "Equity”
to comply with REIT Regulations. Our conclusion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Reg. No. 015125N)

Anand Subramanian

Partner

Place: Bengaluru (Membership No. 110815)
Date: 06 November 2024 (UDIN: 24110815BKFIFU8521)
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Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

CONDENSED STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET

Particulars Note As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)

ASSETS

Non-Current assets

Financial assets

Investments 3 108,528.15 95,373.16
Loans 4 21,655.40 19,053.69
Non-current tax assets (net) 5 1.83 1.17
Total non-current assets 130,185.38 114,428.02

Current assets

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 467.66 2,392.89

Other financial assets 1,523.35 44393

6

Other bank balances 6(a) 315.00 -
7
8

Other current assets 13.50 20.58
Total current assets 2,319.51 2,857.40
TOTAL ASSETS 132,504.89 117,285.42
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Unit Capital 9 119,253.88 109,101.43
Other equity 10 1,301.43 714.41
Total equity 120,553.31 109,815.84
LIABILITIES

Non current liabilities

Financial liabilities

Borrowings 11 5,022.87 -
Deferred tax liabilities 12 271.47 25.60
Total non-current liabilities 5,294.34 25.60

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities

- OUR INVESTOR RELATIONS N STATUTORY DISCLOSURE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
(Al amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

CONDENSED STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

Particulars Note EIIRGENETLS LRGN For the quarter For the half For the half For the half For the
ended quarter ended year ended year ended year ended BRI

30 September [l L) 30 September EENTQdT [T MV ETdd WAy ZY 30 September IRV ET{d)]
2024 30 June 2024 2023 2024 (Unaudited) 2023 2024
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) 00T 1))

Income and gains

Borrowings 13 6,453.73 7,284.87

Trade payables 14
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1.72 0.28
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 64.05 50.97
enterprises

Other financial liabilities 15 122.27 102.81
Other current liabilities 16 13.47 5.05
Total current liabilities 6,655.24 7,443.98
Total liabilities 11,949.58 7,469.58
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 132,504.89 117,285.42
Material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these Condensed Standalone Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Brookprop Management Services Private Limited

Firm Registration No.: 015125N (as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT)

Anand Subramanian Ankur Gupta Alok Aggarwal

Partner Director CEO and Managing Director

Membership No: 110815 DIN No. 08687570 DIN No. 00009964

Place: Bengaluru Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024 Date: 06 November 2024 Date: 06 November 2024
Amit Jain

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai
Date: 06 November 2024
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Dividend 71.93 210.23 - 282.16 z - 5
Interest 17 1,076.82 1,063.82 972.34 2,140.64 2,169.67 1,719.70  3,889.37
Other income 18 1,055.40 = - 1,055.40 49.13 - 0.59
Total income 2,204.15 1,274.05 972.34 3,478.20 2,218.80 1,719.70  3,889.96
Expenses and losses

Valuation expenses 12.00 3.37 7.71 15.37 10.05 10.21 20.26
Audit fees* 4.92 4.04 4.28 8.96 12.86 7.96 20.82
Investment management fees 27.49 24.76 22.74 52.25 48.78 42.14 90.92
Trustee fees 0.74 0.74 0.75 1.48 1.47 1.48 2.95
Legal and professional expense 16.63 415 15.85 20.78 18.58 21.37 39.95
Finance costs 19 206.61 168.69 65.54 375.30 279.25 65.54 344.79
Other expenses 20 13.41 6.47 427.70 19.88 16.89 432.80 401.15
Total expenses 281.80 212.22 544.57 494.02 387.88 581.50 920.84
Profit before tax 1,922.35 1,061.83 427.77 2,984.18 1,830.92 1,138.20  2,969.12
Tax expense: 21

Current tax

-for current period 13.49 16.61 42.55 30.10 22.07 50.22 72.29
Deferred tax charge/ (credit) 245.87 - (98.42) 245.87 11.31 (98.42) (87.11)
Tax expense for the period/ year 259.36 16.61 (55.87) 275.97 33.38 (48.20) (14.82)
Profit for the period/ year 1,662.99 1,045.22 483.64 2,708.21 1,797.54 1,186.40 2,983.94
after tax

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be

reclassified to profit or loss

- Remeasurement of defined - - - - - - -
benefit obligations

- Income tax related to items - - - - - - -
that will not be reclassified to

profit or loss

Other comprehensive - - - - - - -
income for the period/

year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income 1,662.99 1,045.22 483.64 2,708.21 1,797.54 1,186.40 2,983.94
for the period/ year

Earnings per unit 26

Basic 3.46 2.36 1.21 5.86 4.09 3.23 7.40
Diluted 3.46 2.36 1.21 5.86 4.09 3.23 7.40
Material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these Condensed Standalone Financial Statements.
* Refer note 20(a)
As per our report of even date attached

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Brookprop Management Services Private Limited

Firm Registration No.: 015125N (as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT)

Anand Subramanian Ankur Gupta Alok Aggarwal

Partner Director CEO and Managing Director

Membership No: 110815 DIN No. 08687570 DIN No. 00009964

Place: Bengaluru Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024 Date: 06 November 2024 Date: 06 November 2024
Amit Jain

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai
Date: 06 November 2024
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Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

CONDENSED STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Particulars For the For the For the For the
(UELCIENGELEGIETCI ALY quarter ended

For the For the For the

half year ended LELR'CEI half year ended year ended

30 September 30 June 2024 EENRYIEI IS 30 September [HCELE 30 September EEXBVETCGPLYZ
2024  (Unaudited) 2024 31 March 2024 2023
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) Unaudited

Cash flows from operating activities :

Profit before tax 1,922.35 1,061.83 427.77 2,984.18 1,830.92 1,138.20 2,969.12
Adjustments for :

Dividend income (71.93) (210.23) - (282.16) - - -
Interest income on loan to subsidiaries (646.31) (623.10) (687.23) (1,269.41) (1,300.23) (1,397.35) (2,697.58)
Interest income on debentures (140.35) (139.23) (64.38) (279.58) (278.90) (83.67) (362.57)
Interest income on non-convertible debentures (258.58) (262.64) (121.20) (521.22) (538.89) (121.20) (660.09)
Interest income on deposits with banks (31.58) (38.85) (99.53) (70.43) (51.65) (117.48) (169.13)
Finance costs 206.61 168.69 65.54 37530 279.25 65.54 344.79
Loss/(Gain) on investment in Compulsory Convertible (1,055.40) - 42248 (1,055.40) (48.54) 422.48 37394
Debentures at fair value through profit or loss

Operating cash flows before working capital changes (75.19) (43.53) (56.55) (118.72) (108.04) (93.48) (201.52)
Movements in working capital:

(Increase)/ Decrease in other current and non current assets 3.18 (3.62) 155.41 (0.44) 1.27 141.79 143.06
Increase/ (Decrease) in current financial liabilities - trade payables 23.05 (8.53) (14.18) 14.52 7.64 2.02 9.66
(Decrease)/ Increase in current and non current financial (0.00) 0.00 (25.96) (0.00) 0.00 (24.57) (24.57)
liabilities - others

Increase/ (Decrease) in other current and non current liabilities 2.89 (2.86) (0.07) 0.03 1.49 (4.53) (3.04)
Cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (46.07) (58.54) 58.65 (104.61) (97.64) 21.23 (76.41)
Income taxes (paid)/ refunds received (net) (20.42) (10.34) (53.40) (30.76) (17.07) (56.39) (73.46)
Net cash generated (used) in operating activities (A) (66.49) (68.88) 5.25 (135.37) (114.71) (35.16) (149.87)
Cash flows from investing activities :

Loan to subsidiaries (2,422.52) (1,250.00) (510.00) (3,672.52) (784.12) (1,110.00) (1,894.12)
Loan repaid by subsidiaries 270.00 800.81 1,227.00 1,070.81 2,467.92 2,692.00 5159.92
Investment in equity shares of subsidiary/Joint venture, (28.51) (1.39) (12,846.36) (29.90) (136.15) (12,847.90)  (12,984.05)
including directly attributable expenses

Investment in debentures issued by subsidiaries - - (6,970.18) - 41.73 (6,970.18) (6,928.45)
Investment in non convertible debentures issued by subsidiaries - - (8,870.00) - - (8,870.00) (8,870.00)
Repayment of Investment in non-convertible debentures issued - 223.00 132.00 223.00 308.00 132.00 440.00
by subsidiaries

Deposits with banks made (315.00) - - (315.00) - - -
Interest received on deposits with banks 31.19 37.94 95.69 69.13 52.26 113.92 166.18
Interest received on investment in debentures - 139.23 64.38 139.23 278.90 83.67 362.57
Interest received on investment in non-convertible debentures - 262.64 121.20 262.64 538.89 121.20 660.09
Interest received on loan to subsidiaries - 590.23 826.97 590.23 1,195.93 1,607.91 2,803.84

Dividend received 7193 210.23 - 282.16 - - -
Net cash generated from/(used) in investing activities (B) (2,392.91) 1,012.69  (26,729.30) (1,380.22) 3,963.36 (25,047.38)  (21,084.02)
Cash flows from financing activities :

Proceeds from issue of Unit capital - - 23,053.59 - 23,053.59 23,053.59
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 5,053.61 - - 5,053.67 - -
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 1,500.00 - - 1,500.00 - - -
Proceeds from issue of commercial papers 7,771.97 1,870.83 6,948.95 9,642.80 - 6,948.95 6,948.95
Repayment of commercial paper (12,300.00) - - (12,300.00) - - -
Expense incurred towards institutional placement (0.36) (13.16) (152.06) (13.52) (560.57) (152.06) (712.63)
Expense incurred towards preferential allotment (0.71) (1.37) (0.55) (2.08) (0.86) (0.55) (1.41)
Finance cost paid (43.45) (0.13) (4.21) (43.58) (8.12) (4.21) (12.33)
Distribution to unitholders (2,167.34) (2,079.53) (1,641.57) (4,246.87) (4,015.23) (3316.95) (7,332.18)
Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activities (C) (186.28) (223.36) 28,204.15 (409.64) (4,584.78) 26,528.77 21,943.99
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (2,645.68) 720.45 1,480.10 (1,925.23) (736.13) 1,446.23 710.10
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period/ year 3,113.34 2,392.89 1,648.92 2,392.89 3,129.02 1,682.79 1,682.79
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period/ year 467.66 3,113.34 3,129.02 467.66 2,392.89 3,129.02 2,392.89
(refer note 6)
Components of cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the period/ year
Balances with banks

in current account 8.66 17.34 34.02 8.66 14.89 34.02 14.89
- indeposit account 459.00 3,096.00 3,095.00 459.00 2.378.00 3,095.00 2,378.00

467.66 3.113.34 3,129.02 467.66 2,392.89 3,129.02 2,392.89

1. The statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance with “Indirect Method” as set out in Indian Accounting Standard -7 : “Statement on Cash Flows".

2. The Trust has issued Units in exchange for investments in Rostrum and Kairos during the quarter ended 30 June 2024 and year ended 31 March 2024 respectively. The same
has not been reflected in Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash Flows since these were non-cash transactions.
Material accounting policies (refer note 2)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these Condensed Standalone Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 015125N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT)

Anand Subramanian Ankur Gupta Alok Aggarwal

Partner Director CEO and Managing Director
Membership No: 110815 DIN No. 08687570 DIN No. 00009964

Place: Bengaluru Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024 Date: 06 November 2024 Date: 06 November 2024

Amit Jain

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024
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Condensed Standalone Financial Statements

(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

CONDENSED STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN UNITHOLDER’'S EQUITY
(a) Unit Capital

Unit in Nos. Amount
Balance as on 01 April 2023 335,087,073 86,556.65
Changes in unit capital during the current period:
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2023# - (891.33)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2023# - (861.30)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2023# - (939.64)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 December 2023# - (1,088.93)
Add: Units issued during the year (refer note 9) 103,998,149 27,053.59
Less: Issue expenses (refer note 9) - (727.61)
Balance at the end of the previous reporting year 31 March 2024 439,085,222 109,101.43
Balance as on 01 April 2024 439,085,222 109,101.43
Changes in unit capital during the current period:
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 20244 - (1,102.10)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2024# (1,022.43)
Add: Units issued during the period (refer note 9) 40,930,000 12,279.00
Less: Issue expenses (refer note 9) - (2.02)
Balance at the end of the current reporting period 30 September 2024 480,015,222 119,253.88
Unit Capital
Balance as on 01 April 2023 335,087,073 86,556.65
Changes in unit capital during the previous period:
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2023# (891.33)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2023# (861.30)
Add: Units issued during the period (refer note 9) 103,998,149 27,053.59
Less: Issue expenses (refer note 9) (778.32)
Balance at the end of the previous reporting period 30 September 2023 439,085,222 111,079.29

(b) Other equity

Particulars

Retained earnings

Balance as on 01 April 2023 1,283.93
Add: Profit for the year ended 31 March 2024 2,983.94
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2024 -
Add: Total Comprehensive Income for the current year 2,983.94
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2023# (784.10)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2023# (780.29)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2023# (992.34)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 December 2023# (996.73)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 714.41
Balance as on 01 April 2024 714.41
Add: Profit for the half year ended 30 September 2024 2,708.21
Add: Other comprehensive income for the half year ended 30 September 2024 -
Add: Total Comprehensive Income for the current period 2,708.21
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2024# (983.55)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2024# (1,137.64)
Balance as at 30 September 2024 1,301.43
Other equity

Balance as on 01 April 2023 1,283.93
Add: Profit for the half year ended 30 September 2024 1,186.40
Add: Other comprehensive income for the half year ended 30 September 2024 -
Add: Total Comprehensive Income for the previous period 1,186.40
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2023# (784.10)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2023# (780.29)
Balance as at 30 September 2023 905.94

# The distributions made by Trust to its Unitholders are based on the Net Distributable Cash flows (NDCF) of Brookfield India REIT under the REIT Regulations.

Material accounting policies (refer note 2)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these Condensed Standalone Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 015125N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT)

Anand Subramanian Ankur Gupta Alok Aggarwal
Partner Director
Membership No: 110815 DIN No. 08687570 DIN No. 00009964
Place: Bengaluru Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024 Date: 06 November 2024

Amit Jain

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024
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CEO and Managing Director

Date: 06 November 2024
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Condensed Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

A. Condensed Standalone Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value
Sr.  Particulars As at 30 September 2024 As at 31 March 2024
No. (Unaudited) (Audited)
Book Value Fair value Book Value Fair value
A Assets 1,32,504.89 176,897.06 117,285.42 153,510.37
B Liabilities (11,949.58) (11,949.58) (7,469.58) (7,469.58)
C Net Assets (A-B) 1,20,555.31 164,947.48 109,815.84 146,040.79
D No. of units 480,015,222 480,015,222 439,085,222 439,085,222
E NAV per unit (C/D) 251.15 343.63 250.10 332.60
1. Measurement of fair values
The fair value of investments in SPVs is primarily determined basis the fair value of the underlying investment
property (including investment property under development) and book value of other assets and liabilities of the
respective SPV's as at 30 September 2024 and 31 March 2024. The fair value of investment properties (including
investment property under development) has been determined by independent external registered property valuer,
having appropriately recognized professional qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of
the properties being valued.
Valuation technique
The fair value measurement of the investment properties (including investment property under development) has
been categorized as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation technique used.
The valuers have followed a discounted cash flow method. The discounted cash flow method considers the present
value of net cash flows to be generated from the respective properties, taking into account the expected rental
growth rate, vacancy period, occupancy rate, average sq. ft. rent and lease incentive costs. The expected net cash
flows are discounted using the risk adjusted discount rates. Among other factors, the discount rate estimation
considers the quality of a building and its location (prime vs secondary), tenant credit quality, lease terms and
investors expected return.
2. Break up of Net asset value
Particulars As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
Fair value of investments in SPVs 176,094.26 151,092.22
Add: Other assets 802.80 2,418.15
Less: Liabilities (11,949.58) (7,469.58)
Net Assets 164,947.48 146,040.79
3. The Trust holds investment in SPVs which in turn hold the properties. Hence, the breakup of property wise fair

values has been disclosed in the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

Material accounting policies (refer note 2)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these Condensed Standalone Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Condensed Standalone Financial Statements

(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

B. Condensed Standalone Statement of Total Return at Fair Value

S. Particulars For the half year For the half year For the half year For the year ended
No ended ended ended 31 March 2024
30 September 2024 31 March 2024 30 September 2023 (Audited)
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
A Total comprehensive Income 2,708.21 1,797.54 1,186.40 2,983.94
B Add: Changes in fair value 7,442.08 5,711.83 4,575.89 10,287.72
not recognized in the Total
comprehensive income
A+B Total Return 10,150.29 7,509.37 5,762.29 13,271.66

The changes in fair value for the respective periods presented has been computed based on the changes in fair
value of the underlying assets of SPVs (including changes in fair value of equity method investment), which is not

recognized in Total Comprehensive Income.

Material accounting policies (refer note 2)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these Condensed Standalone Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 015125N

Anand Subramanian
Partner

Membership No: 110815
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 06 November 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT)

Ankur Gupta

Director

DIN No. 08687570

Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024

Amit Jain

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024

Alok Aggarwal

CEO and Managing Director
DIN No. 00009964

Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024

As per our report of even date attached
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 015125N

Anand Subramanian
Partner

Membership No: 110815
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 06 November 2024
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT)

Ankur Gupta

Director

DIN No. 08687570
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(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

NET DISTRIBUTABLE CASH FLOWS (NDCF) PURSUANT TO SEBI MASTER CIRCULAR NO. SEBI/HO/DDHS-
POD-2/P/CIR/2024/43

Computation of Net Distributable Cash Flow at Trust level:
Particulars For the quarter For the quarter For the half year

ended ended ended

30 September 2024 LDy 28 30 September 2024

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Cashflows from operating activities of the Trust (66.49) (68.88) (135.37)

(+) Cash flows received from SPV's / Investment entities which represent 2,525.01 2,298.07 4,823.08
distributions of NDCF computed as per relevant framework (refer note 2)

(+) Treasury income / income from investing activities of the Trust (interest 31.19 37.94 69.13

income received from FD, any investment entities as defined in Regulation
18(5), tax refund, any other income in the nature of interest, profit on sale
of Mutual funds, investments, assets etc., dividend income etc., excluding
any Ind AS adjustments. Further clarified that these amounts will be
considered on a cash receipt basis)

(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure / real estate investments,
infrastructure / real estate assets or shares of SPVs/Holdcos or Investment
Entity adjusted for the following

o Applicable capital gains and other taxes - - -
o Related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds - - -
o Directly attributable transaction costs - - -

e Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation - - -
18(16)(d) of REIT Regulations or any other relevant provisions of the
REIT Regulations

(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure / real estate investments, - - -
infrastructure / real estate assets or sale of shares of SPVs/ Hold cos or

Investment Entity not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest

as per Regulation 18(16)(d) of REIT Regulations or any other relevant

provisions of the REIT Regulations, if such proceeds are not intended to be

invested subsequently.

(-) Finance cost on Borrowings, excluding amortisation of any transaction (204.88) (164.52) (369.40)
costs as per Profit and Loss account of the Trust

(-) Debt repayment at Trust level (to include principal repayments as per - - =
scheduled EMI's except if refinanced through new debt including overdraft

facilities and to exclude any debt repayments / debt refinanced through

new debt in any form or funds raised through issuance of units)

(-) any reserve required to be created under the terms of, or pursuant to - - -
the obligations arising in accordance with, any: (i). loan agreement entered

with financial institution, or (ii). terms and conditions, covenants or any

other stipulations applicable to debt securities issued by the Trust or any

of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or (iii). terms and conditions, covenants or any other

stipulations applicable to external commercial borrowings availed by the

Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, (iv). agreement pursuant to which the

Trust operates or owns the real estate asset, or generates revenue or

cashflows from such asset (such as, concession agreement, transmission

services agreement, power purchase agreement, lease agreement, and

any other agreement of a like nature, by whatever name called); or (v).

statutory, judicial, regulatory, or governmental stipulations; or

(-) any capital expenditure on existing assets owned / leased by the REIT, = - =
to the extent not funded by debt / equity or from contractual reserves

created in the earlier years

NDCF at Trust Level 2,284.83 2,102.61 4,387.44
Surplus cash available (excluding surplus cash from debt raised) - 64.99 64.99
NDCF including surplus cash at Trust Level 2,284.83 2,167.60 4,452.43
Notes:

1. The Board of Directors of the Manager to the Trust, in their meeting held on 06 November 2024, have declared distribution to Unitholders
of ¥ 4.60 per unit which aggregates to ¥ 2,208.07 million for the quarter ended 30 September 2024. The distributions of ¥ 4.60 per unit
comprises % 1.66 per unit in the form of interest payment on shareholder loan, CCD's and NCD's, % 2.38 per unit in the form of repayment of
SPV debt and NCD, ¥ 0.571 per unit in the form of dividend and the balance % 0.05 per unit in the form of interest on fixed deposit.
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Along with distribution of ¥ 2,160.07 million/ Rs. 4.50 per unit for the quarter ended 30 June 2024, the cumulative distribution for the half

year ended 30 September 2024 aggregates to % 4,368.14 million/ ¥ 9.10 per unit.

Pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024, Trust has considered distribution of

% 2,255.01 million received subsequent to period ended 30 September 2024 but before the adoption of the standalone financial

statement by the Board of Director of the Manager to Trust in the calculation of Net Distributable Cash Flow.

In order to promote standardisation of framework for computing NDCF, a revised framework was defined by SEBI vide master circular no.

SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024 (“Revised NDCF Framework”) (erstwhile SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-
PoD/P/CIR/2023/185 dated December 6, 2023 on revised NDCF framework). As per the framework, the Manager is required to declare
and distribute at least 90% of the NDCF of Brookfield India REIT as distributions (“REIT Distributions”).This framework is applicable with
effect from 1 April 2024. Accordingly, Brookfield India REIT has computed the NDCF for the quarter and half year ended 30 September
2024 as per the revised framework. Comparatives have not been provided in this framework for all the previous periods presented.

Material accounting policies (refer note 2)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these Condensed Standalone Financial Statements.
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Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to guidance under Paragraph 4.6 to SEBI master circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-
PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116

Sr. Particulars For the quarter IIEGIMEIREIN For the half year For the year
No. ended ended ended ended
30 September 31 March 2024 30 September 31 March 2024
2023 (Unaudited) 2023 (Audited)

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

1 Cash flows received from Asset SPVs, CIOP/Operating
Service Provider and any investment entity in the form of:

o Interest (net of applicable taxes, if any) 1,012.55 2,013.72 1,812.78 3,826.50
e Dividends (net of applicable taxes, if any) - - - -
e Repayment of Shareholder Debt (or debentures and 1,359.00 2,775.92 2,824.00 5,599.92

other similar instruments)

e Proceeds from buy-backs/ capital reduction/ - - - -
redemptions (net of applicable taxes)

2 Add: Proceeds from sale, (transfer or liquidation or 30,002.54 - 30,002.54 30,002.54

redemption or otherwise realization) of investments
(including cash equivalents), assets or shares of/
interest in Asset SPVs, or any form of fund raise at
Brookfield REIT level, adjusted for the following:

o Applicable capital gains and other taxes - = - -

e Related debts settled or due to be settled from sale - - - -

proceeds
e Directly attributable transaction costs (788.48) - (788.48) (788.48)
e Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as (20,344.06) - (20,344.06) (20,344.06)
per REIT Regulations
e |nvestment in shares or debentures or shareholder (8,870.00) - (8,870.00) (8,870.00)

debt of Asset SPVs and/ or CIOP/ Operating Service
Provider or other similar investments

e Lending to Assets SPVs and/ or CIOP/ Operating - - - -
Service Provider

3 Add: Proceeds from sale (transfer or liquidation or - - - -
redemption or otherwise realization) of investments,
assets or shares of / interest in Asset SPVs not distributed
pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest as per REIT
Regulations, if such proceeds are not intended to be
invested subsequently.
4 Add: Any other income received at the Brookfield REIT 95.69 52.85 113.93 166.78
level and not captured herein, or refund/ waiver/ cessation
of any expenses/ liability.
5 Less: Any other expense (whether in the nature of (56.51) (116.16) (93.45) (209.61)
revenue or capital expenditure) or any liability or other
payouts required at the Brookfield REIT level, and not
captured herein.

6 Less: Any payment of fees, including but not limited to:

e Trustee fees - - (2.95) (2.95)
e REIT Management Fees (39.13) (47.39) (39.13) (86.52)
o Valuer fees (1.27) (16.22) (2.62) (18.84)
e Legal and professional fees (9.78) (16.38) (24.58) (40.96)

e Trademark license fees - - - _
e Secondment fees - - - i

7 Add: Cash flow received from Asset SPV and investment
entity, if any including to the extent not covered above:

e repayment of the debt in case of investments by way of debt - - - -
e proceeds from buy-backs/ capital reduction - - - -

8 Add/ (Less): Debt drawdown/ (payment) of interest and repayment - - - -
on external debt (including any loans, bonds, debentures or
other form of debt funding) at the Brookfield REIT level.

9 Less: Income tax and other taxes (if applicable) at the (53.40) (17.07) (56.39) (73.46)
Standalone Brookfield REIT level (net of any tax refunds).
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Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to guidance under Paragraph 4.6 to SEBI master circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-
PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116
Sr.  Particulars For the quarter [XJRGTENREIN For the half year For the year
No. ended ended ended ended
30 September 31 March 2024 30 September 31 March 2024
2023 (Unaudited) 2023 (Audited)
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
10  Add/(Less): Cash inflows and outflows in relation to any real - - - -
estate properties held directly by the Brookfield REIT, to the
extent not covered above (if any).

11 Add/(Less): Other adjustments, including but not limited to (380.11) (495.21) (960.45) (1,455.66)
net changes in security deposits, working capital, etc.
NDCF 1,927.03 4,134.06 3,571.14 7,705.20

a)  Thedifference between SPV level NDCF and REIT level NDCF is primarily on account of utilization of opening cash at the SPV level for the
quarter and half year ended 30 September 2023.

b)  The difference between REIT level NDCF and distributions to unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2024 and 30 September 2023 is
on account of utilization of surplus NDCF post distribution to unitholders till 30 September 2023 and 30 June 2023 respectively.

Material accounting policies (refer note 2)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these Condensed Standalone Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Brookprop Management Services Private Limited
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

1. TRUST INFORMATION
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited (the ‘Settlor’) has set up the Brookfield India Real Estate Trust
(Brookfield India REIT/Trust) on 17 July 2020 as an irrevocable trust, pursuant to the Trust Deed, under the
provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 and the Trust has been registered with SEBI as a Real Estate Investment
Trust on 14 September 2020 under Regulation 6 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate
Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014. The Trustee to Brookfield India Real Estate Trust is Axis Trustee Services
Limited (the ‘Trustee’) and the Manager for Brookfield India Real Estate Trust is Brookprop Management Services
Private Limited (the ‘Manager’).

The objectives of Brookfield India REIT is to undertake activities in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI
REIT Regulations and the Trust Deed. The principal activity of Brookfield India REIT is to own and invest in rent or
income generating real estate and related assets in India with the objective of producing stable and sustainable
distributions to Unitholders.

Brookfield India REIT acquired the following Special Purpose Vehicles ('SPVs') by acquiring all the equity interest held
by the Sponsor and certain members of Sponsor Group (refer note 28) on 08 February 2021. In exchange for these
equity interests, the above shareholders were allotted 164,619,801 Units valued at ¥ 275/- each.

Brookfield India REIT went public as per its plan for Initial Public Offer of Units after obtaining the required approvals
from the relevant authorities. The Units were allotted to the successful applicants on 08 February 2021 and
11 February 2021.

All these Units were subsequently listed on the National Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) on
16 February 2021.

The brief activities and shareholding pattern of the SPVs are provided below:

Name of SPV Activities Shareholding up to 07 February Shareholding from 08 February 2021
2021 (in percentage) (in percentage)
Shantiniketan Developing and leasing of BSREP India Office Holdings Pte.  Brookfield India REIT : 100% Candor

Properties Private commercial real estate property in  Ltd.: 100% BSREP Moon C1 L.P.:  India Office Parks Private Limited
Limited ('SPPL Noida') India, primarily in IT/ITeS sector in ~ 0.00% (10 Shares) :0.00% (1 share) (as nominee of

Sector 62, Noida, Uttar Pradesh. Brookfield India REIT)
Candor Kolkata One  Developing and leasing of BSREP India Office Holdings V Brookfield India REIT : 100% Candor
Hi-Tech Structures commercial real estate property Pte. Ltd.: 99.97% India Office Parks Private Limited
Private Limited in India, primarily in IT/ITeS Special BSREP India Office Holdings Pte. :0.00% (1 share) (as nominee of
('Candor Kolkata') Economic Zone (SEZ) in New Town, Ltd.: 0.03% Brookfield India REIT)

Rajarhat, Kolkata and Sector 21,
Dundahera Gurugram.

Candor India Office  Providing management related BSREP Moon C1 L.P.: 99.99% Brookfield India REIT : 100% Candor
Parks Private Limited service including facilities BSREP Moon C2 L.P.: 0.01% Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures
('CIOPY) management service and property Private Limited : 0.00% (1 share) (as

management services. nominee of Brookfield India REIT)
Festus Properties Developing and leasing of commercial ~ Kairos Property Managers Pvt. Brookfield India REIT : 100% Candor
Private Limited real estate property in India, primarily ~ Ltd.:10.76% BSREP Il India Office  India Office Parks Private Limited
('Festus') in [T/ITeS Special Economic Zone (SEZ) Holdings Il Pte. Ltd.:89.24% :0.00% (1 share) (as nominee of

in Powai, Mumbai. Brookfield India REIT)

During the year ended 31 March 2022, Brookfield India REIT acquired the following Special Purpose Vehicle ('SPV')
by acquiring all the equity interest held by certain members of Sponsor Group (refer note 28) on 24 January 2022. In
exchange for these equity interests, the above shareholders have been paid cash of ¥ 8,334.57 million and allotted
15,463,616 Units of Brookfield India REIT valued at ¥ 294.25 each. These Units were subsequently listed on the
National Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) on 01 February 2022.

Name of SPV Activities Shareholding up to 23 January Shareholding from 24 January 2022
2022 (in percentage) (in percentage)

Seaview Developers  Developing and leasing of commercial BSREP India Office Holding IV Brookfield India REIT : 100%

Private Limited real estate property in India, primarily ~ Pte. Ltd.: 99.96% Candor India Office Parks Private

('SDPL Noida') in IT/ITeS Special Economic Zone (SEZ) BSREP India Office Holdings Pte. Limited : 0.00% (1 share) (as
in Sector 135, Noida, Uttar Pradesh. Ltd.: 0.04% nominee of Brookfield India REIT)
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During the year ended 31 March 2024:

Brookfield India REIT acquired controlling stake in Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited (“Candor
Gurgaon 1"/"G1") and Kairos Properties Private Limited (Formerly known as Kairos Property Managers Private Limited)
("Kairos"/"Downtown Powai”) by acquiring 50% equity interest from certain members of Sponsor Group (refer note 28)
on 18 August 2023 and 28 August 2023 respectively. The purchase consideration for acquiring 50% stake in Candor
Gurgaon 1 was discharged by paying cash of ¥ 4,533.04 million. The purchase consideration for acquiring 50% stake in
Kairos was discharged by allotting 12,696,800 number of Units at ¥ 315.04 per Unit, aggregating to ¥ 4,000 million, and
cash consideration of ¥ 8,277.70 million thereby resulting in a total consideration of ¥ 12,277.70 million. These Units
were subsequently listed on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and BSE Limited (BSE) on

37 August 2023.

Name of SPV Activities Shareholding up to 17 August 2023 (in  Shareholding from 18 August 2023
percentage) (in percentage)

Candor Gurgaon One Developing and leasing of BSREP India Office Holdings Il Pte. Brookfield India REIT : 50%

Realty Projects Private commercial real estate property Ltd.: 99.94% Reco Cerium Private Limited : 50%

Limited ("Candor Gurgaon in India, primarily in IT/ITeS BSREP India Office Holdings

1""G1") Special Economic Zone (SEZ) in  Pte. Ltd.: 0.06%

Sector 48, Gurugram, Haryana.

Name of SPV Activities Shareholding up to 27 August 2023 (in  Shareholding from 28 August 2023
percentage) (in percentage)

Kairos Properties Private Developing and leasing of Project Diamond Holdings (DIFC) Brookfield India REIT : 50%

Limited (Formerly known commercial real estate property Limited: 99.99% Reco Europium Private

as Kairos Property in India, primarily in Powai, Project Cotton Holdings One (DIFC)  Limited : 50%

Managers Private Limited) Mumbai, Maharashtra. Limited: 0.001%

("Kairos"/"Downtown Powai")

During the period ended 30 September 2024:

Brookfield India REIT has acquired equity interest in a joint venture by acquiring 50% of share capital (on a fully diluted
basis) of Rostrum Realty Private Limited (“Rostrum”) which owns, operates and manages, 3.3 Msf of portfolio, directly and
through its subsidiaries (i) Oak Infrastructure Developers Limited (“Oak”); (ii) Aspen Buildtech Limited (“Aspen”); and (iii)
Arnon Builders & Developers Limited("Arnon”) at an acquisition price of ¥ 60,000 million, from the existing shareholders
of Rostrum i.e. (i) Bharti (SBM) Holdings Private Limited, (ii) Bharti (RM) Holdings Private Limited, (iii) Bharti (RBM)
Holdings Private Limited, (iv) Bharti (Satya) Trustees Private Limited on behalf of Bharti (Satya) Family Trust and (v) Bharti
Enterprises Limited, (vi) Bharti (SBM) Holdings Private Limited jointly with Sunil Bharti Mittal, (vii) Bharti (RM) Holdings
Private Limited jointly with Rakesh Bharti Mittal, and (viii) Bharti (RBM) Holdings Private Limited jointly with Rajan Bharti
Mittal (collectively referred to as “Bharti Sellers”) on 21 June 2024. The purchase consideration for acquiring 50% share
capital of Rostrum was discharged by way of allotment of 4,09,30,000 units of Brookfield India REIT to the Bharti Sellers
at a price of ¥ 300 per unit on a preferential basis, aggregating to ¥ 12,279 million. These Units were subsequently listed
on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and BSE Limited (BSE) on 25 June 2024.

Name of Joint Venture  Activities Shareholding up to 21 June 2024 (in percentage) Shareholding from 22 June 2024
(in percentage)
Rostrum Realty Private  Leasing, licensing, i) Bharti (SBM) Holdings Private Limited 12.51% Brookfield India REIT : 50%

( (

Limited (“Rostrum”) operating and (i) Bharti (RM) Holdings Private Limited 7.82% Metallica Holdings (DIFC)
(ii (
(

i
maintaining the project i) Bharti (RBM) Holdings Private Limited 7.82%  Limited : 50%
buildings by the Rostrum  (iv)  Bharti (Satya) Trustees Private Limited on
itself and through its behalf of Bharti (Satya) Family Trust 3.13%
subsidiaries in India. (v)  Bharti Enterprises Limited 18.72%
(vi)  Bharti (SBM) Holdings Private Limited jointly
with Sunil Bharti Mittal 0.00%
(vii)  Bharti (RM) Holdings Private Limited jointly
with Rakesh Bharti Mittal 0.00%
(viiiy Bharti (RBM) Holdings Private Limited jointly
with Rajan Bharti Mittal 0.00%
(ix) Metallica Holdings (DIFC) Limited 50%
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

2.

21

222

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of Condensed
Standalone financial statements

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
(Condensed Standalone Financial Statements) of
Brookfield India REIT comprises:

L] the Condensed Standalone Balance Sheet,

L] the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss (including other comprehensive
income),

L] the Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash
Flows,

] the Condensed Standalone Statement of
Changes in Unitholders’ Equity,

=  asummary of material accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Additionally, it includes the Statement of Net Assets
at Fair Value, the Statement of Total Returns at Fair
Value, the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow
of Brookfield India REIT and other additional financial
disclosures as required under the SEBI (Real Estate
Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014. The Condensed
Standalone Financial Statements were authorized
forissue in accordance with resolutions passed by
the Board of Directors of the Manager on behalf of
the Brookfield India REIT on 06 November 2024. The
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements have
been prepared in accordance with the requirements
of SEBI (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations,
2014, as amended from time to time including any
guidelines and circulars issued there under read with
SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/
CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024 (“REIT Regulations”);
Regulation 52 of the Securities and Exchange

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”,
as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 ('Ind AS') to the
extent not inconsistent with the REIT Regulations
(refer note 9(a) on presentation of “Unit Capital” as
“Equity” instead of compound instruments under Ind
AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation), read
with relevant rules issued thereunder and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India.

2.2
a)

b)

)

Accordingly, these Condensed Standalone Financial
Statements do not include all the information
required for a complete set of financial statements.
These Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
should be read in conjunction with the standalone
financial statements and related notes included in
the Trust's audited standalone financial statements
under Ind AS as at and for the year ended 31 March
2024. Accounting policies have been consistently
applied except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an
existing accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use.

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements are
presented in Indian Rupees in Millions, except when
otherwise indicated.

Material accounting policies

Functional and presentation currency

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements are
presented in Indian rupees, which is Brookfield India
REIT's functional currency and the currency of the
primary economic environment in which Brookfield
India REIT operates. All financial information
presented in Indian rupees has been rounded off to
nearest million except unit and per unit data.

Basis of measurement

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
have been prepared on historical cost basis except
for certain financial instruments measured at

fair value at the end of each reporting period as
explained in the accounting policies below.

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Use of judgments and estimates

The preparation of Condensed Standalone Financial
Statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles in India (Ind AS), to the extent
not inconsistent with the REIT regulations, requires
management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimates
are revised and in any future periods affected.
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d)

Information about significant areas of estimation
uncertainty and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the Condensed
Standalone Financial Statements is included in the
following notes:

(i)  Presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” in
accordance with the REIT Regulations instead of
compound instrument (Note 9)

(i) Impairment of investments and loans in
subsidiaries

(iii) Fair valuation and disclosures

SEBI Circulars issued under the REIT Regulations
require disclosures relating to net assets at fair value
and total returns at fair value. (Refer Statement of net
assets at fair value and Statement of total returns at
fair value for details).

Current versus non-current classification
Brookfield India REIT presents assets and liabilities in
the Condensed Standalone Balance Sheet based on
current/ non-current classification:

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any
of the following criteria:

= jtis expected to be realized in, or is intended for
sale or consumption in, the normal operating
cycle.

= jtis held primarily for the purpose of being
traded,

= jtis expected to be realized within 12 months
after the reporting date; or

= jtis cash or cash equivalent unless itis
restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting date.

Brookfield India REIT classifies all other assets as
non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any
of the following criteria:

= jtis expected to be settled in normal operating
cycle of Brookfield India REIT;

= jtis held primarily for the purpose of being
traded,
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e)

= it is due to be settled within 12 months after the
reporting date; or

= the Brookfield India REIT does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by
the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

Brookfield India REIT classifies all other liabilities as
non-current.

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of
non-current financial assets/ liabilities respectively.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as
non-current assets and liabilities.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, Brookfield India REIT takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability
and how market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date.

Inputs to fair value measurement techniques are
disaggregated into three hierarchical levels, which
are directly based on the degree to which inputs to
fair value measurement techniques are observable
by market participants:

= Level 1: Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date.

= Level 2: Inputs (other than quoted prices
included in Level 1) are either directly or
indirectly observable for the asset or liability
through correlation with market data at the
measurement date and for the duration of the
asset’s or liability's anticipated life.

= Level 3: Inputs are unobservable and reflect
management’s best estimate of what market
participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date. Consideration
is given to the risk inherent in the valuation
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technique and the risk inherent in the inputs in
determining the estimate.

Fair value measurement framework is adopted
by Brookfield India REIT to determine the fair
value of various assets and liabilities measured
or disclosed at fair value.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Brookfield India REIT assesses, at each reporting
date, whether there is an indication that a non-
financial asset other than deferred tax assets

may be impaired. If any indication exists, or

when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, Brookfield India REIT estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. Goodwill is tested annually for
impairment.

An impairment loss is recognized in the Condensed
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss if the
carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating
unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment loss recognized in respect of a CGU is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce
the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU
on a pro rata basis. A CGU is the smallest identifiable
asset group that generates cash flows that are largely
independent from other assets and groups.

Impairment losses are recognized in the Condensed
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, unless it
reverses previous revaluation credited to equity, in
which case it is charged to equity.

Goodwill (if any) arising from a business combination
is allocated to CGUs or group of CGUs that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's or CGU's fair value less costs of disposal

and its value in use. In estimating value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent
market transactions are taken into account. For the
purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot
be tested individually are grouped together into the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows

g)

h)

from continuing use that are largely independent of
the cash inflows of other assets or CGU.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are
assessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been

a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss in respect
of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect
of other assets, such a reversal is made only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, if no impairment
loss had been recognized.

Investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures
The Trust has elected to recognize its investments in
subsidiaries and joint ventures at cost in accordance
with the option available in Ind AS 27, ‘Separate
Financial Statements!

The details of such investment are given in note 3.

Assets representing investments in subsidiaries
and joint ventures are reviewed for impairment,
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that carrying amount may not be
recoverable, such circumstances include, though
are not limited to, significant or sustained decline in
revenues or earnings and material adverse changes
in the economic environment.

Foreign currency transactions

Items included in the financial statements of the
Brookfield India REIT are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which

the Brookfield India REIT operates (‘the functional
currency’). The financial statements are presented in
Indian rupee (INR), which is the Brookfield India REIT
functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions in currencies other
than the functional currency are translated into

the functional currency using the exchange rates

at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains or losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at reporting period end exchange rates
are generally recognized in the Statement of profit
and loss.
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Errors, estimates and change in accounting
policy

The Brookfield India REIT revises its accounting
policies if the change is required due to a change in
Ind AS or if the change will provide more relevant and
reliable information to the users of the Condensed
Standalone Financial Statements. Changes in
accounting policies are applied retrospectively,
wherever applicable.

A change in an accounting estimate that results

in changes in the carrying amounts of recognised
assets or liabilities or to profit or loss is applied
prospectively in the period(s) of change. Discovery of
errors results in revisions retrospectively by restating
the comparative amounts of assets, liabilities and
equity of the earliest prior period in which the error
is discovered. The opening balances of the earliest
period presented are also restated.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives
rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(i) Financial Assets - Recognition
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair
value (except for trade receivables which are
initially measured at transaction price) plus, in
the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

Classification and subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement,
financial assets are classified in four categories:

. Debt instruments at amortized cost
A'‘debt instrument’ is measured at the
amortized cost if both the following conditions
are met:

a) The assetis held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows, and

b)  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on
the principal amount outstanding.

HALF YEARLY REPORT 2023-24

After initial measurement, such financial assets
are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortization is included in interest
income in the statement of profit and loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognized in
the statement of profit and loss.

Debt instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
A‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVOCI if
both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is
achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets,
and

b) The asset's contractual cash flows
represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVOC]
category are measured initially as well as at
each reporting date at fair value. Fair value
movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCl). However, interest
income, impairment losses and reversals and
foreign exchange gain or loss is recognized in
statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of
the asset, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognized in OCl is reclassified from the
equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest
earned whilst holding FVOCI debt instrument

is reported as interest income using the EIR
method.

Debt instruments at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt
instruments. Any debt instrument, which does
not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVOC|, is classified as at
FVTPL.

In addition, the Brookfield India REIT may elect
to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise
meets amortized cost or FVOCI criteria, as at
FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement
or recognition inconsistency (referred to as

225



18-49

_ 50-117

_ 118179

184-206
1

207-339
|

WHO WE ARE

- OUR PROPERTIES

" ESG AT A GLANCE

Condensed Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

226

(i)

‘accounting mismatch’). The Brookfield India REIT
has not designated any debt instrument as at
FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL
category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in Statement of profit or
loss.

Equity instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income
(Fvocl)

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109
are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading are classified as at
FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the
Brookfield India REIT may make an irrevocable
election to present in other comprehensive
income subsequent changes in the fair value.
The Brookfield India REIT makes such election
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable.

If the Brookfield India REIT decides to classify an
equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,
are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling
of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit
and loss, even on sale of investment. However,
the Brookfield India REIT may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL
category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in Statement of profit and
loss.

Financial Assets - Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part
of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized (i.e., removed
from the Brookfield India REIT balance sheet)
when:

= Therights to receive cash flows from the
asset have expired, or

= The Brookfield India REIT has transferred its
rights to receive cash flows from the asset
or has assumed an obligation to pay the

received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Brookfield
India REIT has transferred substantially

all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b) the Brookfield India REIT has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

(iv)

Brookfield India REIT recognizes loss allowance
using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for
the financial assets which are not fair valued
through profit or loss. Loss allowance for

trade receivables with no significant financing
component and lease receivables is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all financial
assets with contractual cash flows other than
trade receivable and lease receivables, ECLs are
measured at an amount equal to the 12-month
ECL, unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk from initial recognition in which
case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The
amount of ECLs (or reversal) that is required to
adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date,
is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Trade Receivables are generally written off
against the allowance only after all means
of collection have been exhausted and the
potential for recovery is considered remote.

Financial liabilities - Recognition and
Subsequent measurement

Brookfield India REIT financial liabilities

are initially measured at fair value less any
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial measurement, these are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate
(‘EIR") method or at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL).

Brookfield India REIT financial liabilities include
trade and other payables, Loans and borrowings

including bank overdrafts.

The measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification, as described below:

BROOKEFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE TRUST

- OUR INVESTOR RELATIONS

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through
Statement of profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through Statement of profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category
also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Brookfield India REIT that
are not designated as hedging instruments

in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS
109. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognized in Statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through Statement

of profit or loss are designated as such at

the initial date of recognition, and only if the
criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
attributable to changes in own credit risk are
recognized in OCl. These gains or losses are not
subsequently transferred to statement of profit
and loss. However, the Brookfield India REIT
may transfer the cumulative gains or losses
within equity. All other changes in fair value of
such liability are recognized in Statement of
profit and loss. The Brookfield India REIT has
not designated any financial liability as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Financial liabilities that are not held for trading,
or designated as at FVTPL, are measured
subsequently at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortized cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs
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and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or (where

appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortized
cost of a financial liability.

Financial liabilities - Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification

is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference between the carrying amount of
a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognized in the Statement of profit and loss as
other gains/(losses).

Income/loss recognition

Interest income

Interest income from debt instruments is
recognized using the effective interest rate
method. The effective interest rate is the

rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the gross carrying amount of

a financial asset. While calculating the effective
interest rate, the Brookfield India REIT estimates
the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) but does not consider the expected
credit losses.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Brookfield India

REIT assesses whether a contract is, or contains,

a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Brookfield India REIT assesses whether:

the contract involves the use of an identified
asset - this may be specified explicitly or
implicitly, and should be physically distinct or
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represent substantially all of the capacity of a
physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a
substantive substitution right, then the asset is
not identified;

= the Brookfield India REIT has the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from
use of the asset throughout the period of use;
and

=  the Brookfield India REIT has the right to direct
the use of the asset. The Brookfield India REIT
has this right when it has the decision making
rights that are most relevant to changing
how and for what purpose the asset is used.
In rare cases where the decision about how
and for what purpose the asset is used is
predetermined, the Brookfield India REIT has the
right to direct the use of the asset if either:

o the Brookfield India REIT has the right to
operate the asset; or

o the Brookfield India REIT designed the asset
in a way that predetermines how and for
what purpose it will be used.

As a lessee

The Brookfield India REIT recognizes a right-

of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The right of use asset is initially
measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, plus any
initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated
using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of
the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of
the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-
of-use assets are determined on the same basis as
those of property, plant and equipment. In addition,
the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the

interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Brookfield India REIT
incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Brookfield
India REIT uses its incremental borrowing rate as the
discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following:

= fixed payments, including in-substance fixed
payments;

= variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

= amounts expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee; and

= the exercise price under a purchase option that
the Brookfield India REIT is reasonably certain to
exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal
period if the Brookfield India REIT is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option, and
penalties for early termination of a lease unless
the Brookfield India REIT is reasonably certain
not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is
a change in the Brookfield India REIT's estimate of
the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or if the Brookfield India REIT
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Brookfield India REIT presents right-of-use
assets that do not meet the definition of investment
property in ‘property, plant and equipment’ and lease
liabilities (current and non-current) in the statement
of financial position.

The Brookfield India REIT has elected not to
recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
short-term leases of machinery that have a lease
term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
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assets. The Brookfield India REIT recognizes the
lease payments associated with these leases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

As a Lessor

The Brookfield India REIT enters into lease
agreements as a lessor with respect to its investment
properties.

Leases for which the Brookfield India REIT is

a lessor are classified as finance or operating
leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance
lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

When the Brookfield India REIT is an intermediate
lessor, it accounts for the head lease and the sub-
lease as two separate contracts. The sub-lease is
classified as a finance or operating lease by reference
to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognized
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating

and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
are recognized as receivables at the amount of the
Brookfield India REIT's net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Brookfield India REIT's net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease
components, the Brookfield India REIT applies Ind AS
115 to allocate the consideration under the contract
to each component.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. This inter alia
involves discounting of the consideration due to the
present value if payment extends beyond normal
credit terms.

Revenue is recognised when recovery of the
consideration is probable and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably.
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m)

Recognition of dividend income, interest income
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on
the date on which the Brookfield India REIT's right to
receive payment is established.

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. The ‘effective interest rate’ is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset. In calculating interest income,

the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not
credit impaired). However, for financial assets that
have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial
recognition, interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-
impaired, then the calculation of interest income
reverts to the gross basis.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred
tax. Itis recognized in Statement of profit and

loss except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive
income, in which case it is recognized in equity or in
other comprehensive income.

(i) Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable
or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable
or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax reflects the best estimate
of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received after considering the uncertainty, if any,
related to income taxes. It is measured using
tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise
the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

(ii) Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of
temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding
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amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is also recognised in respect of carried
forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax
is not recognised for:

=  Temporary differences arising on the
initial recognition of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the
time of the transaction;

= Temporary differences related to
investments in subsidiaries, associates,
and joint arrangements to the extent that
the Brookfield India REIT is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will
not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

= Taxable temporary differences arising on
initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised

to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which
they can be used. The existence of unused tax
losses is strong evidence that future taxable
profit may not be available. Therefore, in case
of a history of recent losses, Brookfield India
REIT recognises a deferred tax asset only to the
extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary
differences or there is convincing other evidence
that sufficient taxable profit will be available
against which such deferred tax asset can be
realised. Deferred tax assets—unrecognised or
recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date
and are recognised/reduced to the extent that it
is probable/no longer probable respectively that
the related tax benefit will be realised. Further,
no deferred tax asset/liabilities are recognized
in respect of temporary differences that reverse
within tax holiday period.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when

the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects

the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Brookfield India REIT
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expects, at the reporting date, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset

if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities, and they
relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity, or on
different tax entities, but they intend to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised
simultaneously.

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized when the Brookfield

India REIT has a present obligation as a result of

past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, in respect of which
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Brookfield India REIT or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is

not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability
also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a
liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot
be measured reliably. The Brookfield India REIT does
not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized
when the expected benefits to be derived by

the Company from a contract are lower than the
unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations
under the contract.

Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker.

Identification of segments:

In accordance with Ind AS 108- Operating Segment,
the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of information
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reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker
('CODM’) to allocate resources to the segments and
assess their performance. An operating segment

is a component of the Brookfield India REIT that
engages in business activities from which it earns
revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues
and expenses that relate to transactions with any of
the Brookfield India REIT's other components.

Based on an analysis of Brookfield India REIT's

structure and powers conferred to the Manager to
Brookfield India REIT, the Governing Board of the

Manager (Brookprop Management Services Private
Limited) has been identified as the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (‘(CODM'), since they are empowered s)
for all major decisions w.r.t. the management,
administration, investment, disinvestment, etc.

As the Brookfield India REIT is primarily engaged

in the business of developing and maintaining

commercial real estate properties in India, CODM

reviews the entire business as a single operating

segment and accordingly disclosure requirements

of Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments” in respect of
reportable segments are not applicable. t)

Subsequent events

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements

are prepared after reflecting adjusting and non-
adjusting events that occur after the reporting period
but before the Condensed Standalone Financial
Statements are authorized for issue.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank

and on hand and short-term money market deposits u)
with original maturities of three months or less that

are readily convertible to known amounts of cash

and which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.

Earnings per unit

Basic earnings per unit is calculated by dividing the
net profit / (loss) for the period attributable to unit
holders of the Brookfield India REIT by the weighted
average number of units outstanding during the
period.
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For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per
unit, the profit or loss for the period attributable
to unit holders of the Brookfield India REIT and the
weighted average number of units outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential units.

Dilutive potential units are deemed converted as

of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they
have been issued at a later date. In computing
diluted earnings per unit, only potential units that are
dilutive and which either reduces earnings per unit or
increase loss per units are included.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount presented in the Condensed
Standalone Balance Sheet when, and only when,
the Brookfield India REIT currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and

it intends either to settle them on a net basis

or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method,
whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and

any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Brookfield
India REIT are segregated. For the purpose of the
Statement of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and short-term deposits.

Cash distribution to Unitholders

The Brookfield India REIT recognizes a liability to
make cash distributions to Unitholders when the
distribution is authorized, and a legal obligation

has been created. As per the REIT Regulations, a
distribution is authorized when it is approved by the
Board of Directors of the Manager. A corresponding
amount is recognized directly in equity.
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NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - INVESTMENTS

Trade, unquoted, Investments in Subsidiaries (at cost) (refer note 1)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
(Al amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

4. NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS

As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
97,527 (31 March 2024: 97,527) Equity shares of Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech 24,761.39 24,761.39
Structures Private Limited of 10 each, fully paid up
143,865,097 (31 March 2024: 143,865,097) Equity shares of Shantiniketan Properties 11,407.83 11,407.83
Private Limited of % 8 each, fully paid up (31 March 2024 %10 each, fully paid up)
464,641,122 (31 March 2024: 464,641,122) Equity shares of Festus Properties Private 8,655.46 8,655.46
Limited of ¥ 1 each, fully paid up (31 March 2024 %10 each, fully paid up)
10,000 (31 March 2024: 10,000) Equity shares of Candor India Office Parks Private 220.20 220.20
Limited of 10 each, fully paid up
17,381 (31 March 2024: 17,381) Equity shares of Seaview Developers Private Limited of 12,482.97 12,482.97
%10 each, fully paid up
5,032 (31 March 2024: 5,032) Equity shares of Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects 3,746.66 3,746.66
Private Limited of 10 each, fully paid up
4,879,500 (31 March 2024: 4,879,500) Equity shares of Kairos Properties Private 12,031.80 12,031.80
Limited of 10 each, fully paid up
Trade, unquoted, Investments in Joint venture (at cost) (refer note 1)
3,28,48,620 (31 March 2024: Nil) Equity shares of Rostrum Realty Private Limited of 210 12,322.59 -
each, fully paid up
85,628.90 73,306.31
Investments in 15% compulsorily convertible debentures at FVTPL 11,202.80 10,287.95
(Debentures)*
Investments in 14% compulsorily convertible debentures at FVTPL 3,489.45 3,348.90
(Debentures)**
Investments in 12.5% Non convertible debentures (Non convertible 8,207.00 8,430.00
debentures)***
108,528.15 95,373.16
*Investments in 15% compulsorily convertible debentures issued by
- Seaview Developers Private Limited 6,167.90 5,682.10
- Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited 5,034.90 4,605.85
11,202.80 10,287.95
**|ssued by Kairos Properties Private Limited (Formerly known as Kairos Property
Managers Private Limited)
***|nvestments in 12.5% Non convertible debentures issued by
- Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited 5,164.00 5,310.00
- Kairos Properties Private Limited (Formerly known as Kairos Property Managers Private Limited) 3,266.00 3,560.00
8,430.00 8,870.00
Less: Repayment during the period by Kairos (96.00) (294.00)
Less: Repayment during the period by G (127.00) (146.00)
8,207.00 8,430.00
Note:
Details of % shareholding in the subsidiaries and Joint venture held by Trust is as under:
Name of Subsidiary As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
- Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited 100% 100%
- Festus Properties Private Limited 100% 100%
- Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited 100% 100%
- Candor India Office Parks Private Limited 100% 100%
- Seaview Developers Private Limited 100% 100%
- Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited 50% 50%
- Kairos Properties Private Limited (Formerly known as Kairos Property Managers Private Limited) 50% 50%
- Rostrum Realty Private Limited (Joint Venture entity) 50% -

BROOKEFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE TRUST

As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)

(Unsecured and considered good)
Loan to Subsidiaries - refer note 28 21,655.40 19,053.69
21,655.40 19,053.69

Terms for Loan to Subsidiaries
Security: Unsecured

Rate of interest: For loan amounting to ¥ 19,600.38 million (X 19,053.69 million as at 31 March 2024) the rate of
interest is 12.50% per annum (compounded quarterly). Additionally, a loan amounting to ¥ 2,055.02 million (Nil as
at 31 March 2024) was given to entity Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited ('N1') during the current period at an

interest rate of 8.37% per annum (compounded quarterly).

Repayment:

(@) Bullet repayment on the date falling at the end of 15 (fifteen) years from the first disbursement date.

(b) Early repayment option (wholly or partially) is available to the borrower (SPVs).

(0 The interest on these loan to subsidiaries is receivable on the last date of every financial quarter.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the interest with respect to the loans under the facility, shall accrue
and become due and receivable only on availability of free cash flow on the interest payment date. In the
event on any Interest payment date, the free cash flows are lower than the calculated interest (including any
shortfall of past interest periods), the shortfall between the free cash flows and the calculated interest shall
be accumulated and become due and receivable from and to the extent of free cash flows available on the

subsequent interest payment dates.

NON-CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Advance income tax 1.83 1.17
1.83 1.17
CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Balance with banks :*
- in current account 8.66 14.89
- in deposit account 459.00 2,378.00
467.66 2,392.89
* For related parties balance, refer note 28
6(a). CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHER BANK BALANCES
As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Deposits with banks* 315.00 -
315.00 -
* For related parties balance, refer note 28
HALF YEARLY REPORT 2023-24 233
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CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHER

As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(Unsecured and considered good)
To related parties (refer note 28)
Interest accrued but not due on deposits with banks 4.81 3.51
Interest accrued but not due on Investment in Debentures 398.93 -
Interest accrued but not due on Loan to Subsidiaries 1,119.61 440.42
1,523.35 443.93
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(Unsecured and considered good)
Prepaid expenses 10.06 16.76
Advances to vendors 3.44 3.82
13.50 20.58
UNIT CAPITAL
Particulars No. of Units Amount
As at 01 April 2023 335,087,073 86,556.65
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2023 - (891.33)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2023 - (861.30)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2023 - (939.64)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 December 2023 - (1,088.93)
Add: Units issued during the period (refer note c) 103,998,149 27,053.59
Less: Issue expenses (refer note a (iii)) - (727.61)
Closing balance as at 31 March 2024 439,085,222 109,101.43
As at 01 April 2024 439,085,222 109,101.43
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2024# - (1,1702.10)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2024# - (1,022.43)
Add: Units issued during the period (refer note ¢) 40,930,000 12,279.00
Less: Issue expenses (refer note a (iii)) - (2.02)
Closing balance as at 30 September 2024 480,015,222 119,253.88

(a) Terms/ rights attached to Units and accounting thereof

(i)  The Trust has only one class of Units. Each Unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in the Trust. Each

holder of Unit is entitled to one vote per unit. The Unitholders have the right to receive at least 90% of the Net

Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust at least once in every six months in each financial year in accordance with
the REIT Regulations. The Board of Directors of the Manager approves distributions. The distribution will be in

proportion to the number of Units held by the Unitholders. The Trust declares and pays distributions in Indian
Rupees.

Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, Brookfield India REIT is required to distribute to Unitholders not
less than 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of Brookfield India REIT for each financial year. Accordingly,
a portion of the Unit Capital contains a contractual obligation of the Brookfield India REIT to pay to its
Unitholders cash distributions. Hence, the Unit Capital is a compound financial instrument which contain both
equity and liability components in accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation. However,
in accordance with SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024 issued

BROOKEFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE TRUST

- OUR INVESTOR RELATIONS

N STATUTORY DISCLOSURE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Condensed Standalone Financial Statements

(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

(i)

(iii)

(b)

(c)
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under the REIT Regulations, the Unit Capital has been presented as “Equity” in order to comply with the
requirements of Section H of Chapter 3 to the SEBI Master Circular dealing with the minimum presentation and
disclosure requirements for key financial statements. Consistent with Unit Capital being classified as equity,
the distributions to Unitholders is also presented in Statement of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity when the
distributions are approved by the Board of Directors of Investment Manager.

Brookfield India REIT acquired controlling stake in Candor Gurgaon 1 and Kairos by acquiring 50% equity
interest from certain members of the Sponsor Group. The purchase consideration for acquiring 50% stake
in Candor Gurgaon 1 was discharged by paying cash of ¥ 4,533.04 million. The purchase consideration for
acquiring 50% stake in Kairos was discharged by paying cash of  8,277.71 million and by allotting 12,696,800
number of Units at ¥ 315.04 per Unit, as per the table below.

On 21 June 2024, the Trust has alloted 40,930,000 Units at 300 per Unit to Bharti Sellers (refer note 1) on
prefrential allotment basis towards consideration for acquisition of 50% share capital of Rostrum.

Name of SPV Number of Units allotted for consideration other than cash

Sponsor Sponsor Group  Other than Sponsor Total
and Sponsor Group

As at 31 March 2024

Candor Kolkata 54,117,888 16,364 - 54,134,252
Festus - 31,474,412 - 31,474,412
SPPL Noida - 41,483,012 - 41,483,012
ClOP - 800,727 - 800,727
SDPL Noida - 15,463,616 - 15,463,616
Kairos - 12,696,800 - 12,696,800
During the period ended 30 June 2024:

Rostrum - Joint venture (refer note 1: Trust - - 40,930,000 40,930,000
Information)

Total number of Units issued 54,117,888 101,934,931 40,930,000 196,982,819

Expenses incurred pertaining to new issuance of units (Institutional placement and Preferential allotment) have
been reduced from the Unitholders capital in accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation

Unitholders holding more than 5 percent Units in the Trust

Name of Unitholders As at 30 September 2024 As at 31 March 2024

No. of Units % of holdings No. of Units % of holdings
BSREP India Office Holdings V Pte. Ltd. 54,117,888 11.27% 54,117,888 12.33%
BSREP India Office Holdings Pte Ltd. 41,499,453 8.65% 41,499,453 9.45%
BSREP India Office Holdings Ill Pte. Ltd. 36,727,398 7.65% 36,727,398 8.36%
BSREP I India Office Holdings Il Pte. Ltd. 31,474,412 6.56% 31,474,412 7.17%

The Trust has not allotted any fully paid-up units by way of bonus units nor has it bought back any class of units
from the date of registration till the balance sheet date. The Trust had issued an aggregate of 180,083,417 Units
for consideration other than cash from the date of incorporation till 31 March 2023.

On 02 August 2023, 91,301,349 units have been issued at ¥252.50 per unit via institutional placement to
arrange the funds for acquisition of 50% stake in Candor Gurgaon 1 and Kairos, these units got listed on NSE
and BSE on 3 August 2023. Further, on 28 August 2023, the Trust has alloted 12,696,800 Units at ¥315.04 per
Unit to Project Diamond Holdings (DIFC) Limited on prefrential allotment basis towards part consideration for
acquisition of 50% stake in Kairos, which got listed on NSE and BSE on 31 August 2023.

On 21 June 2024, the Trust has alloted 40,930,000 Units at 300 per Unit to Bharti Sellers (refer note 1) on
prefrential allotment basis towards consideration for acquisition of 50% share capital of Rostrum, these units
got listed on NSE and BSE on 25 June 2024.
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(d) Unitholding of sponsor group

As at 30 September 2024 As at 31 March 2024 % Change during the

(ERSATHT XS EMER  No. of Units % of holdings half year ended
30 September 2024

Name of Unitholders

BSREP India Office Holdings V Pte. Ltd. 54,117,888 11.27% 54,117,888 12.33% -1.05%
BSREP India Office Holdings Pte Ltd. 41,499,453 8.65% 41,499,453 9.45% -0.81%
BSREP India Office Holdings Ill Pte. Ltd. 36,727,398 7.65% 36,727,398 8.36% -0.71%
BSREP Il India Office Holdings Il Pte. Ltd. 31,474,412 6.56% 31,474,412 7.17% -0.61%
BSREP India Office Holdings IV Pte. Ltd. 15,463,616 3.22% 15,463,616 3.52% -0.30%
BSREP India Office Holdings VI Pte. Ltd. 800,650 0.17% 800,650 0.18% -0.02%
Project Diamond Holdings (DIFC) Limited 12,696,800 2.65% 12,696,800 2.89% -0.25%

OTHER EQUITY*

As at As at

30 September 2024 31 March 2024

(Unaudited) (Audited)

Reserves and Surplus 1,301.43 714.41
Retained earnings 1,301.43 714.41

* Refer Condensed Standalone Statement of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity for detailed movement in other equity balances.

Retained earnings

The cumulative gain or loss arising from the operations which is retained and is recognized and accumulated
under the heading of retained earnings. At the end of the period, the profit/(loss) after tax is transferred from the
Statement of Profit and Loss to the retained earnings account.

NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS*

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

*0n 29 April 2024, Brookfield India REIT has issued and allotted 4,000 commercial papers at a face value of ¥ 5,00,000 each
aggregating to % 2,000.00 million, at 7.90% p.a.. The discounted amount raised by Brookfield India REIT through these
commercial papers is % 1,870.83 million and the value payable on maturity is ¥2,000.00 million. Discount on Commercial papers
is amortized over the tenor of the underlying instrument. These commercial papers are listed on BSE on 30 April 2024 and
would mature on 14 March 2025.

*0n 16 August 2024, Brookfield India REIT has issued and allotted 9,600 commercial papers at a face value of ¥ 5,00,000 each at
7.60% p.a., aggregating to ¥ 4,800.00 million. The discounted amount raised by Brookfield India REIT through these commercial
papers is ¥ 4,762.32 million and the value payable on maturity is ¥ 4,800 million. Discount on Commercial papers is amortized
over the tenor of the underlying instrument. These commercial papers are listed on BSE on 19 August 2024. These commercial
papers became due for payment on 23 September 2024 and have been duly matured on the even date.

*0n 16 August 2024, Brookfield India REIT has issued and allotted 6,500 commercial papers at a face value of ¥ 5,00,000
each at 8.03% p.a., aggregating to % 3,250.00 million. The discounted amount raised by Brookfield India REIT through these
commercial papers is % 3,009.65 million and the value payable on maturity is ¥ 3,250.00 million. Discount on Commercial papers
is amortized over the tenor of the underlying instrument. These commercial papers are listed on BSE on 19 August 2024 and
would mature on 14 August 2025.

# Refer note 15 for accrued interest

14. CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - TRADE PAYABLES

As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(CLEDT L)) (Audited)
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1.72 0.28
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises* 64.05 50.97
65.77 51.25

*For balance payable to related parties, refer note 28

15. CURRENT - OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(CLEDT L)) (Audited)
Contingent consideration* 90.11 86.77
Other payables** 10.10 16.04
Interest Accrued But Not Due on Borrowings 22.06 -
122.27 102.81

* Fair value of part consideration, payable to the earlier shareholders of Candor Gurgaon 1 and Kairos, payable upon fulfilment of
certain conditions as per Share Purchase Agreements (For balance payable to related parties, refer note 28).

** For balance payable to related parties, refer note 28

16. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Secured
Term loan from financial institutions 5,022.87 -
5,022.87 -
# Refer note 15 for accrued interest
12. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Deferred tax liabilities 271.47 25.60
271.47 25.60
13. CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES- SHORT TERM BORROWINGS*
As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Secured
Flexi term loan 1,487.69 -
Unsecured
Commercial papers* 4,966.04 7,284.87
6,453.73 7,284.87

*0n 17 August 2023, Brookfield India REIT has issued and allotted 15,000 commercial papers at a face value of ¥ 5,00,000
each aggregating to ¥ 7,500.00 million, at 7.93% p.a.. The discounted amount raised by Brookfield India REIT through these
commercial papers was % 6,948.95 million and the value payable on maturity is ¥7,500.00 million. Discount on Commercial
papers is amortized over the tenor of the underlying instrument. These commercial papers are listed on BSE on 18 August 2023

and have matured on 16 August 2024.

236
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As at As at

30 September 2024 31 March 2024

(Unaudited) (Audited)

Statutory dues payable 13.47 5.05
13.47 5.05
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22. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
There are no contingent liabilities as at 30 September 2024 and 31 March 2024.

23. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
There are no capital commitments as at 30 September 2024 and 31 March 2024.

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT

240

i)

ii)

Financial instruments by category and fair value

The below table summarizes the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are (a) recognized and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortized cost and for
which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. The Brookfield India REIT has classified its financial
instruments, which are measured at fair value, into three levels in accordance with Ind AS.

Carrying value Fair value
As at As at As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024 30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
At Amortized Cost
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents # 467.66 2,392.89 467.66 2,392.89
Other bank balances # 315.00 - 315.00 -
Loans * 21,655.40 19,053.69 23,144.69 20,364.88
Other financial assets # 1,523.35 443,93 1,523.35 443.93
Non convertible debentures* 8,207.00 8,430.00 8,727.47 8,968.30
At FVTPL
Financial Assets
Compulsorily Convertible 14,692.25 13,636.85 14,696.25 13,636.85
Debentures”
Total financial assets 46,860.66 43,957.36 48,870.42 45,806.85
At Amortized Cost
Financial liabilities
Borrowings # 11,476.60 7,284.87 11,476.60 7,284.87
Trade payables # 65.77 51.25 65.77 51.25
Other financial liabilities # 122.27 102.81 122.27 102.81
Total financial liabilities 11,664.64 7,438.93 11,664.64 7,438.93

# Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities which are recognized at amortized cost has been disclosed to be same
as carrying value, as the carrying value approximately equals to their fair value.

* Fair value of loans and Non convertible debentures which are recognized at amortized cost, has been calculated at the
present value of the future cash flows discounted at the current borrowing rate.

A Fair value of Debentures (Compulsorily Convertible Debentures) is determined on the basis of Net assets value (NAV)
method. These CCDs are classified as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs. The
key input to the NAV is fair value of the investment properties.

Measurement of fair values
The different levels of fair value have been defined below:

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices for instance listed
equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded
bonds, over-the counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of
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observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is

included in level 3.

There have been no valuation under Level 1 and Level 2. There has been no transfers into or out of Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy for the period ended 30 September 2024 and year ended 31 March 2024.

Brookfield India REIT's policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at

the end of the reporting period.

iii) Details of significant unobservable inputs

Significant unobservable inputs

Inter-relationship between significant unobservable inputs and fair value

Financial assets measured at
fair value (15% CCDs)

Fair value of investment property
property increases (decreases)

The estimated fair value would increase (decrease) if fair value of investment

iv) Sensitivity analysis of Level 3 fair values

For the fair value of CCDs, reasonably possible changes at the reporting date due to one of the significant

unobservable inputs, holding other inputs constant, would have following effects:

Profit/ (Loss)
30 September 2024 Increase Decrease
Fair value of investment property (1% movement) 281.64 (281.64)
Profit/ (Loss)
31 March 2024 Increase Decrease
Fair value of investment property (1% movement) 239.71 (239.71)

v) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values

Fair value of CCDs Amount
Balance as at 01 April 2023 5,795.00
Investment in CCDs during the period 8,215.80
Net change in fair value-unrealized (refer note 18 and 20) (373.94)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 13,636.86
Balance as at 01 April 2024 13,636.86
Net change in fair value-unrealized (refer note 18) 1,055.40
Balance as at 30 September 2024 14,692.26

25. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Trust does not have any Operating segments as at 30 September 2024 and 31 March 2024. Hence disclosure
under “Ind AS 108", Operating segments has not been provided in the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements.

26. EARNINGS PER UNIT (EPU)

Basic EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period / year after income tax attributable to
unitholders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the period / year. Diluted EPU amounts
are calculated by dividing the profit for the period / year after income tax attributable to unitholders by the
weighted average number of units outstanding during period / year plus the weighted average number of units that
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27.

28.

would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential units into unit capital. The units of the Trust were allotted
on 08 February 2021, 11 February 2021, 24 January 2022, 02 August 2023, 28 August 2023 and 21 June 2024.

Particulars For the For the For the For the half  For the half For the half I EGERTE]S

CUETG TN BGIET T L quarter ended year ended year ended year ended ended

30 September 30 June 2024 EENNIOELIEE 30 September EaNEI( B 30 September 31 March

2024 (Unaudited) 2023 2024 2024 2023 2024

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)

Profit after tax for 1,662.99 1,045.22 483.64 2,708.21 1,797.54 1,186.40 2,983.94
calculating basic and

diluted EPU
Weighted average 480,015,222 443,583,024 399,323,727 461,898,665 439,085,222 367,380,910 403,233,066

number of Units (Nos.)

Earnings Per Unit

- Basic (Rupees/unit) 3.46 2.36 1.21 5.86 4.09 3.23 7.40
- Diluted (Rupees/unit)* 3.46 2.36 1.21 5.86 4.09 3.23 7.40

* The Trust does not have any outstanding dilutive units.

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT FEE

REIT Management Fees

Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 17 July 2020, Investment Manager is entitled to fees
@ 1% of NDCF, exclusive of applicable taxes (also refer note 29). The fees has been determined for undertaking
management of the Trust and its investments. The said Management fees for the quarter and half year ended
30 September 2024 amounts to % 27.49 million and ¥ 52.25 million respectively There are no changes during the
period in the methodology for computation of fees paid to the Investment Manager.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Related parties to Brookfield India REIT as at 30 September 2024

BSREP India Office Holdings V Pte. Ltd. - Sponsor

Brookprop Management Services Private Limited - Investment Manager or Manager
Axis Trustee Services Limited - Trustee

The Ultimate parent entity and sponsor groups, withwhom the group has related party transactions during
the period, consist of the below entities:

Ultimate parent entity
Brookfield Corporation (Formerly known as Brookfield Asset Management Inc.) - ultimate parent entity and
controlling party

Sponsor
BSREP India Office Holdings V Pte. Ltd. - Sponsor
Sponsor group

a) BSREP Il India Office Holdings Il Pte. Ltd. (BSREP Il India)

b) Kairos Properties Private Limited (Formerly known as Kairos Property Managers Private Limited) (Kairos)
(till 07 September 2022)

c) BSREP Moon C1 L.P (till 07 September 2022)

d) BSREP Moon C2 L.P (till 07 September 2022)

e) BSREP India Office Holdings Il Pte Ltd. (BSREP India Office Ill)
f)  BSREP India Office Holdings Pte. Ltd. (BSREP India Holdings)

BROOKEFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE TRUST

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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g) BSREP India Office Holdings IV Pte. Ltd. (BSREP India Office IV)

h)  BSREP India Office Holdings VI Pte. Ltd. (BSREP India Office VI)

Fellow subsidiaries
Brookfield Property Group LLC
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited

) Project Diamond Holdings (DIFC) Limited (Project Diamond)

Other related parties with whom the transactions have taken place during the quarter/ year:

Axis Bank Limited - Promotor of Trustee*
Axis Capital Limited- Fellow subsidiary of Trustee*

* Based on the internal assessment, the Trust has disclosed transactions from the year ended 31 March 2024, for all the periods

presented.

Directors & Key personnel of the Investment Manager (Brookprop Management Services Private Limited)

Directors

Key Personnels

Alok Aggarwal - Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director-
India office business (Chief Executive Officer to Chief Executive
Officer and Managing Director w.e.f 12 February 2024)

Amit Jain - Chief Financial Officer - India office business
(w.e.f. 09 May 2024)

Akila Krishnakumar (Independent Director)

Ankit Gupta- President - India office business
(w.ef. 09 May 2024)

Shailesh Vishnubhai Haribhakti (Independent Director)

Shantanu Chakraborty- Chief Operating Officer- India office
business (w.e.f. 09 May 2024)

Anuj Ranjan (Non-Executive Director) (till 12 February 2024)

Sanjeev Kumar Sharma - Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer - India office business (till 09 May 2024)

Ankur Gupta (Non-Executive Director)

Saurabh Jain- Compliance Officer

Thomas Jan Sucharda (Non-Executive Director)
(w.e.f. 30 March 2023)

Rajnish Kumar (Independent Director)
(w.e.f. 30 March 2023)

Subsidiary (SPVs) (w.e.f. 08 February 2021)

Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited

Festus Properties Private Limited

Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited

Candor India Office Parks Private Limited

Subsidiary (SPVs) (w.e.f. 24 January 2022)

Seaview Developers Private Limited

Subsidiary (SPVs) (w.e.f. 18 August 2023)

Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited

Subsidiary (SPVs) (w.e.f. 28 August 2023)

Kairos Properties Private Limited (Formerly known as Kairos
Property Managers Private Limited)

Joint venture (w.e.f. 21 June 2024)

Rostrum Realty Private Limited
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Condensed Standalone Financial Statements Condensed Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) (Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)
| |
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
RNl C|3| 0 S eSS S BIE S5 @R sls] 38 38 B8 33 Outstanding balances
PE S SR ST g IR R N i e BT A B T B et As at As at
s B2 n S S T 30 September 2024 31 March 2024
S = ek IR (Unaudited) (Audited)
2 Unsecured loans receivable (Non- Current)
- Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited 8,634.72 8,649.12
5 g‘gj HRIB SR ARS8 8R Y ' Y ne BE "t 2|8 |R[R| MW 3|8 - Festus Properties Private Limited 3,751.02 4,229.50
»_E‘ gg « E IR AN AN A e I e b N Ml %r g § § = E i - Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited 2,474.06 523.07
< gg S ) - Seaview Developers Private Limited 6,795.60 5,652.00
£ =
T B Total 21,655.40 19,053.69
5 5 ‘ )
. § Investment in equity shares of SPV/Joint Venture
Rl - 2| minoso~ola clo (S I A I e s|el =|e=| |o|e| w|le| oo o - Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited 24,761.39 24,761.39
239% N N M| =[Nl |0Nn|© < =N ol9 N NN N - - —
:__:. %'E 5| o0 a ™ SNl M| M S| e S |d|s| |o|e 5 § S E 2l - Festus Properties Private Limited 8,655.46 8,655.46
£ E@ Slel| NS - Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited 11,407.83 11,407.83
e =2 ; . . o
5 == - Candor India Office Parks Private Limited 220.20 220.20
i m
2 - Seaview Developers Private Limited 12,482.97 12,482.97
- B I I ) O ., - Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited 3,746.66 3,746.66
HEEEEl - 22| 323K 52858 828ras5 Y als 2)g| 38| s|g| s|g| 2l . e Private Limi . A
2222 NN IS R =] P B PR R PG PN P 212l 12lg| =2 |4le| o|a - K_a\r_os Properties Private Limited (Formerly known as Kairos Property Managers Private 12,031.80 12,031.80
23 5 U NN T @ i A I e o I B R - S = Limited)
2% Sl (2w - Rostrum Realty Private Limited 12,322.59 -
gg ° Y 322.
= Total 85,628.90 73,306.31
o
e Investment in Debentures
g §§ RR 288538 8| N nea &% 2% 9% <] 3|8 - Seaview Developers Private Limited 6,167.90 5,682.10
5555 AL I A A A R e b NE TR SISl glg| 8§ 7|° - Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited 5,034.90 4,605.85
o ~ - = - . . . . . .
v g g 33 |99 - Kairos Properties Private Limited (Formerly known as Kairos Property Managers 3,489.45 3,348.90
g g2 Private Limited)
-8
Total 14,692.25 13,636.85
o ’ ’
m
Investment in Non convertible debentures
AR S 22 N2 RRSR3I8 || Y glml glal 8|8l 8|8 R|R| | . . B,
FEEEM - (| o= no|S|o| S| = g = g s [ | S [ - Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited 5,037.00 5,164.00
T [ I - = == Sla QR ™| , - ; . ;
;-; § 2 N =2 :. 3% - Kairos Properties Private Limited (Formerly known as Kairos Property Managers 3,170.00 3,266.00
£ g3 Private Limited)
2 Total 8,207.00 8,430.00
Interest accrued but not due on Debentures
g §§§ QG3 REKHBS2 3T (32808 2K Ot ' Y 8|8l 88| ¢|e e - Kairos Properties Private Limited (Formerly known as Kairos Property Managers 102.14 -
5 moﬁ @ NN = oo/ o|m Nig|e|S |~ |e|9 S« %ﬁ EE Qe Private Limited)
E g B S| | | 9le - Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited 18.92 -
wv 2
g 8 - - Seaview Developers Private Limited 19.29 -
B Total 140.35 -
Interest accrued but not due on Non convertible debentures
9 - Kairos Properties Private Limited (Formerly known as Kairos Property Managers 99.88 -
o| € Private Limited)
% 2 - Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited 158.70 -
s
> 3> ] ) Total 258.58
° ; ~o ; ~o 2 gas 2 < P
2 s Blslsisl 5 2glsisl T fELs g s Interest accrued but not due on Loan to Subsidiaries
o £ JEd e £ JEd g £ 5 o250 & < - Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited 555.32 95.13
— - Q|| 2| 2|~ e} [ T e e P = P e} el - N N R R
£ e clgl=232e slgl=2%2e £ 38 gla E = B 2 - Festus Properties Private Limited 125.09 47.82
2 =l >&K\D:7>5 >&g\0:7>5 ) E'§2> EE - ] R - : —
2 = THLE DD, R N e g 8559 |53 |3 3 @ - Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited 26.40 0.53
£ 0 S ElE|D|g|E|Ew S EDEEE 2 =2lgvlE |8e ] ° s Seaview Devel Private Limited 412.80 296.94
b= C re) c ) c Clo & = -
"‘f‘ = E%%E%%%E 3%%2%%%5 % g.ggﬁ% gg E E g eaview Developers Private Limite . .
= 2 st tigrttite gt tiglrtite u o & 2T [Zlx X X c Total 1,119.61 440.42
2 o 23 8& 88 8se |218%E 88850 |8 w,38 (8o §o |&ovl |9v © . .
g 22 BEESEEE 2L BEECEEESL EpclZE |wg 2L |2 gg 3 Trade Payable (net of withholding tax)
2 g O|0 s/O/00|S|E| |8/00 O O|OSlE EGHIIEO |2 ‘g ‘e = ‘g X i o
g eE EQSLSISISIEE B2SESSSEE E8=aES 85 EE EE sE BE - Brookprop Management Services Private Limited 25.11 22.09
ol g: 8'0'05'0'01‘1%5; Q‘D‘DEUU'DS; Qo S 02T 2S5 s e c = 20 . S
bl Slg Efﬁiﬁffﬁ% 25555555% séag;éﬁ g2 25 25 35 5 - Schloss Chanakya Private Limited = 0.09
o a.)m_LLul_uu_lu_lLul_u q)m_wl_uLouLuLul_u G)CD__Q=% omm_xg_mm_mm_wm_Um_ Tota| 25.11 22.18
2 CL B G E e B LB S E S S0 LEEgo5S G EESEaYEasEeYTE s : :
2 TR TR RIS I e et RS BRI ERTRETEEIE

246 BROOKEFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE TRUST HALF YEARLY REPORT 2023-24 247



207-339
|

Condensed Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Other Payable (net of withholding tax)
- BSREP India Office Holdings V Pte. Ltd. - 9.51
Total - 9.51
Contingent consideration payable
- Project Diamond Holdings (DIFC) Limited 38.97 37.52
- Project Cotton Holdings One (DIFC) Limited 0.00 0.00
- BSREP India Office Holdings Il Pte. Ltd 51.11 49.22
- BSREP India Office Holdings Pte. Ltd 0.03 0.03
Total 90.11 86.77
Balance with banks (in current account)
- Axis Bank Limited 6.87 12.14
Total 6.87 12.14
Balance with banks (in deposit account)-Cash and cash equivalents
- Axis Bank Limited 459.00 2,378.00
Total 459.00 2,378.00
Balance with banks (in deposit account)-Other bank balances
- Axis Bank Limited 315.00 -
Total 315.00 -
Interest accrued but not due on deposits with banks
- Axis Bank Limited 4.81 3.51
Total 4.81 3.51

29 A.DETAILS OF UTILIZATION OF INSTITUTIONAL PLACEMENT (ISSUED ON 02 AUGUST 2023) AS ON

30 SEPTEMBER 2024 ARE FOLLOWS:

Objects of the issue as per the placement document

Proposed utilization

Actual utilization

Unutilized amount

upto as at

30 September 2024 30 September 2024

Funding of the consideration for the (i) Downtown Powai 21,896.76 103.24
Acquisition; and/or (ii) G1 Acquisition

General purposes 206.28 -

Issue related expenses 732.89 114.42

Total 22,835.93 217.66

Note: Amount of ¥ 2.69 million has been used for general corporate purposes from the proposed utilization towards issue

expenses.

B. DETAILS OF UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS OF COMMERCIAL PAPER (ISSUED ON 17 AUGUST 2023)

AS ON 30 SEPTEMBER 2024 ARE AS FOLLOWS:

Objects of the issue as per the letter of offer

Proposed utilization

Actual utilization

Unutilized amount

upto as at
31 March 2024 31 March 2024
For repayment of debt of Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) of 6,948.95 -
Brookfield India Real Estate Trust and towards transaction
expenses, capital expenditure and working capital requirements
of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust and its SPVs
Total 6,948.95 -

248

BROOKEFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE TRUST

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Condensed Standalone Financial Statements

(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

C.

30.

DETAILS OF UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS OF COMMERCIAL PAPER (ISSUED ON 29 APRIL 2024) AS

ON 30 SEPTEMBER 2024 ARE AS FOLLOWS:
AR Actual utilization upto Unutilized amount
utilization 30 September 2024 as at
30 September 2024

For repayment of debt of Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) of 1,870.83 1,646.72 22411
Brookfield India Real Estate Trust, towards transaction expenses,

capital expenditure, working capital requirements and expenses

of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust and its SPVs and for any

other general corporate purpose.

Total 1,870.83 1,646.72 224.11

Objects of the issue as per the letter of offer

DETAILS OF UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS OF COMMERCIAL PAPER (ISSUED ON 19 AUGUST 2024)
AS ON 30 SEPTEMBER 2024 ARE AS FOLLOWS:

Objects of the issue as per the letter of offer Proposed utilization Actual utilization Unutilized amount
upto as at

30 September 2024 30 September 2024

For repayment of debt of Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) of 4,762.32 4,762.32 -

Bropkﬂe\d Ind\_a Real Estate Trust, tovvards transaction expenses, 3,009.65 2737.68 27197

capital expenditure, working capital requirements and expenses

of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust and its SPVs and for any

other general corporate purpose.

Total 7,771.97 7,500.00 271.97

DISTRIBUTION POLICY

In terms of the Distribution policy and REIT Regulations, not less than 90% of the NDCFs of our Asset SPVs are
required to be distributed to Brookfield REIT, in proportion of its shareholding in our Asset SPVs, subject to
applicable provisions of the Companies Act. The cash flows receivable by Brookfield REIT may be in the form of
dividends, interest income, principal loan repayment, proceeds of any capital reduction or buyback from our Asset
SPVs/ CIOP, sale proceeds out of disposal of investments of any or assets directly/ indirectly held by Brookfield
REIT or as specifically permitted under the Trust Deed or in such other form as may be permissible under the
applicable laws.

At least 90% of the NDCFs of Brookfield REIT (“REIT Distributions”) shall be declared and made once every quarter
of a Financial Year by our Manager. In accordance with the REIT Regulations, REIT Distributions shall be made within
five working days from the record date. The REIT Distributions, when made, shall be made in Indian Rupees.

The NDCFs shall be calculated in accordance with the REIT Regulations and any circular, notification or guidelines
issued thereunder including the SEBI Guidelines.

HALF YEARLY REPORT 2023-24 249
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Condensed Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

31.

250

IN ACCORDANCE WITH REGULATION 52(4) OF SEBI (LODR) REGULATION, 2015, THE TRUST HAS
DISCLOSED FOLLOWING RATIOS

Financial Ratios For the quarter U  For the quarter [IJEGELEREIMNIIRGENERTEIN For the half year For the year
ended quarter ended ended ended ended ended ended
30 September 30 June 2024 30 September 30 September 31 March 2024 30 September 31 March
2024 (Unaudited) 2023 2024 (Unaudited) 2023 2024
[(WLETL 1T )] (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
Current ratio (in times) 0.35 0.38 0.45 0.35 0.38 0.45 0.38
(refer note a)
Debt-equity ratio 0.10 0.08 0.06 0.10 0.07 0.06 0.07
(in times) (refer note b)
Debt service coverage ratio 9.05 7.20 8.38 8.22 7.44 19.10 9.65
(in times) (refer note ¢)
Interest service coverage 9.05 7.20 8.38 8.22 7.44 19.10 9.65
ratio (in times) (refer note d)
Outstanding redeemable NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

preference shares
(quantity and value)

Capital redemption reserve/ NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
debenture redemption
reserve

Net worth (Amounts 120,555.31 121,053.10 111,985.23 120,555.31 109,815.84 111,985.23  109,815.84
in ¥ million)

Net profit after tax 1,662.99 1,045.22 483.64 2,708.21 1,797.54 1,186.40 2,983.94
(Amounts in ¥ million)

Earnings per unit- Basic 3.46 2.36 1.21 5.86 4.09 3.23 7.40
(Amounts ing)

Earnings per unit- Diluted 3.46 2.36 1.21 5.86 4.09 3.23 7.40
(Amounts in )

Long term debt to (1.16) NA NA (1.16) NA NA NA
working capital (refer note e)

Bad debts to Account NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
receivable ratio

Current liability ratio 0.56 1.00 1.00 0.56 1.00 1.00 1.00
(in times) (refer note f)

Total debts to total assets 0.09 0.07 0.06 0.09 0.06 0.06 0.06
(in times) (refer note g)

Debtors turnover (in times) NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
(refer note h)

Inventory turnover NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
Operating margin (in %) NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
(refer note i)

Net profit margin (in %) 75% 82% 50% 78% 81% 69% 77%

(refer note j)

Formulae for computation of ratios are as follows basis condensed standalone financial statements:-
a) Current ratio = Current Assets/Current Liabilities
b) Debt Equity ratio= Total Debt/Total Equity

c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio = (Earnings available for debt service) / (Interest expense+Principle repayments
made during the period which excludes bullet and full repayment of external borrowings)

BROOKEFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE TRUST

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Condensed Standalone Financial Statements

(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

d) Interest Service Coverage Ratio =Earnings available for debt service / Interest expense
e) Longterm debt to working capital = Long term debt / working capital (i.e., Current assets less current liabilities)
f)  Current Liability Ratio =Current Liability / Total Liability
g) Total debts to Total assets; =Total debts / Total assets;
h)  Debtors turnover = Revenue from operations (Annualized) / Average trade receivable
) Brookfield REIT's income is earned from its investment in assets SPVs and classified as income from investment
activity and therefore, operating margin ratio is not applicable and not disclosed
j)  Net profit margin =Profit after tax / Total Income
32. 3) The figures for the quarter ended 30 September 2024 are the derived figures between the unaudited figures
in respect of the half year ended 30 September 2024 and the unaudited published figures for the quarter
ended 30 June 2024, which were both subject to limited review by the statutory auditors.
b) The figures for the half year ended 31 March 2024 are the derived figures between the audited figures in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2024 and the unaudited published year-to-date figures upto 30 September
2023 which were subject to limited review by the statutory auditors.
33. 3a) “0.00" Represents value less than ¥ 0.01 million.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT)
Ankur Gupta Alok Aggarwal
Director CEO and Managing Director
DIN No. 08687570 DIN No. 00009964
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 06 November 2024 Date: 06 November 2024
Amit Jain
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai
Date: 06 November 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report

On Review of Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
|

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF

Brookprop Management Services Private Limited

= summary of the material accounting policies and
select explanatory notes

an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion.

4. The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial

Statements includes the financial information of the

following entities:

S. Name of the entities

accompanying Condensed Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements, have not been prepared in
accordance with the REIT Regulations; Regulation

52 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended; Ind AS 34, prescribed
under Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended)

(the “Manager”) . - . No. and other accounting principles generally accepted
(Acting in capacity as the Manager of Brookfield India Real These Condensed lConso||d§ted interim Financial A Parent Entity in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the
Statements are being submitted by the REIT , , . . . .
Estate Trust) X o 1 Brookfield India Real Estate Trust REIT Regulations or that it contains any material
pursuant to the requirements of Securities and misstatement
Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment o '
INTRODUCTION Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to B Subsidiaries

1.

We have reviewed the accompanying unaudited
Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial
Statements of Brookfield India Real Estate
Trust (“the REIT"), and its subsidiaries (the REIT
and its subsidiaries together referred to as the
“Group”) and its share of net loss after tax and
total comprehensive loss of its joint venture,
("the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial
Statements”) which comprise of the following:

. the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at 30 September 2024;

time read with Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-
PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024 (the “REIT
Regulations”).

The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial
Statements, which is the responsibility of the
Manager and approved by the Board of Directors of
the Manager, have been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the REIT Regulations; Regulation
52 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended; Indian Accounting
Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” (“Ind AS

—

Limited

Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private

Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited

Seaview Developers Private Limited

Festus Properties Private Limited

Candor India Office Parks Private Limited

O U AW N

Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private
Limited

7 Kairos Properties Private Limited

C Joint Venture

1 Rostrum Realty Private Limited and its

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

6.

We draw attention to Note 15(a) of the Condensed
Consolidated Interim Financial Statements, which
describes the presentation of “Unit Capital” as
“Equity” to comply with REIT Regulations. Our
conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Reg. No. 015125N)

" : - subsidiaries
. the unaudited Condensed Consolidated 34 )‘, prescmbed'under Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies
. . . (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other amended) and other accounting principles generall
comprehensive income) for the quarter and half &P ples g y CONCLUSION Anand Subramanian

year ended 30 September 2024;

»  the unaudited Condensed Consolidated
Statement of Cash flows for the quarter and half
year ended 30 September 2024;

= the unaudited Condensed Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity for
the half year ended 30 September 2024,

. the unaudited Condensed Consolidated
Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value as at
30 September 2024;

. the unaudited Condensed Consolidated
Statement of Total Return at Fair Value for the
half year ended 30 September 2024,

» the unaudited Statement of Net Distributable
Cash Flows of the Brookfield India Real Estate
Trust and each of its special purpose vehicles
(subsidiaries and joint venture) for the quarter
and half year ended 30 September 2024; and

accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with
the REIT Regulations. Our responsibility is to express
a conclusion on the Condensed Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements based on our review.

SCOPE OF REVIEW

3.

We conducted our review of the Condensed
Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

in accordance with the Standard on Review
Engagements (SRE) 2410 “Review of Interim Financial
Information Performed by the Independent Auditor
of the Entity”, issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). A review of interim
financial information consists of making inquiries,
primarily of Manager's personnel responsible for
financial and accounting matters and applying
analytical and other review procedures. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted
in accordance with Standards on Auditing issued

by ICAl and consequently does not enable us to
obtain assurance that we would become aware of
all significant matters that might be identified in

BROOKEFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE TRUST

5.  Based on our review conducted as stated in
paragraph 3 above, nothing has come to our
attention that causes us to believe that the

HALF YEARLY REPORT 2023-24

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 06 November 2024

Partner
(Membership No. 110815)
(UDIN: 24110815BKFIFV3630)
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Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

Particulars Note As at As at Particulars Note For the For the For the IR B ML TR L W] For the half For the
30 September 2024 31 March 2024 quarter ended CTEIRId quarter ended yearended year ended year ended BYEEIENT L]
Unaudited Audited 30 September ended EENNTIENLEY 30 September EANVETLY 30 September EEEXRVETE)]
ASSETS 2024 30 June 2024 2023 2024 2024 2023 2024
Non-Current assets Unaudited) (Unaudited Unaudited) B(NEVEH ) MMONEVEREN)]  (Unaudited) BEMCXIL [
Property, plant and equipment 3 366.21 406.56 Income and gains
nvestment property 4 237,223.35 238,375.88 Revenue from operations 27 5,902.02 5,737.61 3,997.09 11,639.63 10,666.78 713803 17,804.81
nvestment property under development 4 1,451.73 1,199.00 Other income 28 147.30 171.52 192.88 318.82 481.90 259.29 741.19
_ﬂtaﬂg\ble assets 3 1.33 0.07 Total income 6,049.32 5,909.13 4,189.97 11,958.45 11,148.68 7.397.32  18,546.00
Financial assets Expenses and losses
- Investments accounted for using equity method 43 12,032.71 - Cost of material consumed 29 19.99 20.80 16.63 40.79 42.74 30.91 73.65
- Other financial assets 5 1,149.76 1,122.98 Employee benefits expenses 30 58.74 58.92 104.11 117.66 233.65 194.73 428.38
Deferred tax assets (net) 6 4.391.56 4,621.86 Finance costs 31 2,848.13 2,773.39 1,847.10 5621.52 5,468.48 3,049.36 8,517.84
Non-current tax assets (net) 7 257376 2,387.76 Depreciation and amortization expenses 32 1,048.40 1,021.44 838.42 2,069.84 2,074.88 2,035.50 4,110.38
Other non-current assets g 604.62 57654 Inv‘estmemt management fees 27.38 24.76 22.746L 52.25 48,68 4(2),12 98,92
- Valuation expenses 12. 3.37 7.9 15.37 10.05 10.4 20.51
Total non-current assets 259,795.03 248,690.65 Tousiee foes 574 & o7e 26 T 178 >3z
Current assets Other expenses 33 1,546.65 1,492.37 1,155.43 3,039.02 2,599.16 2,057.65 4,656.81
Einancial assets Total expenses 5,562.14 5,395.79 3,993.14 10,957.93 10,479.21 7,422.23 17,901.44
~ Trade receivables 9 94736 73713 Profit/(loss) before share of profit of 487.18 513.34 196.83 1,000.52 669.47 (24.91) 644.56
- ; : : equity accounted investee and tax
- Cash and cash equivalents 9 240422 300287 Share of net loss (after tax) of joint ©9.7T) (19.59) - (79.30) - -
~ Loans > D T venture accounted for using the equity
- Other financial assets 3 478.53 1,041.52 method
Other current assets 4 783.14 660.87 Profit/(loss) before tax 427.47 493.75 196.83 921.22 669.47 (24.91) 644.56
Total current assets 8,298.85 7,430.40 Tax expense: 34
TOTAL ASSETS 268,093.88 256,121.05 Current tax
- for current period 27.70 38.61 46.91 66.31 30.72 58.45 89.17
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES - for earlier years 0.95 (1.47) - (0.52) 8.32 (6.68) 1.64
Equity Deferred tax charge 46.50 83.08 130.34 229.58 418.59 173.79 592.38
Unit capital 15 119,253.88 109,101.43 Tax expense for the period/ year 175.15 120.22 177.25 295.37 457.63 225.56 683.19
Other equity 16 (7,828.86) (6,543.00) Profit/(loss) for the period/ year 252.32 373.53 19.58 625.85 211.84 (250.47) (38.63)
Equity attributable to unit holders of the Brookfield India REIT 111,425.02 102,558.43 after tax S
Non-controlling interest 16 9,847.01 20,055.00 Other comprehensive income _
Total equity 131,272.03 122,613.43 Items that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss
LIABILITIES - Remeasurement of defined benefit 0.96 1.61 0.09 2.57 1.14 (1.15) (0.01)
Non current liabilities obligations
Financial liabilities - Income tax related to items that will (0.25) (0.46) 0.03 (0.71) (0.39) 0.46 0.07
Borrowings 17 114,306.68 111,849.10 not be reclassified to profit or loss
Lease liabilities 207.73 220.45 - Share of other comprehensive (0.34) (0.02) - (0.36) - -
- Other financial liabilities 18 4317.14 3,084.517 income of joint venture accounted
Provisions R 19 17.29 32.94 for using the equity method
Othelr non-current |'f,b'gt,‘l‘?5_ 20 1,643.09 1,175.37 Other comprehensive income/(loss) 0.37 1.13 0.12 1.50 0.75 (0.69) 0.06
Total non-current liabilities 120,491.93 116,362.37 for the period/ year, net of tax
s Total comprehensive income/(loss) 252.69 374.66 19.70 627.35 212.59 (251.16) (38.57)
Current liabilities .
Financial liabilities for the period/ year
: Profit/(loss) for the period/ year 332.78 501.06 84.97 833.84 421.04 (185.08) 235.96
- Borrowings 21 7,181.27 8,220.28 N N .
T Lease liabilities 347 34 34295 after income tax attributable to unit
~ Trade payables 22 holders of Brookfjeld India REIT
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 191.47 140.08 (Loss) for the period/ year after (80.46) (127.53) (65.39) (207.99) (209.20) (65.39) (274.59)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 1,162.43 902.38 income tax attributable to non-
small enterprises controlling interests
- Other financial liabilities 23 6,575.49 6,791.02 Total comprehensive income/(loss) 333.15 502.19 85.09 835.34 421.79 (185.77) 236.02
Provisions 24 7.33 11.44 for the period/ year attributable to
Other current liabilities 25 751.08 616.17 unit holders of Brookfield India REIT
Current tax liabilities (net) 26 9.51 20.93 Total comprehensive (loss) for the (80.46) (127.53) (65.39) (207.99) (209.20) (65.39) (274.59)
_Total current liabilities 16,329.92 17,145.25 period/ year attributable to non-
_Total liabilities 136,821.85 133,507.62 controlling interests
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 268,093.88 256,121.05 Earnings per unit 39
. ) . Basic 0.69 1.13 0.21 1.81 0.96 (0.50) 0.59
Material accounting policies 2 Diluted 0.69 113 0.21 1.8 0.96 (0.50) 0.59
Material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 015125N

Anand Subramanian
Partner

Membership No: 110815
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 06 November 2024
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w
S

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT)

Ankur Gupta

Director

DIN No. 08687570

Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024

Amit Jain

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024

Alok Aggarwal

CEO and Managing Director
DIN No. 00009964

Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024

BROOKEFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE TRUST

The accompanying notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Firm Registration No.: 015125N
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Date: 06 November 2024
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Date: 06 November 2024
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Date: 06 November 2024
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DIN No. 00009964
Place: Mumbai
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WHO WE ARE

- OUR PROPERTIES

" ESG AT A GLANCE

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Particulars

For the For the For the For the For the For the
quarter ended WUEld quarter ended EOELRTEETELED] LELR'CET half year ended

30 September [LLEGE 30 September I IE IS [LULELE 30 September
2024 30 June 2024 2024 31 March 2024 2023

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) Unaudited

Cash flows from operating activities :
Profit/(loss) before SEare of profit of equity accounted investee and tax

48717 513.34 196.83 1,000.51 669.47 (24.91) 644.56
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortization expense 1,048.40 1,021.44 838.42 2,069.84 2,074.88 2,035.50 4,110.38
Allowance for expected credit loss 0.81 0.84 - 1.65 79.52 - 79.52
Interest income on deposits with banks (88.92) (92.56) (127.15) (181.48) (152.90) (167.09) (319.99)
Deferred income amortization (102.59) (123.01) (64.28) (225.60) (208.34) (113.01) (321.35)
Credit impaired 0.84 - 0.56 0.84 9.17 0.56 9.73
Restricted stock units - - 1.51 = (9.32) 3.03 (6.29)
Finance cost 2,848.13 2,773.39 1,847.10 5621.52 5468.48 3,049.36 8517.84

_Fair value gain on finance receivables (17.36) (26.05) (33.17) (43.41) (85.00) (48.00) (133.00)
(Gain)/loss on derivative relating to share conversion feature in 14% compulsorily (23.25) - 8.25 (23.25) (53.90) 8.25 (45.65)
convertible debentures at fair value through profit or loss
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 4,153.23 4,067.39 2,668.07 8,220.62 7.792.06 4,743.69 12,535.75
Movement in working capital:

(Increase)/ Decrease in other current and non current assets (198.89) 25.83 112.77 (173.06) (273.13) 77.06 (196.07)
Decrease/ (Increase) in current and non current financial assets 597.38 (142.99) 718.65 454.39 1,305.93 588.39 1,894.32
Increase/(Decrease) in current and non current financial liabilities 560.24 731.07 (154.32) 1,291.31 (87.89) 77.82 (10.07)
(Decrease)/ Increase in other current and non current liabilities (28.55) 115.19 (245.14) 86.64 35.69 (197.49) (161.80)
Cash generated from operating activities 5,083.41 4,796.49 3,100.03 9,879.90 8,772.66 5,289.47 14,062.13
Income taxes (paid)/ refunds received (net) (66.64) (186.57) (75.26) (253.21) 511.25 (245.07) 266.18
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 5,016.77 4,609.92 3,024.77 9,626.69 9,283.91 5,044.40 14,328.31
Cash flows from investing activities :

Expenditure incurred on investment property (543.53) (537.10) (244.61) (1,080.63) (856.79) (646.39) (1,503.18)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (4.08) (7.29) (23.86) (11.37) (88.44) (91.55) (179.99)
Payment for acquisition of subsidiary/ Joint venture, including directly attributable (28.51) (1.39) (19,816.53) (29.90) (94.43) (19,818.07)  (19,912.50)
expenses

Deposits with banks matured# 949.14 91.17 683.41 1,040.31 599.86 692.81 1,292.67
Deposits with banks made # (1.342.29) (91.17) (397.08) (1.433.46) (986.00) (477.06) (1.463.06)
nterest received on deposits with banks 96.00 8535 136.51 181.35 149.94 173.78 323.72

Advance received from third party towards construction of investment property 67.80 - - 67.80 - -
under Joint Development Agreement (Refer Note 20)

Dividends from Joint venture/ Subsidiaries - 210.23 210.23 - - -
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (805.47) (250.20) (19,662.16) (1,055.67) (1,275.86) (20,166.48) _ (21,442.34)

_Cash flows from financing activities :

_Finance cost paid (2,203.00) (2,497.99) (4,016.51) (4,700.99) (5,023.84) (5,187.19)  (10,211.03)
Proceeds from Term loan from banks/financial institutions 9,027.08 170.00 27,819.99 9,197.08 1,610.00 29,240.00 30,850.00
Proceeds from short term borrowings 1,500.00 = - 1,500.00 =
Proceeds from issue of commercial papers 7,771.97 1,870.83 6,948.95 9,642.80 - 6,948.95 6.948.95
Repayment of commercial paper (12,300.00) = - (12,300.00) =
Repayment of lease liabilities (11.03) (17.65) (11.02) (28.68) (0.01) (28.67) (28.68)
Repayment of non-convertible debentures - (223.00) (132.00) (223.00) (308.00) (132.00) (440.00)
Repayment of Term loan from banks/financial institutions (5,750.00) (943.64) (34,103.64) (6,693.64) (336.51) (34,231.03)  (34,567.54)
Proceeds from issue of Unit capital - - 3,053.59 - - 23,053.59 23,053.59
Expense incurred towards Institutional placement (0.36) (13.16) (152.06) (13.52) (560.57) (152.06) (712.63)
Expense incurred towards preferential allotment (0.71) (1.37) (0.55) (2.08) (0.86) (0.55) (1.41)
Distribution to unitholders (2,167.34) (2079.53) (1,641.57) (4,246.87) (4015.23 (3316.95) (733218

_Net cash (used) in/ generated from financing activities (C) (4,133.39) (3,735.51) 17.765.18 (7,868.90) (8,635.02 16,194.09 7.559.07

_Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 77.91 624.21 27.79 702.12 (626.97' 072.01 445.04
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period/ year 4,327.08 3,702.87 2,040.77 3,702.87 4,329.84 2,096.55 2,096.55
Cash and cash equivalents acquired due to asset acquisition: - - 61.28 - - 161.28 1,161.28
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period/ year (refer note 10) 4.404.99 4.327.08 4.329.84 4.404.99 3.702.87 4.320.84 3.702.87
Components of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period/ year
Balances with banks

in current account 231.90 201.77 70.33 231.90 123.04 70.33 123.04
in deposit account 4,173.09 412531 4,159.51 4,173.09 3,579.83 4,159.51 3,579.83
4,404.99 4,327.08 4,329.84 4,404.99 3.702.87 4,329.84 3.702.87

# Represents deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months.

Notes:

1. The statement of cash flow has been prepared in accordance with “Indirect Method"” as set out in Indian Accounting Standard -7 : “Statement on Cash Flows".

2. The Trust has issued Units in exchange for investments in Rostrum and Kairos during the quarter ended 30 June 2024 and year ended 31 March 2024 respectively. The same
has not been reflected in Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows since these were non-cash transactions. (refer note 42)

3. During the previous year, the Group has changed its presentation relating to brokerage paid on operating leases to “Cash flows from investing activities” from “Cash flows
from operating activities” as the brokerage is capitalized to the carrying amount of the underlying assets as initial direct cost as per the requirement of Ind AS 116-Leases. The
impact of this change in presentation is not material and has increased the cash inflows from operating activities and has increased the cash outflows from investing activities
by % 32.12 million for the quarter ended 30 September 2023. The change in presentation in cash flows does not have any impact on the NDCF reported for prior periods.

Material accounting policies (refer note 2)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 015125N

Anand Subramanian
Partner

Membership No: 110815
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 06 November 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT)

Ankur Gupta

Director

DIN No. 08687570

Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024

Alok Aggarwal

CEO and Managing Director
DIN No. 00009964

Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024

Amit Jain

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024
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Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN UNITHOLDER'S EQUITY

(a)

(b)

Unit Capital

Unit in Nos. Amount
Balance as on 01 April 2023 335,087,073 86,556.65
Changes in unit capital during the current period:
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2023# - (891.33)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2023# - (861.30)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2023# - (939.64)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 December 2023# - (1,088.93)
Add: Units issued during the year (refer note 15) 103,998,149 27,053.59
Less: Issue expenses (refer note 15) - (727.61)
_Balance at the end of the reporting year 31 March 2024 439,085,222 109,101.43
_Balance as on 01 April 2024 439,085,222 109,101.43
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2024# - (1,102.10)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2024# - (1,022.43)
Add: Units issued during the period (refer note 15) 40,930,000 12,279.00
Less: Issue expenses (refer note 15) - (2.02)
Balance at the end of the current reporting period 30 September 2024 480,015,222 119,253.88
Unit in Nos. Amount
Unit Capital
Balance as on 01 April 2023 335,087,073 86,556.65
Changes in unit capital during the previous period:
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2023# - (891.33)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2023# - (861.30)
Add: Units issued during the period (refer note 15) 103,998,149 27,053.59
Less: Issue expenses (refer note 15) - (778.32)
Balance at the end of the previous reporting period 30 September 2023 439,085,222 111,079.29
Other equity
Particulars Attributable to unit Non-
holders o_f Brookfield controlling TOTAL
India REIT interests*
Retained earnings
_Balance as on 01 April 2023 (3,219.27) - (3,219.27)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2023# (784.10) (784.10)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2023# (780.29) (780.29)
Add: Non- controlling interests on acquisition of subsidiaries - 15,643.68 15,643.68
Add: Equity component of compound financial instrument attributable to non- controlling interests - 4,685.91 4,685.91
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2023# (992.34) (992.34)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 December 2023# (996.73) (996.73)
Add: Profit/(loss) for the year ended 31 March 2024 235.96 (274.59) (38.63)
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2024 0.06 - 0.06
Add: Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the current year 236.02 (274.59) (38.57)
Add: Restricted stock units (6.29) - (6.29)
_Balance as at 31 March 2024 (6,543.00) 20,055.00 13,512.00
_Balance as on 01 April 2024 (6,543.00) 20,055.00 13,512.00
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2024# (983.55) - (983.55)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2024# (1,137.64) - (1,137.64)
Add: Profit/(loss) for the half year ended 30 September 2024 833.84 (207.99) 625.85
Add: Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the half year ended 30 September 2024 1.50 - 1.50
Add: Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the current period 835.34 (207.99) 627.35
Balance as at 30 September 2024 (7,828.85) 19,847.01 12,018.16
Other equity
Particulars Attributable to unit Non-
holders o_f Brookfield controlling TOTAL
India REIT interests*
Retained earnings
Balance as on 01 April 2023 (3,219.27) - (3,219.27)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2023# (784.10) - (784.10)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2023# (780.29) - (780.29)
Add: Non- controlling interests on acquisition of subsidiaries - 15,643.68 15,643.68
Add: Equity component of compound financial instrument attributable to non- controlling interests - 4,685.91 4,685.91
Add: Loss for the half year ended 30 September 2023 (185.08) (65.39) (250.47)
Add: Other comprehensive (loss) for the half year ended 30 September 2023 (0.69) - (0.69)
Add: Total comprehensive (loss) for the previous period (185.77) (65.39) (251.16)
Add: Restricted stock units 3.03 - 3.03
Balance as at 30 September 2023 (4,966.40) 20,264.20 15,297.80

* Refer note 1

#The distributions made by Trust to its Unitholders are based on the Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) of Brookfield India REIT under the REIT Regulations.

Material accounting policies (refer note 2)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 015125N

Anand Subramanian

Ankur Gupta

Partner Director

Membership No: 110815
Place: Bengaluru
Date: 06 November 2024

DIN No. 08687570

Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024
Amit Jain

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024

HALF YEARLY REPORT 2023-24

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT)

Alok Aggarwal

CEO and Managing Director
DIN No. 00009964

Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024
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| I

A. Condensed Consolidated Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value Fair value of Investment property and Investment property under development include impact of lease rent equalization,
Sr.  Particulars As at 30 September 2024 As at 31 March 2024 therefore carrying amount of lease rent equalization as of 30 September 2024 amounting to ¥ 805.18 millions has been reduced
No. (Unaudited) (Audited) from other assets.

Book Value Fair value Book Value Fair value

**Rostrum Realty Private Limited is accounted as an equity method investee. The carrying value of equity method investment is

A Assets LSRR e 256,121.05 ’ 307'21 28‘31 %12,032.71 million and fair value is ¥ 12,876.49 million as on 30 September 2024. The fair value of equity method investment is
B Liabilities* (136,821.85) (136821.85 (133,507.62) (re er(;wgtgeSme.gvzvg determined based on the fair value of underlying investment properties and book value of other assets and liabilities (as adjusted
Add: Other Adjustment* ' - ' 549 07 ' . ' 563 40 for fair value under Ind AS 28, on initial recognition of an equity-method investee). The fair value of investment properties as at 30
C  Net Assets (A-B) 131,272.03 194,718.75 122,613.43 174,254.09 September 2024 is determined by an independent external registered property valuer.
D Less: Non-controlling interest (19,847.01) (29,771.27) (20,055.00) (28,213.30)
E Net Assets attributable to unit holders of Brookfield 111,425.03  164,947.48  102,558.43 146,040.79 As at 31 March 2024
India REIT Entity and Property name Fair value of Investment Other assets
F No.of units 480,015,222  480,015222 439,085,222 439,085,222 property and Investment at book Total assets
G___NAV per unit (E/F) 232.13 343.63 233.57 332.60 property under value
*As per Master Circular for Real Estate Investment Trusts dated 15 May 2024, the Trust is required to disclose the carrying value development
of liabilities as reflected in the Balance Sheet at the reporting date in the ‘Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value’. Therefore, the Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited 73,335.00 3,388.41 76,72341
Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value' includes the carrying value of liabilities as of 30 September 2024 and 31 March 2024. Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited 25,622.00 984.55 26,606.55
Further, fair value of investment property (including investment property under development) is after considering cash outflows Festus Properties Private Limited 26,998.00 1,428.22 28,426.22
towards lease liabilities. Hence, carrying amount of lease liabilities as of 30 September 2024 and 31 March 2024 has been Seaview Developers Private Limited 42,619.00 2,468.20 45,087.20
adjusted to arrive at the NAV per unit. Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited 50,120.00* 2,247.20 52,367.20
N Kairos Properties Private Limited 73,556.00 1,861.74 75417.74
Measqrement 9f fair values o o . Candor India Office Parks Private Limited - 151.83 151.83
The fair value of investment properties (including investment property under development) has been determined Brookfield India Real Estate Trust . 2418.16 241816
by independent external registered property valuers, having appropriately recognized professional qualifications 292,250.00 14,948.31 307,198.31

and recent experience in the location and category of the properties being valued.
*Includes ¥ 936.01 millions of finance receivable relating to income support and corresponding amount has been reduced from

Valuation technique other assets.

The fair value measurement of the investment properties (including investment property under development) has

been categorized as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation technique used Fair value of Investment property and Investment property under development include impact of lease rent equalization,
therefore carrying amount of lease rent equalization as of 31 March 2024 amounting to ¥ 661.82 millions has been reduced from

The valuers have followed a discounted cash flow method. The discounted cash flow method considers the present other assets.

value of net cash flows to be generated from the respective properties, taking into account the expected rental

growth rate, vacancy period, occupancy rate, average sg. ft. rent and lease incentive costs. The expected net cash a. Fairvalues of assets as disclosed above are the fair values of the total assets of all SPVs as included in the
flows are discounted using the risk adjusted discount rates. Among other factors, the discount rate estimation Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
considers the quality of a building and its location (prime vs secondary), tenant credit quality, lease terms and b.  Fair values of investment property and investment property under development as at 30 September 2024 and

investors expected return. 31 March 2024 as disclosed above are solely based on the fair valuation report of the independent external

For fair valuation of financial assets and financial liabilities refer note 37. registered valuer appointed under the REIT Regulations.

Material accounting policies (refer note 2)
Notes

1. Candor Kolkata has plans to de-notify a portion of its SEZ into non SEZ. The denotification will be taken up prior
to the construction commencement and is procedural in nature. Hence, the fair valuation of such SEZ portion
has been computed by the valuers assuming non IT use.

The accompanying notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
2. Project wise break up of Fair value of Assets : Chartered Accountants Brookprop Management Services Private Limited
Firm Registration No.: 015125N (as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT)
Asat30s ber 2024 ° ¢
s at eptember
Entity and Pr:'operty name Fair value of Investment Anand Subramanian Ankur Gupta Alok Aggarwal
property and Investment Other assets Partner Director CEO and Managing Director
property under at book Total assets Membership No: 110815 DIN No. 08687570 DIN No. 00009964
development value Place: Bengaluru Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited 74,767.63 4,173.36 78,940.99 Date: 06 November 2024 Date: 06 November 2024 Date: 06 November 2024
Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited 26,647.00 1,182.41 27,829.41 Amit Jain
Festus Properties Private Limited 28,526.97 1,800.40 30,327.37 Chief Fi i3l Offi
Seaview Developers Private Limited 44,669.05 2,750.28 47,419.33 IerFnanciat Oricer
Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited 52,129.93* 2,654.84 54,784.77 Place: Mumbai
Kairos Properties Private Limited 75,078.00 2,728.70 77,806.70 Date: 06 November 2024
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited - 203.67 203.67
Brookfield India Real Estate Trust - 802.80 802.80
Sub Total 301,818.58 16,296.46 318,115.04
Equity method investment in Rostrum Realty Private Limited** 12,876.49
Total 330,991.53

*Includes ¥ 284.38 millions of finance receivable relating to income support and corresponding amount has been reduced from
other assets.
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(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Total Return at Fair Value

S.No. Particulars

For the half year For the half year For the half year For the year
ended ended ended ended

30 September 2024 CA NV ET WIyZY 30 September 2023 QR ETTd Wlip2:
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

NET DISTRIBUTABLE CASH FLOWS (NDCF) PURSUANT TO SEBI MASTER CIRCULAR NO. SEBI/HO/DDHS-

POD-2/P/CIR/2024/43

(i) Brookfield India REIT - Standalone

Particulars

For the quarter
ended

For the quarter
ended

For the half year
ended

A Total comprehensive Income 627.35 212.59 (251.16) (38.57) 30 September 2024 30 June 2024 NG el
B Add/(Less) : Changes in fair value not recognized* (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
- Investment Property 10,424.96 8,608.20 10,053.63 18,661.83 Cashflows from operating activities of the Trust (66.49) (68.88) (135.37)
- Equity method investment 843.78 - - - (+) Cash flows received from SPV's / Investment entities which represent 2,525.01 2,298.07 4,823.08
C (A+B) Total Return 11.896.09 8.820.79 9.802.47 18.623.26 distributions of NDCF computed as per relevant framework (refer note 2)
Total Return attributable to unit holders of 10,150.29 7,509.37 5,762.29 13,271.66 (+) Treasury income / income from investing activities of the Trust (interest 31.19 37.94 69.13
Brookfield India REIT income received from FD, any investment entities as defined in Regulation
Total Return attributable to non- controlling interests 1,745.80 1,311.42 4,040.18 5,351.60 18(5), tax refund, any other income in the nature of interest, profit on sale

of Mutual funds, investments, assets etc., dividend income etc., excluding
any Ind AS adjustments. Further clarified that these amounts will be
considered on a cash receipt basis)

(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure / real estate investments,

infrastructure / real estate assets or shares of SPVs/Holdcos or Investment

Entity adjusted for the following

o Applicable capital gains and other taxes = - ;
o Related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds - - -
e Directly attributable transaction costs - - -

e Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation - - -
18(16)(d) of REIT Regulations or any other relevant provisions of the
REIT Regulations

(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure / real estate investments, - - -
infrastructure / real estate assets or sale of shares of SPVs/ Hold cos or

Investment Entity not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest

as per Regulation 18(16)(d) of REIT Regulations or any other relevant

provisions of the REIT Regulations, if such proceeds are not intended to be

invested subsequently.

(-) Finance cost on Borrowings, excluding amortisation of any transaction (204.88) (164.52) (369.40)
costs as per Profit and Loss account of the Trust

The changes in fair value for the respective periods presented has been computed based on the changes in fair value of
the underlying assets of SPVs (including changes in fair value of equity method investment), which is not recognized in
Total Comprehensive Income.

*This does not include difference between carrying value and fair value of borrowings pursuant to liabilities being reflected at
carrying values in the statement of Net assets at fair value. This change does not impact the Total Return attributable to unit holders
of Brookfield India REIT. Total returns for half year ended 30 September 2023 has been revised by ¥ 572.43 million to align the
presentation.

Material accounting policies (refer note 2)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 015125N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT)

Anand Subramanian Ankur Gupta

Partner Director

Membership No: 110815 DIN No. 08687570

Place: Bengaluru Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024 Date: 06 November 2024

Alok Aggarwal

CEO and Managing Director
DIN No. 00009964

Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024

(-) Debt repayment at Trust level (to include principal repayments as per - - -
scheduled EMI's except if refinanced through new debt including overdraft

facilities and to exclude any debt repayments / debt refinanced through

new debt in any form or funds raised through issuance of units)

Amit Jain (-) any reserve required to be created under the terms of, or pursuant to = - =
Chief Financial Officer the obligations arising in accordance with, any: (i). loan agreement entered
Place: Mumbai with financial institution, or (ii). terms and conditions, covenants or any
Date: 06 November 2024 other stipulations applicable to debt securities issued by the Trust or any
of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or (iii). terms and conditions, covenants or any other
stipulations applicable to external commercial borrowings availed by the
Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, (iv). agreement pursuant to which the
Trust operates or owns the real estate asset, or generates revenue or
cashflows from such asset (such as, concession agreement, transmission
services agreement, power purchase agreement, lease agreement, and
any other agreement of a like nature, by whatever name called); or (v).
statutory, judicial, regulatory, or governmental stipulations; or -
(-) any capital expenditure on existing assets owned / leased by the REIT, - - -
to the extent not funded by debt / equity or from contractual reserves
created in the earlier years

NDCF at Trust Level 2,284.83 2,102.61 4,387.44
Surplus cash available (excluding surplus cash from debt raised) - 64.99 64.99
NDCF including surplus cash at Trust Level 2,284.83 2,167.60 4,452.43
Notes:

1. The Board of Directors of the Manager to the Trust, in their meeting held on 06 November 2024, have declared distribution to Unitholders
of ¥ 4.60 per unit which aggregates to ¥ 2,208.07 million for the quarter ended 30 September 2024. The distributions of ¥ 4.60 per unit
comprises % 1.66 per unit in the form of interest payment on shareholder loan, CCD's and NCD's, % 2.38 per unit in the form of repayment
of SPV debt and NCD, ¥ 0.571 per unit in the form of dividend and the balance ¥ 0.05 per unit in the form of interest on fixed deposit.
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(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) (Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)
— —
Along with distribution of ¥ 2,160.07 million/ ¥ 4.50 per unit for the quarter ended 30 June 2024, the cumulative distribution for the half Additional disclosures as required by Paragraph 4.6 to SEBI master circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116
year ended 30 September 2024 aggregates to ¥ 4,368.14 million/ ¥ 9.10 per unit. Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to guidance under Paragraph 4.6 to SEBI master circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-
PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116
2. Pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024, Trust has considered distribution of (i) Brookfield India REIT - Standalone
¥ 2,255.01 million received subsequent to period ended 30 September 2024 but before the adoption of the standalone financial Sr.  Particulars For the quarter [IJRGTNEVSZEIR For the half year For the year
statement by the Board of Director of the Manager to Trust in the calculation of Net Distributable Cash Flow. No. ended ended ended ended
30 September 31 March 2024 30 September 31 March 2024
3. Inorder to promote standardisation of framework for computing NDCF, a revised framework was defined by SEBI vide master circular no. 2023 (Spasdieed) 2023 (G )
) ; ) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024 ("Revised NDCF Framework”) (erstwhile SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS- ] Cash flows received from Asset SPVs, CIOP/Operating
PoD/P/CIR/2023/185 dated December 6, 2023 on revised NDCF framework). As per the framework, the Manager is required to declare Service Provider and any investment entity in the form of:
and distribute at least 90% of the NDCF of Brookfield India REIT as distributions (“REIT Distributions”).This framework is applicable with e Interest (net of applicable taxes, if any) 1,012.55 2,013.72 1,812.78 3,826.50
effect from 1 April 2024. Accordingly, Brookfield India REIT has computed the NDCF quarter and half year ended 30 September 2024 as e Dividends (net of applicable taxes, if any) - = - -
per the revised framework. Comparatives have not been provided in this framework for all the previous periods presented. e Repayment of Shareholder Debt (or debentures and 1,359.00 2,775.92 2,824.00 5,599.92

other similar instruments)

e Proceeds from buy-backs/ capital reduction/ - - - -
redemptions (net of applicable taxes)

Material accounting policies (refer note 2)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 2 Add: Proceeds from sale, (transfer or liquidation or 30,002.54 . 30,002.54 30,002.54
As per our report of even date attached redemption or otherwise realization) of investments
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of (including cash equivalents), assets or shares of/interest

in Asset SPVs, or any form of fund raise at Brookfield

Chartered Accountants Brookprop Management Services Private Limited REIT level, adjusted for the following;
Firm Registration No.: 015125N (as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT) « Applicable capital gains and other taxes 7 7 . .
Anand Subramanian Ankur Gupta Alok Aggarwal o Related debts settled or due to be settled from sale - - - -
Partner Director CEO and Managing Director proceeds
MembgrshiplNOi 110815 El‘N N?\-A086b87570 EllN NOMOOOb09'964 e Directly attributable transaction costs (788.48) - (788.48) (788.48)
ace: Bengaluru ace: Mumbai ace: Mumbai . . B
Date- 06 Novermnber 2024 Date- 06 Novernber 2024 Date- 06 Novernber 2024 e Proceeds remve;ted or planned to be reinvested as (20,344.06) (20,344.06) (20,344.06)
per REIT Regulations
Amit];in _ _ e Investment in shares or debentures or shareholder (8,870.00) - (8,870.00) (8,870.00)
Chief Financial Officer debt of Asset SPVs and/ or CIOP/ Operating Service
Place: Mumbai Provider or other similar investments
Date: 06 November 2024 e Lending to Assets SPVs and/ or CIOP/ Operating - - - -

Service Provider

3 Add: Proceeds from sale (transfer or liquidation or - - - -
redemption or otherwise realization) of investments,
assets or shares of/ interest in Asset SPVs not distributed
pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest as per REIT
Regulations, if such proceeds are not intended to be
invested subsequently.
4 Add: Any other income received at the Brookfield REIT 95.69 52.85 113.93 166.78
level and not captured herein, or refund/ waiver/ cessation
of any expenses/ liability.
5 Less: Any other expense (whether in the nature of (56.51) (116.15) (93.45) (209.60)
revenue or capital expenditure) or any liability or other
payouts required at the Brookfield REIT level, and not
captured herein.

6  Less: Any payment of fees, including but not limited to:

e Trustee fees - - (2.95) (2.95)
e REIT Management Fees (39.13) (47.39) (39.13) (86.52)
e Valuer fees (1.27) (16.22) (2.62) (18.84)
e Legal and professional fees (9.78) (16.38) (24.58) (40.96)

e Trademark license fees - - - -
e Secondment fees - B - i

7 Add: Cash flow received from Asset SPV and investment
entity, if any including to the extent not covered above:

e repayment of the debt in case of investments by way of debt - - - -
e proceeds from buy-backs/ capital reduction - - - -

8 Add/ (Less): Debt drawdown/ (payment) of interest and repayment - - - -
on external debt (including any loans, bonds, debentures or other
form of debt funding) at the Brookfield REIT level.
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Additional disclosures as required by Paragraph 4.6 to SEBl master circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to guidance under Paragraph 4.6 to SEBI master circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-

PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116

(i) Brookfield India REIT - Standalone

For the year
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For the half year

For the quarter

Particulars

Sr.

ended
31 March 2024

ended

30 September

No.

30 September

31 March 2024

(Audited)

2023

(Unaudited)
(Unaudited)

2023
(Unaudited)
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estate properties held directly by the Brookfield REIT, to the
extent not covered above (if any).

Add/(Less): Other adjustments, including but not limited to
net changes in security deposits, working capital, etc.

Standalone Brookfield REIT level (net of any tax refunds).
NDCF

Less: Income tax and other taxes (if applicable) at the
10  Add/(Less): Cash inflows and outflows in relation to any real

I

9

4,134.06 3,571.14 7,705.20

1,927.04

The difference between SPV level NDCF and REIT level NDCF is primarily on account of utilization of opening cash at the SPV level for the

quarter and half year ended 30 September 2023.

a)

The difference between REIT level NDCF and distributions to unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2024 and 30 September 2023 is
on account of utilization of surplus NDCF post distribution to unitholders till 30 September 2023 and 30 June 2023 respectively.

b)

Material accounting policies (refer note 2)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS

Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Brookprop Management Services Private Limited

(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT)

Firm Registration No.: 015125N

CEO and Managing Director
DIN No. 00009964

Place: Mumbai

Alok Aggarwal

Ankur Gupta
DIN No. 08687570
Place: Mumbai

Director

Membership No: 110815

Anand Subramanian
Place: Bengaluru

Partner

Date: 06 November 2024

Date: 06 November 2024

Date: 06 November 2024

Amit Jain
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024
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(-) any capital expenditure on existing assets owned / leased by the SPV
or Holdco, to the extent not funded by debt / equity or from reserves

created in the earlier years.

NDCF for SPV's

(1.00) (8.02)

(7.02)

(3.64)

(3.38)

15.14 247.09 124.58 64.50 527.30 393.22  1,531.43 347.49 1,878.92

159.60

173.75

173.75

Trust's share in Joint venture (50%)

Surplus cash available in SPVs used for distribution of NDCF:

Surplus avaliable on acquisition

33.20
949.13
2,687.51

33.20

949.13
2,480.57

290.04
414.62

77.70
605.00

% 411.09 million has been received post 30 September 2024, but before finalisation and adoption of the financial statements by the Board of directors of Manager
to Trust. This is in compliance with the Revised NDCF Framework pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024.

134.09

309.18

138.12

Surplus cash on account of maturity of deposits

NDCF including surplus cash

1.

206.95

393.22

64.50

381.18

324.32

297.72

Includes input tax credit of Rs. 7.72 million in K1 towards GST on capital expenditure and Rs. 8.01 million in N1 towards GST on loan processing fee since the same

have been adjusted in working capital in cash from operating activities.

2.

3. As per Revised NDCF Framework, finance cost on borrowings includes transaction cost paid of ¥ 21.10 million.

4,

Includes shareholder debt repayments made to external shareholders after 30 September 2024, but before finalisation and adoption of the financial statements
by the Board of directors of Manager to Trust. This is in compliance with the Revised NDCF Framework pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-

2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024.

In order to promote standardisation of framework for computing NDCF, a revised framework was defined by SEBI vide master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-
2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024 (“Revised NDCF Framework”) (erstwhile SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-PoD/P/CIR/2023/185 dated December 6,

5.

2023 on revised NDCF framework). As per the framework, the Manager is required to declare and distribute at least 90% of the NDCF of Brookfield India REIT as
distributions (“REIT Distributions”).This framework is applicable with effect from 1 April 2024. Accordingly, Brookfield India REIT has computed the NDCF for the

quarter ended 30 September 2024 as per the revised framework. Comparatives have not been provided in this framework for all the previous periods presented.

* Refer note 1

Material accounting policies (refer note 2)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Disclosure pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43

(iii) Computation of Net Distributable Cash Flow of subsidiaries of joint venture

For the quarter ended 30 September 2024 (Unaudited)

Particulars Oak Arnon Aspen

Total

Cash flow from operating activities as per Cash Flow Statement of SPVs 428.91 158.68 289.43

877.02

(+) Cash Flows received from SPV's which represent distributions of NDCF computed as
per relevant framework (relevant in case of HoldCos)

(+) Treasury income / income from investing activities (interest income received from
FD, tax refund, any other income in the nature of interest, profit on sale of Mutual
funds, investments, assets etc., dividend income etc., excluding any Ind AS adjustments.
Further clarified that these amounts will be considered on a cash receipt basis)

13.86 0.75 69.08

83.69

(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure / real estate investments, infrastructure / real
estate assets or shares of SPVs or Investment Entity adjusted for the following

e Applicable capital gains and other taxes - - -

e Related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds - - -

e Directly attributable transaction costs - -

e Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(16)(d) of REIT
Regulations or any other relevant provisions of the REIT Regulations

(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure/ real estate investments, infrastructure/ real

estate assets or sale of shares of SPVs or Investment Entity not distributed pursuant to

an earlier plan to re-invest as per Regulation 18(16)(d) of REIT Regulations or any other - - -
relevant provisions of the REIT Regulations, if such proceeds are not intended to be

invested subsequent!

(-) Finance cost on Borrowings, excluding amortisation of any transaction costs as per

Profit and Loss Account and any shareholder debt / loan from Trust (169.97) (110.29) (204.31)

(484.57)

(-) Debt repayment (to include principal repayments as per scheduled EMI's except

if refinanced through new debt including overdraft facilities and to exclude any debt
repayments / debt refinanced through new debt, in any form or equity raise as well as
repayment of any shareholder debt / loan from Trust)

(5.89) (3.94) (7.10)

(16.93)

(-) any reserve required to be created under the terms of, or pursuant to the obligations
arising in accordance with, any: (i). loan agreement entered with banks / financial
institution from whom the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos have availed debt, or (ii).
terms and conditions, covenants or any other stipulations applicable to debt securities
issued by the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or (iii). terms and conditions, covenants
or any other stipulations applicable to external commercial borrowings availed by

the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or (iv). agreement pursuant to which the SPV/
HoldCo operates or owns the real estate asset, or generates revenue or cashflows
from such asset (such as, concession agreement, transmission services agreement,
power purchase agreement, lease agreement, and any other agreement of a like
nature, by whatever name called); or (v). statutory, judicial, regulatory, or governmental
stipulations; or -

(2.42) (1.12) (1.65)

(5.19)

(-) any capital expenditure on existing assets owned / leased by the SPV or Holdco, to (1.32) ) .
the extent not funded by debt / equity or from reserves created in the earlier years. )

(1.32)

NDCF for subsidiaries of joint venture 263.17 44.08 145.45

452.70

Material accounting policies (refer note 2)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 015125N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT)

Anand Subramanian Ankur Gupta

Partner Director

Membership No: 110815 DIN No. 08687570

Place: Bengaluru Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024 Date: 06 November 2024

Alok Aggarwal

CEO and Managing Director
DIN No. 00009964

Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024

Amit Jain

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024
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Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Disclosure pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43
Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43
(iii) Computation of Net Distributable Cash Flow of subsidiaries of joint venture

For the quarter ended 30 June 2024 (Unaudited)

Particulars Oak Arnon Aspen Total

Cash flow from operating activities as per Cash Flow Statement of SPVs 14.33 10.24 (25.22) (0.65)

(+) Cash Flows received from SPV's which represent distributions of NDCF computed
as per relevant framework (relevant in case of HoldCos)

(+) Treasury income / income from investing activities (interest income received

from FD, tax refund, any other income in the nature of interest, profit on sale of

Mutual funds, investments, assets etc., dividend income etc., excluding any Ind AS 0.04 5.96 1.34 7.34
adjustments. Further clarified that these amounts will be considered on a cash

receipt basis)

(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure / real estate investments, infrastructure / real
estate assets or shares of SPVs or Investment Entity adjusted for the following

e Applicable capital gains and other taxes - - - -

e Related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds - - - -

e Directly attributable transaction costs - R B ,

e Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(16)(d) of
REIT Regulations or any other relevant provisions of the REIT Regulations

(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure/ real estate investments, infrastructure/ real

estate assets or sale of shares of SPVs or Investment Entity not distributed pursuant

to an earlier plan to re-invest as per Regulation 18(16)(d) of REIT Regulations or any - - - -
other relevant provisions of the REIT Regulations, if such proceeds are not intended

to be invested subsequently

(-) Finance cost on Borrowings, excluding amortisation of any transaction costs as per

Profit and Loss Account and any shareholder debt / loan from Trust (14.68) (9.82) (17.69) (42.19)

(-) Debt repayment (to include principal repayments as per scheduled EMI's except
if refinanced through new debt including overdraft facilities and to exclude any debt
repayments / debt refinanced through new debt, in any form or equity raise as well
as repayment of any shareholder debt / loan from Trust )

(2.97) (1.97) (3.55) (8.49)

(-) any reserve required to be created under the terms of, or pursuant to the
obligations arising in accordance with, any: (i). loan agreement entered with banks
/ financial institution from whom the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos have availed
debt, or (ii). terms and conditions, covenants or any other stipulations applicable
to debt securities issued by the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or (iii). terms and
conditions, covenants or any other stipulations applicable to external commercial
borrowings availed by the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or (iv). agreement
pursuant to which the SPV/ HoldCo operates or owns the real estate asset, or
generates revenue or cashflows from such asset (such as, concession agreement,
transmission services agreement, power purchase agreement, lease agreement,
and any other agreement of a like nature, by whatever name called); or (v). statutory,
judicial, regulatory, or governmental stipulations; or -

(-) any capital expenditure on existing assets owned / leased by the SPV or Holdco, to
the extent not funded by debt / equity or from reserves created in the earlier years. (1.43) (0.82) (0.04) (2.29)

NDCF for subsidiaries of joint venture 4.71) 3.59 (45.16) (46.28)

Surplus cash available in SPVs used for distribution of NDCF:

Surplus avaliable on acquisition 13.46 8.30 0.35 2211

NDCF including surplus cash 8.75 11.89 (44.81) (24.17)

Material accounting policies (refer note 2)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Brookprop Management Services Private Limited

Firm Registration No.: 015125N (as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT)

Anand Subramanian Ankur Gupta Alok Aggarwal

Partner Director CEO and Managing Director

Membership No: 110815 DIN No. 08687570 DIN No. 00009964

Place: Bengaluru Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024 Date: 06 November 2024 Date: 06 November 2024
Amit Jain

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai
Date: 06 November 2024
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Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per REIT Regulations
Investment in any form as permitted under the REIT Regulations as may

be deemed necessary by the Manager
Add: Proceeds from sale of real estate assets, investments, assets or sale of

Related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds

Directly attributable transaction costs

investments (including cash equivalents), assets or shares of / interest in Asset
Applicable capital gains and other taxes

investments (including cash equivalents),other assets or shares of /interest in
Less: Any expense in the nature of capital expenditure including capitalized
interest thereon (to the parties other than Brookfield REIT), capitalized

as per REIT Regulations, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested
debentures or other instruments held by the Brookfield REIT) charged/

debited to the statement of profit and loss.
security deposits, working capital, deferred/prepaid income or deferred/

Add/(Less): Other adjustments, including but not limited to net changes in

Add: Proceeds from sale / liquidation/transfer/ disposal of real estate assets,
shares of Asset SPVs not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest

Profit / (Loss) after tax as per statement of profit and loss

Add: Depreciation, amortization and impairment as per statement of profit
Add/(Less): Any other item of non-cash expense/ non -cash income (net

of actual cash flows for these items), as may be deemed necessary by the

For example, any decrease/ increase in carrying amount of an asset or of a
liability recognized in statement of profit and loss/income and expenditure

on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value, interest cost as

per effective interest rate method, deferred tax, lease rents recognized on a
Add/less: Loss/gain on sale. transfer/ disposal/ liquidation of real estate assets,
Add: Interest (or other similar payments) on Shareholder Debt (or on
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Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to guidance under Paragraph 6 to SEBI circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016

Additional disclosures as required by Paragraph 6 to SEBI circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016
(ii) Calculation of net distributable cash flows at each Asset SPV
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(-) any capital expenditure on existing assets owned / leased by the SPV
or Holdco, to the extent not funded by debt / equity or from reserves

created in the earlier years.

NDCF for SPV's

(13.32) (63.15)

(49.83)

(1.47)

(0.34) (0.72) (25.43) (7.22)

(14.65)

470.42 424.87 491.68 64.38 984.80 617.01 3,435.71 479.11 3,914.82

382.55

239.56

239.56

Trust's share in Joint venture (50%)

Surplus cash available in SPVs used for distribution of NDCF:
10% of NDCF withheld in line with the Regulations in previous period

Surplus avaliable on acquisition

7.07
335.45
1,040.31

7.07
157.82
1,040.31

7.07

177.62

74.96

82.86

77.74
1,062.54

357.96 162.59 302.89

139.13

Surplus cash on account of maturity of deposits

NDCF including surplus cash

4,640.91 417.18 5,058.09

691.97

835.45 587.46 794.57 64.38

604.54

% 411.09 million has been received post 30 September 2024, but before finalisation and adoption of the financial statements by the Board of directors

1.

of Manager to Trust. This is in compliance with the Revised NDCF Framework pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43

dated 15 May 2024.

As per Revised NDCF Framework, finance cost on borrowings includes transaction cost paid of ¥ 24.83 million.

2.

In order to promote standardisation of framework for computing NDCF, a revised framework was defined by SEBI vide master circular no. SEBI/HO/

3.

DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024 ("Revised NDCF Framework”) (erstwhile SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-PoD/P/CIR/2023/185

dated December 6, 2023 on revised NDCF framework). As per the framework, the Manager is required to declare and distribute at least 90% of the

NDCF of Brookfield India REIT as distributions (“REIT Distributions”).This framework is applicable with effect from 1 April 2024. Accordingly, Brookfield
India REIT has computed the NDCF for the half year ended 30 September 2024 as per the revised framework. Comparatives have not been provided in

this framework for all the previous periods presented.

* Refer note 1

Material accounting policies (refer note 2)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS

Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Brookprop Management Services Private Limited
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BROOKEFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE TRUST

- OUR INVESTOR RELATIONS N STATUTORY DISCLOSURE

- 207-339
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Disclosure pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43
Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43
(iii) Computation of Net Distributable Cash Flow of subsidiaries of joint venture

Particulars

For the half year ended 30 September 2024
(Unaudited)

Oak

Arnon

Aspen

Total

Cash flow from operating activities as per Cash Flow Statement of SPVs

443.24

168.92

264.21

876.37

(+) Cash Flows received from SPV's which represent distributions of NDCF computed
as per relevant framework (relevant in case of HoldCos)

(+) Treasury income / income from investing activities (interest income received
from FD, tax refund, any other income in the nature of interest, profit on sale of
Mutual funds, investments, assets etc., dividend income etc., excluding any Ind AS
adjustments. Further clarified that these amounts will be considered on a cash
receipt basis)

13.90

6.71

70.42

91.03

(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure / real estate investments, infrastructure / real
estate assets or shares of SPVs or Investment Entity adjusted for the following

e Applicable capital gains and other taxes

e Related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds

e Directly attributable transaction costs

e Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(16)(d) of
REIT Regulations or any other relevant provisions of the REIT Regulations

(+) Proceeds from sale of infrastructure/ real estate investments, infrastructure/ real
estate assets or sale of shares of SPVs or Investment Entity not distributed pursuant
to an earlier plan to re-invest as per Regulation 18(16)(d) of REIT Regulations or any

other relevant provisions of the REIT Regulations, if such proceeds are not intended
to be invested subsequentl

(-) Finance cost on Borrowings, excluding amortisation of any transaction costs as per
Profit and Loss Account and any shareholder debt / loan from Trust

(184.65)

(120.11)

(222.00)

(526.76)

(-) Debt repayment (to include principal repayments as per scheduled EMI's except
if refinanced through new debt including overdraft facilities and to exclude any debt
repayments / debt refinanced through new debt, in any form or equity raise as well
as repayment of any shareholder debt / loan from Trust )

(8.86)

(5.91)

(10.65)

(25.42)

(-) any reserve required to be created under the terms of, or pursuant to the
obligations arising in accordance with, any: (i). loan agreement entered with banks
/ financial institution from whom the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos have availed
debt, or (ii). terms and conditions, covenants or any other stipulations applicable
to debt securities issued by the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or (iii). terms and
conditions, covenants or any other stipulations applicable to external commercial
borrowings availed by the Trust or any of its SPVs/ HoldCos, or (iv). agreement
pursuant to which the SPV/ HoldCo operates or owns the real estate asset, or
generates revenue or cashflows from such asset (such as, concession agreement,
transmission services agreement, power purchase agreement, lease agreement,
and any other agreement of a like nature, by whatever name called); or (v). statutory,
judicial, regulatory, or governmental stipulations; or -

(2.42)

(1.12)

(1.65)

(5.19)

(-) any capital expenditure on existing assets owned / leased by the SPV or Holdco, to
the extent not funded by debt / equity or from reserves created in the earlier years.

(2.75)

(0.82)

(0.04)

(3.61)

NDCF for subsidiaries of joint venture

258.46

47.67

100.29

406.42

Surplus cash available in SPVs used for distribution of NDCF:

Surplus avaliable on acquisition

13.46

8.30

0.35

2211

NDCF including surplus cash

271.92

55.97

100.64

428.53

Material accounting policies (refer note 2)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 015125N

Anand Subramanian
Partner

Membership No: 110815
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 06 November 2024

Ankur Gupta

Director

DIN No. 08687570

Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024

Amit Jain

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024

HALF YEARLY REPORT 2023-24

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT)

Alok Aggarwal

CEO and Managing Director

DIN No. 00009964

Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024

275



207-339

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

207 J2qWaA0N 90 :91eq
lequiniy :22e|d

79660000 ON NId

1012941Q Suideue pue 03D
lemae338y Yoy

(113 elpu| pja1p{oolg 8yl 03 Je8eueiA se)
paliwiy 31eAlid s321A13S JudwaSeuely doadyooug
10 SJ012JIJ JO pJrog 241 JO §[eyag uo pue Jo4

20T J2qUIBAON 90 :21e(

20z JaquianoN 90 ‘91

lequinip :@oe|d
12210 [ePpueUlS J31YD
utef ywy

lequiniy :90e|d
0,45/8980 'ON NId

207 J9quiaAoN 90 :31eQ
ninjeduag :ade|d

GL80LL (ON dIysiaquiajy

10123410 JaulIed
eidnp anyuy uejuewe.aqns pueuy

NSZLSL0 "ON UOessISay w4
SIUPIUNOJDY paJaliey)d

S$7173S B SNIMSVH 31110734 /04

payde1le a1ep UaAs Jo 1lodsi uno Jad sy

(z 210U J9JaJ) sapijod Sununodde |elsie|y

"SIUBWISILIS [RIDURUIH PRIEPIOSUOD) PAsUSpU0) 9say Jo 1ued |el8a1ul ue uloj 0G 01 | wodj sajou SuiAuedwodde ay |

66'L98'vy  L0°68S 08'v6v 6E°LYC

LT9LL

(8L0)

8v'96€’L

LL'OLE'L

(a+v) = (0) 40aN

06'L9Y's €9°€LT ¢SvS6 SL99¥Y

8¥°¢S8

(r8LL)

LL'89€E"L

9T'v29’L

(g) sauawnsnfpe jejol

‘(9|gediidde J1 219 ‘xe1 uonNgLIAsIp Yoeq Ang

JO XE} UOIINGIIISIP PUSPIAIP Aue ulpn|dul) UoaJayl Saxel Aue pue ‘(A12aJ1pul
10 A2aJip JaYaIa) 1(3Y plau00g a3yl ueyl Jayio auoAue Ag pjay (sauswiniisul
9|q1aAU0D Auosindwod Suipnppul) saJeys Jo uoionpal [euded Jo syoeg-Ang

J0 suondwapal 4o syuauwAedal Wod) Spaad0id JO U0 SPUPIAIP AUy (SS9

Ll

213 'S9IUBADE 3|gepunial-uou /AINba 01 UONRRJJ Ul SMOJUL USeD ppY

[9ZhT'L €994l veELY (18'Z91)  98'85l

L uoesing epioN

soJie)
Jopue) 1das

sn3sa4

[o]lo)

SY'Sv6

(pa31pneun) Z0Z Y24eIN LE PApUD Jeak yey ay3 o4

0Ev0L

e3e|0)
Jopue)

Ja8eue| a1 Ag Aessadau pawaap aq Aew se ‘113¥ plaioo.lg

uey Jayio sanded 01 “231a sanljigel| /suonediqo Jayio Aue ,saiaiul
panJioe/swniwald /AUsWwnNISUl Yons Jaylo Aue /SaJniuagap /SaJleys
9oUuaJajaJd Jo (uondwapal) Jumopmelp /QuawAedal) 1gap 19N (SSa7)/PPY

sie|nanJed

(zz°sve) (8v9Lz)  (LL'LLL) (eo8LL)  (L06YL)

(59°0)

(es'LEL)

(zrz12)

219 'SpeayJan0 pazijelded
(113 pJa1pooag ueyy Jay1o ssnJed syl 01) UoaJayl 1SaJ1ul pazijended
Suipnjpul aJnyipuadxa |eaded Jo aJnieu ayl Ul asuadxa Auy :ssa

z8'LIg’e 998l L7'0LS Lv'9le

S0°0¢S

(rS°22)

85 v¢ce

SC°0SL

212 ‘aimipuadxa predaud
/Pa.J3J3p JO awodu| pledaud/paliaap ‘jended Suppiom ‘susodap Aundas
Ul sa8ueyd 12U 01 PaljLLl| 10U NG Suipn|pUl ‘siuswISN(pe JaylQ :(Ssa7)/ppY

§1°780'C 9070V €4'99¢€ LceLe

VL'[8C

(4773

€6'859

'SSo| pue 1j0.d O JUBWIRILIS 31 01 PalIgap
/pa8.eyd (113Y plaip{oolg syl Ag pay SIUSWINJISUL J3UI0 JO S3INUsgap
U0 10) 1ga( Jap|oyaleys uo (stuswhed Jejjwis Jay1o J0) 1SaJ91U ppy

‘Apusnbasqgns

PRIS3AUI 94 01 PPUIUI 10U 3Je spadoid Ydns Ji 'suoinenday |13y Jad se
1S9AUl-aJ 01 Ue(d J3ljJea ue 01 Juensind PaINgUISIP 10U SAJS 19SSV JO Saleys
10 3|BS JO SI9SSE 'SIUBLLIISIAU] ‘'SI9SSE 21L1SD |23l JO 3[es WOJ) SPaadoid ppY

Jageue|n aul Aq Auessadau paussp aq
Aew se suone|nSay 113y Y1 Japun panjwiad se wioj Aue U JUSWISaAU| e

suonenSay 1|3y Jod se paisaaulal aq 01 pauue|d IO PaISSAUIR] SPRd0Id e

S1S0D UonDesuel) 3|geINgLNe Adaulq e

uonisinboe Auy e

Spa220.d 3|BS WOJ) PIIISS 9 01 SNP IO PSS SIQaP Pa1eRy

saxel Jayio pue suied [euded sjgedlddy e

:8uImo||o} Y3 Joj paisnipe ‘SAdS
19SSy U1 159J21U1 / JO S2JBYS JO S19SSE ‘(S1us|eAinba ysed Sulpn|pul) SIuswisanUl
'S19SSe 91e31S3 |eaJ Jo [esods|p /I9)suUell/uonepinbl| / 3|es WoJ) Spasd0.d (ppy

'SADS 1955y
U] 359433U1/ JO SaJeys JO SI13SSe JaYI0(SuajeAinbs ysed Suipnjpul) SIuUsWiSsAUl
'S19SSe 218153 [2aJ Jo uonepinbi| /jesodsip /13jsuel "9|es Uo Ule8/sso iSSa|/ppyY

(g6'zLy) (98'807) (96°LEL) (L9'0zl) (¥628)

(¢lv)

8¢'89

8C'C9

2319 ‘siseq aul| 3y3ieas

e U0 paz|ud023J S1UaJ 35e3| ‘Xel Paliajap ‘Poyiawl 31ed 191Ul 3ADay Jad
Se 150D 1S2J31Ul ‘an|eA Jiey e AJ|Igel| ay3 JO 19SSe 9y JO JUSWSINSeaWw uo
2JMipuadxe pue awWodul/sso| pue 1joid 10 1UsWaIeIS Ul paziugodal Aljigel|
e JO JO 13SSE UP JO Junowe 3ulAiied ul aseaJdul /ases dsap Aue ‘sjdwexs Jo4
"J28eur

o3 Aq Aupssadau paussp 9q Aew Se ‘(SWa3l 9533 JOJ SMOJJ YSed [enide Jo
19U) 9WO0DUI YSeD- UoU /25Uadxa Ysed-uou Jo Wwall JaY10 Auy :(SS97)/ppy

4 4r4: T4 A ATA" Ll'6LC ¢6'8L¢C

8L°LLL

LV'6

0S°€eLL

¢6'09¢

Sso| pue
104d Jo 1uBW1e1s Jad se Juswiliedwi pue uopnezpiowe ‘uonepaldaq :ppy

jyuawnisnlpy

(L6'€6S)  v¥'SLE (z276Sh) (92vz2) (Lz9L)

L uoesing epioN

SOMEA Jopues 1das

sn3sa4

99°LL

LL°[T

(p33pneun) 20z Ya1en LE papus Jeak ey ay3 Jod

(60v52)

e3e|0)
Jopue)

AdS 19SSV Yoea 1e SMO[} Yysed 3|qeingiiisip 3au jo uoizejnaje) (i)
9LL/£202/412/d/Z-A0d-SHAA/OH/193S "ON Je[naJ Jaisew |g3s 01 9'v ydeSesed Jopun adueping o1 juensind (4DAN) SMO|4 Yse) 3|qenquiasid 19N
9LL/£202/412/d/Z-A0d-SHAA/OH/193S "ON Je[na. Jaisew |g3s 031 9'v ydeSeded Aq palinbai se sainsopasip [euonippy

(v) (3uojepueis)
sso| pue 31j0.4d jo Jusawajels 1ad se xe} J33e (sso) / 3Joid

sie|nanJed

HALF YEARLY REPORT 2023-24

BROOKEFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE TRUST



207-339

184-206

180-183

118-179

50-117

18-49

I}
1T

1
1 r

1
1 r

1
Lk

STATUTORY DISCLOSURE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OUR PROPERTIES ESG AT A GLANCE OUR INVESTOR RELATIONS

WHO WE ARE

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

"SIUBWIRILIS [RIDURUIH PRIEPIOSUOD) PAasUSpU0) 9sayl Jo 1ied [ei821ul ue wloj 0G 01 | wolj sajou SuiAuedwodde ay |

70z JaquianoN 90 a1
lequiniy :22e|d

79660000 'ON NId
10123J1g 8uideue|\ pue 03D
|lemue88y Moy

(113 elpu| pja1p{oolg 8yl 03 Je8eue|p se)
paliwi d1eALld S921A13S JusawaSeuely doadxooig
4O SJ0303JI[ JO pJeog 8yl 4O J|eyaq uo pue o4

20T J2qUIaAON 90 :21e(

lequiniy :ade|d
19210 [e1DUBUIS JBIUD

utef ywy
¥20Z 19qUIaAON 90 23eQ ¥20Z 19qWaAON 90 :23eQ
lequinip :@oe|d ninjeSusg :a2e|d
0/5/8980 'ON NI GL80LL ‘ON diysisquiaiy
10129l Joulled
eydno anyuy uejueweaqns pueuy

NSZLGLO “ON UOIIIISISDY Wi
S1Ueljunoody peodaliey)

S173S B SNIMSVH 3111073Q /04

payde1le 91ep UaAs Jo 1odsl uno Jad sy

(z ou Jayal) sanijod Sununodde [elIR1eN

80°L9Z'v Sv'val (86°20€) 197299

62'00s'L  (Lg'1) €8°600°L

SE'8€T'L

(a+v) = (3) 42aN

620667 (6€°£9) (65°6€1L) £9°988

LLzel't  (08°2L) 18LTT'L

86°€0€’L

(g) sauawisnipe |ejoL

‘(3)gedyidde J| 219 ‘xe1 uonNgLASIp Y2eq Ang

10 Xe1 uonNgLisIp puapIiAip Aue Suipnppul) uoaJlayl saxel Aue pue ‘(ApdaJipul
10 A2241p JayIa) 113Y PIRIp004g 24l Ueyl Jay1o auoAue Ag play (Siuawnisul
3|q4aAu0d Alosindwod Suipnpul) saeys jo uoianpad [eyded Jo syoeqg-Anq

10 suondwapal 4o syusuAedal wWoJ) Spa30id JO U0 SPUIPIAIP AUy SS9

Zl

213 'S9DUBADE 3|gepun)aJ-uou /AlINba 01 UO[E[aJ Ul SMOJUl USeD ppy

Ll

(Lr'ves’el) (08'87L'S)  (L6/€T0L) 80'/C

L9°€0C'L - 10'8¢9

99°eve

“198euey ayy Ag Alessadau paswiasp aq Aew

Se 1|3y pleIpoolg ueyl Jsyio sanued 03 "1 Ssiljigel| /Suones||qo Jayio Aue
/1S2J31Ul panJdde/swiniwaid AusWwnIIsUl Ydns Jaylo Aue /Sainiusgsp /saJeys
9duaJa)a.d Jo (uondwapal) Jumopmelp /QuawlAedal) 1gap 19N (SS37)/PPY

L uoesing  eploN

ejo, soJle;
1ol o lopued  1das

epioN

sNn)sa
3594 doD 1dds

eje)|o)
Jopue)

sie|ndied

(paupneun) £zoz Jaquiaidas og papua Jeak ey ay3 Jod

(v6°LEL) (L 1€) (82£°2€) (zezen)

(¢L0¢) (650) (S6'sl)

(S'z620)

219 'speayJano
pazijended (113y plauy0olg uey) Jaylo sapied syl 03) UoaIayl 1SaJa)U|
pazijeuded Suipnjpul ainlpuadxa |eaded Jo ain1eu a3yl Ul asuadxe Auy :ss97

TS6L0°LL  09/LL'S €9°€L6'6 69809

91'LS (6712 79°0L

60€5S

'2313 ‘aumipuadxe predaud
/Pa.Ja)ap Jo awodu| pledaid/paliaiep ‘jeuded Supom ‘sysodsp Aundas
Ul sa8ueyd 18U 01 paliWl| 10U ING Suipnpul ‘ssuswiasnipe Jayio (ssa1)/ppy

vL'eLs’L eesL €988 89'69¢

19'9¢e€e - SOeEvL

76'195

'SSO| pue 1j0.d JO JUBWIILIS 31 01 PalIgap
/paSeud (113Y plap{oolg syl Ag play SIUSWINIISUL J3Y10 JO S3InuUsgap
U0 10) 1ga( Jap|oyaJeys uo (siuswhed Jejjuis Jay1o J0) 1SaJs1U| ppy

‘Apusnbasqgns

PR1S3AUI 94 01 PaPUIUI 10U 3Je Spaad0id YdNs JI ‘suoineinday 13y Jad se
1S9AUl-aJ 03 Ueld J3jjJea ue 03 Juensind PaINQUISIP 10U SAJS 19SSY JO Saleys
10 3|BS IO SI9SSE 'SIUBLLIISIAU ‘'S19SSE 21R1SD |29 JO 9[eS WOJ) SPad0Id PPy

Ja8eue|\ ay1 Ag A1essadau paulaap aq
Aew se suopeinNday 113y ay3 Japun paiwiad se wioy AUe Ul JUSWISIAU| e

suonengay 1|3y Jad se paisanulal aq 01 pauue|d IO PaISSAUISI SPId0ld e

S1S0D UONDeSURIL 3|grINgLNe ADaJiq e

uonisinboe Auy e

Spa220.d 3|8S WIOJ) PRISS 9g 01 SNP IO P|NSS SIGaP Pa1eRy

saxel Jayio pue suled [euded sjgedddy e

:8UIMo]|04 DU 40 patsnpe 'SAdS
19SSY U] 1S2J31Ul / JO SaJBYS J0 S195Se ‘(Sius|eAinba ysed ujpn|dul) SJUsWISaAUl
'S1955e 91P1S3 B3l JO [BSOdSIp /49jsueli/uopepinbi| / 9jes WoJj Spaad0ld :ppy

SAJS 1955V
U1 159433U1/ JO S3JeysS JO SI13SSe JaY10/(S)ualeAinba ysed Suipnpul) S1UsWiSaAUl
'S19SSe 218153 |eaJ Jo uonepinbi| /jesodsip /13 sueJl "9|es Uo Ule8/sso 'SSa|/ppy

(8v°L6Y) (€571 e (£09L1)

96'€6 9.8 (evgzl)

(09'98)

213 ‘siseq aul| 1ySiens

e U0 paz|ud023J S1UaJ 3se3| ‘Xel paliajap ‘Poyiawl 31l 15a193ul aADaye Jad
Se 150D 1S2J31Ul ‘an|eA Jiej e AJljigel| a4 JO 19SSe 2y JO JUsWaInseal uo
aJnypusdxa pue sWodUl/SSo| pue 1j0ad Jo Jusweels ul paziusodal Aljigel|
e JO 10 13SSEe Ue Jo Junowe 3uiAiied uj aseaudul /aseanap Aue ‘ajdwexs 1o
"J28eury

a3 Aq Auessadau pallasp aq ABW Se (SWall 953U J0J SMOJJ 4Sed |enide Jo
J2U) 3WO0DU| YSed- uou /asuadxa ysed-uou Jo wiall 1aylo Auy (ssa1)/ppy

Ly'sev'L SL°CS 87’59 19'8.¢

orLel e 87079

14N44s

Sso| pue
Jjoud jo Juswaiels Jad se uswiiedul| pue uojezpiowe ‘uonealdaq ppy

Juawisnlpy

(tz62L) ve'Lee (6€7€91) (90°€22) (zv'z62) vl (86°L12)

(€9'59)

(v) (uojepuess)
sso| pue 31304d Jo Juawajels Jad se xe) 4aye (ssoq) / 340id

L uoesing  eploN

elo soJie
1ol el dopue) 1das

epioN

Sn}sa4 doD 1dds

eje)|o)
Jopue)

sie|naaed

(paupneun) £zoz Jaquiaidas og papua Jeak ey ay3 Jod

‘ON
S

AdS 19SSV Yoea 1e SMO[} Yysed 3|qeingiiisip 3au jo uoizejnaje) (i)
911/£20Z/412/d/2-A0d-SHAA/OH/IF3S "ON Je[naJid Ja3sew |g3S 03 9 ydeiSesed Jopun adueping o3 juensind (12QN) SMO|4 ysed 3|qeinquiisia 18N
9LL/£202/412/d/Z-A0d-SHAA/OH/193S "ON Je[nJid Jaisew |g3s 01 9'v YydeiSesed Aq pasinbau se saunso|asip [euonippy

279

HALF YEARLY REPORT 2023-24

BROOKEFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE TRUST



207-339

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

70z J3qWanoN 90 31eQ
lequiniy :a2e|d

¥9660000 'ON NIQ
10123J1g 8uideue|\ pue 03D
|lemue88y Mo|v

(113 elpul pjaip{oolg ay3 03 Je8eue|y se)

20T J2qUIaAON 90 :21e(
lequiniy :a2e|d
1910 [BIPUBLIA JAIUD

ute[ ywy
20T 19qWaA0N 90 :31eQ 20T 12qUWiaAoN 90 :31eQ
lequinip :@oe|d ninjeSusg :a2e|d
0£5/8980 ON NI GL8OLL :ON diysiequis iy
101031 Jaulied
eydno anyuy uejueweaqns pueuy

NGZLSLO "ON UO1eIISI39y Wil4

paliwiy 31eAldd S921A13S JudwaSeuely doadyooag SIURIUNOJDY paJalieyd

10 S10393J10 JO pJeog ay3 4O J[eyaq uo pue Jo4

ST113S B SNIMSVYH 3111073Q /04
payde11e 91ep UdAS JO 1iodal ino Jad sy

"SIUBWIRILIS [RIDURUIH PRIEPIOSUOD) PAsUSpU0D) 9say) Jo 1ied |el8a1ul ue wloy 0g 01 | wolj sa1ou SuiAuedwodde ay |

(z 210U JoJaJ) sapijod Sununodde el

LO'6CL'6 LSEVL c8’l6l 16°€06 95'9/2'c  (SS°L) LE90V'C

15°809°C (a+v) = (D) 40aN

8L'zsv'ol  €Z9vL €6'7L8 ZLLSE'L  6L°S¥9'T  (¥9°0€) 75'965'C

€2°826'C (g) syuawisnlpe |ejo}

‘(9)gedidde J1 219 ‘xe1 uonNgLASIp Yoeq Ang
10 X1 UoNNQISIp PUspIAIp Aue Suipn|pul) uoaJlayl saxel Aue pue ‘(Apdalipul
- 10 A2241p JayIa) 113Y PIa1p004g 2yl ueyl Jayio auoAue Ag play (Siuawniisul
3|qaAu0d Alosindwod Suipnpul) saeys jo uoianpad [eyded Jo sydeqg-Ang
10 suondwapal 4o syusawAedal Wod) Spad0id U0 U SPUIPIAIP AUY SS9 7L

213 'S9IUBADE 3|gepunial-uou /AINbs 01 UORB[RJ Ul SMOUl USeD :ppyY L L

WwLrzoer) (LzeLs's) (€9961°0L) (€£'SEL)  LyTog’L - 9Y'ELS'L

L uoesing epioN
soJie) Jopue) 1das snysaj [o]lo)

(Pa31pNY) $Z0Z Yd4eN LE Papua Jeak ays Jo4

Ja8eue| a1 Ag Aessadau pawaap aq Aew se ‘113¥ plaioo.lg

uey Jayio sanded 01 “231a sanljigel| /suonediqo Jayio Aue ,saiaiul

panJioe/swniwald /AUsWwnNISUl Yons Jaylo Aue /SaJniuagap /SaJleys
9oUuaJajaJd Jo (uondwapal) jumopmelp /QuawAedal) 1gap 19N (SS9T1)/PPY 0L

96°LVE

e3e|0)
Jopue) siejnonJied

(zr'ego’L) (czsve)  (68€vl) (ceove)  (EL6Ll)  (pTe) (L¥"€92)

219 ‘speayJtano pazijeided
(£8'1709) ‘(113Y pIa1pjooldg ueyy Jayio sanJed ayy 01) UoaJIay] 1saJa1ul pazijended
Suipnjpul aJniipuadxa [eaded Jo ainieu ayl Ul asuadxa Auy :ssa7 6

veLgT'6lL  9T96L'S  vOV8Y'0L  L1'SC8 L&LLS (€8°€V) [4ac(o14

219 ‘aimipuadxa predaud
€ee0e’l /P33P JO awodu| pledaud/paliaap ‘lended Suppiom ‘sysodap Aundas
Ul sa8ueyd 12U 01 PaljLLl| 10U ING Suipn|pUl ‘siuswISN(pe JaylQ :(SSa7)/pPpY 8

LT LS9'E 8C'LLY 9€'9SY V8’ LvL SEYC9 - JAAXE

'SSO| pue 1joad Jo JusWaeIs ayy 031 paligap
£8°0TL'L /pa8Jeyd (113Y pia10olg oyl Ag play S1uswNASUl JOYI0 JO S9Inuagap
U0 10) 193 Jop|oyaJeys uo (sjuswAed Jejiuis Jaylo Jo) 1Sa1aiul \ppy /

‘Apusnbasgns

PISaAUI 94 01 PaPUBIUI 10U 3Je spadoid Udns Ji 'suoineinday |3y Jad se

1SaAUl-aJ 01 Ue(d J3ljJea ue 01 Juensind PaINgISIP 10U SAJS 19SSV JO Saleys
1O 3|BS JO SI9SSE 'SIUBLLIISIAU] ‘'S19SSE 21L1SD |23l JO 9[es WOJ) SPaadold PPy 9

JaSeue|\ oyl Ag Auessadau pawissp 29
Aew se suoneinday 113y oy Japun paniwad se wioy Aue uj JUsWISaAU| e

suonensay
113Y Jad se pa1saaulal 2g 01 pauue(d 4o PRISSAUIDI SPad0ld

- S1S0D UolDesUe) 9|geingune Apalig e

- uonisinboe Auy e

- Spaad0.d 9|eS WO} P3[1IAS 97 01 NP JO PI|ISS SIGP paledy e

saxel Jayio pue suied [euded sjgedlddy e

:8uImo||o} Y3 Joj paisnipe ‘SAdS
S 19SSy U1 159J21U1 / JO S2JBYS JO S19SSE ‘(S1us|eAinba ysed Sulpn|pul) SIuswisanUl
'S19SSe 91e31S3 |eaJ Jo [esods|p /I9)suUell/uonepinbl| / 3|es WoJ) Spasd0.d (ppy S

"SAS 19SSV
- U] 359433U1/ JO SaJeys JO SI13SSe JaY10(S1uajeainbs ysed Suipnjpul) SIusWwissAUl
'S19SSe 218153 |23l Jo uonepinbi| /jesodsip /13jsuell "9|es Uo Ule8/sso iSSa|/ppY ¥

(L¥'SL6) (6 Lzy)  (ve8zl) (89967) ¢O'LL 79y (t71°09)

2319 ‘siseq aul| 3y3ieas

e U0 paz|ud023J S1UaJ 35e3| ‘Xel Paliajap ‘Poyiawl 31ed 191Ul 3ADay Jad

Se 150D 1S2J31Ul ‘an|eA Jiey e AJ|Igel| ay3 JO 19SSe 9y JO JUSWSINSeaWw uo

2JMipuadxe pue awWodul/sso| pue 1joid 10 1UsWaIeIS Ul paziugodal Aljigel|

e JO JO 13SSE UP JO Junowe 3ulAiied ul aseaJdul /ases dsap Aue ‘sjdwexs Jo4

"J28eur

o3 Aq Aupssadau paussp 9q Aew Se ‘(SWa3l 9533 JOJ SMOJJ YSed [enide Jo
19U) 9WO0DUI YSeD- UoU /25Uadxa Ysed-uou Jo Wwall JaY10 Auy :(SS97)/ppy IS

(zevD)

68°LLL'T LV'SLL 65 7re €G°LSS LT6VC 6L°L1 86°€L8

Sso| pue

9T’s89 104d Jo 1uBW1e1s Jad se Juswiliedwi pue uopnezpiowe ‘uonepaldaq :ppy 4

jyuawnisnlpy

(LL'eze’L) 87'L6S (L1°€29) (18°Lvy) (€9'89€) 60°6C (1z'061)

soJiey PUCRHRIRDENERIGN snisa4
: Jopued 1das

(Pa31pNY) $Z0Z Yd4eN LE Papua Jeak ays Jo4

(v) (3uojepueis)

(z61€) sso| pue 3yoad o Juawalels 1ad se xe3 Jaie (sso) / 31Joad L

ejexjoy
Jopue) sie|nanJed

AdS 19SSV Yoea 1k SMO[} Ysed 3]qeingliisip 3au jo uoiejnaje) (i)

9LL/€£20Z/¥12/d/2-A0d-SHAA/OH/193S "ON Je|naJid Jaisew |g3s 03 9°'v ydeiSeled Japun adueping o3 juensind (31DAN) SMo|4 ysed 3|qeInquisia 39N
9LL/€£20Z/¥12/d/Z-A0d-SHAA/OH/193S "ON JejnaJid Jasew |g3s 03 9y ydeiSeted Aq paJinbai se sainsojdsip [euoiippy

281

HALF YEARLY REPORT 2023-24

BROOKEFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE TRUST

(o}
.O

N



18-49

_ 50-117

_ 118179

180-183 184-206 207-339
1 1 L |

WHO WE ARE

- OUR PROPERTIES

" ESG AT A GLANCE

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1.

ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE
The interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (‘Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements’)
comprise financial statements of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust (‘Brookfield India REIT" or ‘Trust’) and its
subsidiaries namely Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited ('SPPL Noida’), Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures
Private Limited (‘Candor Kolkata’), Festus Properties Private Limited (‘Festus’), Seaview Developers Private Limited
('SDPL Noida'), Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited (“Candor Gurgaon 1"/"G1"), Kairos Properties
Private Limited (Formerly known as Kairos Property Managers Private Limited) (“Kairos"/"Downtown Powai”) and
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited (‘CIOP’) (individually referred to as ‘Special Purpose Vehicle’ or ‘'SPV" and
together referred to as ‘Brookfield India REIT Portfolio companies’ or ‘Group’) and a Joint Venture namely Rostrum
Realty Private Limited (“Rostrum”). The SPVs are companies domiciled in India.

Brookprop Management Services Private Limited (the ‘Settlor’) has set up the Brookfield India Real Estate Trust
on 17 July 2020, as an irrevocable trust, pursuant to the Trust Deed, under the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act,
1882 and the Trust has been registered with SEBI as a Real Estate Investment Trust on 14 September 2020 under
Regulation 6 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014. The
Trustee to Brookfield India Real Estate Trust is Axis Trustee Services Limited (the ‘Trustee’) and the Manager for
Brookfield India Real Estate Trust is Brookprop Management Services Private Limited (the ‘Manager’).

The objectives of Brookfield India REIT is to undertake activities in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI

REIT Regulations and the Trust Deed. The principal activity of Brookfield India REIT is to own and invest in rent or
income generating real estate and related assets in India with the objective of producing stable and sustainable
distributions to Unitholders.

Brookfield India REIT acquired the following SPVs by acquiring all the equity interest held by the Sponsor and certain
members of Sponsor Group (refer note 41) on 08 February 2021. In exchange for these equity interests, the above
shareholders have been allotted 127,892,403 Units of Brookfield India REIT valued at ¥ 275/- each.

Brookfield India REIT went public as per its plan for Initial Public Offer of Units after obtaining the required approvals
from the relevant authorities. The Units were allotted to the successful applicants on 08 February 2021 and 11

February 2021.

All these Units were subsequently listed on the National Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) on

16 February 2021.

The brief activities and shareholding pattern of the SPVs are provided below:

Name of SPV

Activities

Shareholding up to 07 February
2021 (in percentage)

Shareholding from 08 February 2021
(in percentage)

SPPL Noida

Developing and leasing of
commercial real estate property
in India, primarily in IT/ITeS
sector in Sector 62, Noida, Uttar
Pradesh.

BSREP India Office Holdings Pte.

Ltd.: 100%
BSREP Moon C1 L.P.: 0.00% (10
Shares)

Brookfield India REIT : 100%
Candor India Office Parks Private
Limited : 0.00% (1 share) (as
nominee of Brookfield India REIT)

Candor Kolkata

Developing and leasing of
commercial real estate property

in India, primarily in IT/ITeS Special
Economic Zone (SEZ) in New Town,
Rajarhat, Kolkata and Sector 21,
Dundahera Gurugram.

“BSREP India Office Holdings V
Pte. Ltd.: 99.97%

BSREP India Office Holdings Pte.

Ltd.: 0.03%"

Brookfield India REIT : 100%
Candor India Office Parks Private
Limited : 0.00% (1 share) (as
nominee of Brookfield India REIT)

ClopP

Providing management related
service including facilities
management service and property
management services.

BSREP Moon C1 L.P.: 99.99%
BSREP Moon C2 L.P.:0.01%

Brookfield India REIT : 100%
Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech
Structures Private Limited : 0.00%
(1 share) (as nominee of Brookfield
India REIT)

Festus

Developing and leasing of commercial
real estate property in India, primarily
in IT/ITeS Special Economic Zone (SEZ)
in Powai, Mumbai.

Kairos Property Managers Pvt.
Ltd.:10.76%

BSREP Il India Office Holdings Il
Pte. Ltd.:89.24%

Brookfield India REIT : 100%
Candor India Office Parks Private
Limited : 0.00% (1 share) (as
nominee of Brookfield India REIT)
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During the year ended 31 March 2022, Brookfield India REIT acquired the following Special Purpose Vehicle (‘'SPV')
by acquiring all the equity interest held by certain members of Sponsor Group (refer note 41) on 24 January 2022. In
exchange for these equity interests, the above shareholders have been paid cash of ¥ 8,334.57 million and allotted
15,463,616 Units of Brookfield India REIT valued at ¥ 294.25 each. These Units were subsequently listed on the
National Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) on 01 February 2022.

Name of SPV Activities

Shareholding up to 23 January

2022 (in percentage)

Seaview Developers  Developing and leasing of commercial BSREP India Office Holding IV Brookfield India REIT : 100%

Private Limited real estate property in India, primarily ~ Pte. Ltd.: 99.96% Candor India Office Parks Private

('SDPL Noida’) in IT/ITeS Special Economic Zone BSREP India Office Holdings Pte. Limited : 0.00% (1 share) (as
(SEZ) in Sector 135, Noida, Uttar Ltd.: 0.04% nominee of Brookfield India REIT)
Pradesh.

Shareholding from 24 January 2022
(in percentage)

During the year ended 31 March 2024:

Brookfield India REIT acquired controlling stake in Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited (“Candor
Gurgaon 1"/"G1") and Kairos Properties Private Limited (Formerly known as Kairos Property Managers Private Limited)
(“Kairos"/"Downtown Powai") by acquiring 50% equity interest from certain members of Sponsor Group (refer note 41)
on 18 August 2023 and 28 August 2023 respectively. The purchase consideration for acquiring 50% stake in Candor
Gurgaon 1 was discharged by paying cash of ¥ 4,533.04 million. The purchase consideration for acquiring 50% stake in
Kairos was discharged by allotting 12,696,800 number of Units at ¥ 315.04 per Unit, aggregating to ¥ 4,000 million, and
cash consideration of ¥ 8,277.70 million thereby resulting in a total consideration of ¥ 12,277.70 million. These Units
were subsequently listed on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and BSE Limited (BSE) on 31 August
2023.

Name of SPV Activities Shareholding up to 17 August 2023

(in percentage)
Candor Gurgaon One Developing and leasing of BSREP India Office Holdings Il Pte.
Realty Projects Private commercial real estate property Ltd.: 99.94%
Limited (“Candor Gurgaon in India, primarily in IT/ITeS BSREP India Office Holdings Pte. Ltd.:
1"7"G1") Special Economic Zone (SEZ)in 0.06%
Sector 48, Gurugram, Haryana.

Shareholding from 18 August 2023
(in percentage)

Brookfield India REIT : 50%

Reco Cerium Private Limited : 50%

Name of SPV Activities Shareholding up to 27 August 2023

(in percentage)
Developing and leasing of Project Diamond Holdings (DIFC) Brookfield India REIT : 50%
Limited (Formerly known commercial real estate property Limited: 99.99% Reco Europium Private Limited :
as Kairos Property in India, primarily in Powai, Project Cotton Holdings One (DIFC) ~ 50%
Managers Private Limited) Mumbai, Maharashtra. Limited: 0.001%
("Kairos"/"Downtown Powai")

Shareholding from 28 August 2023
(in percentage)

Kairos Properties Private

During the period ended 30 September 2024:

Brookfield India REIT has acquired equity interest in a joint venture by acquiring 50% of share capital (on a fully diluted
basis) of Rostrum Realty Private Limited (“Rostrum”) which owns, operates and manages, 3.3 Msf of portfolio, directly and
through its subsidiaries (i) Oak Infrastructure Developers Limited (“Oak”); (ii) Aspen Buildtech Limited (“Aspen”); and (iii)
Arnon Builders & Developers Limited("Arnon”), at an acquisition price of ¥ 60,000 million, from the existing shareholders
of Rostrum i.e. (i) Bharti (SBM) Holdings Private Limited, (ii) Bharti (RM) Holdings Private Limited, (iii) Bharti (RBM)
Holdings Private Limited, (iv) Bharti (Satya) Trustees Private Limited on behalf of Bharti (Satya) Family Trust and (v) Bharti
Enterprises Limited, (vi) Bharti (SBM) Holdings Private Limited jointly with Sunil Bharti Mittal, (vii) Bharti (RM) Holdings
Private Limited jointly with Rakesh Bharti Mittal, and (viii) Bharti (RBM) Holdings Private Limited jointly with Rajan Bharti
Mittal (collectively referred to as “Bharti Sellers”) on 21 June 2024. The purchase consideration for acquiring 50% share
capital of Rostrum was discharged by way of allotment of 4,09,30,000 units of Brookfield India REIT to the Bharti Sellers
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at a price of ¥ 300 per unit on a preferential basis, aggregating to ¥ 12,279 million. These Units were subsequently listed
on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and BSE Limited (BSE) on 25 June 2024.

Name of Joint Venture Activities

Shareholding up to 21 June 2024 (in percentage)

Shareholding from 22 June 2024
(in percentage)

i)

Rostrum Realty Private  Leasing, licensing, (

operating and (i)
(i
(

Limited (“Rostrum”)
maintaining the project

=

buildings by the Rostrum  (iv)

itself and through its

subsidiaries in India. v)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)

Bharti (SBM) Holdings Private Limited 12.51%
Bharti (RM) Holdings Private Limited 7.82%
Bharti (RBM) Holdings Private Limited 7.82%
Bharti (Satya) Trustees Private Limited on
behalf of Bharti (Satya) Family Trust 3.13%
Bharti Enterprises Limited 18.72%

Bharti (SBM) Holdings Private Limited jointly
with Sunil Bharti Mittal 0.00%

Bharti (RM) Holdings Private Limited jointly
with Rakesh Bharti Mittal 0.00%

Bharti (RBM) Holdings Private Limited jointly
with Rajan Bharti Mittal 0.00%

Metallica Holdings (DIFC) Limited 50%

Brookfield India REIT : 50%
Metallica Holdings (DIFC)
Limited : 50%

BROOKEFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE TRUST

2.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of Condensed Consolidated
financial statements

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of
Brookfield India REIT comprises:

= the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet,

. the Condensed Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income),

= the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows,

. the Condensed Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Unitholders’ Equity,

= a3 summary of material accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Additionally, it includes the Statement of Net Assets
at Fair Value, the Statement of Total Returns at Fair
Value, the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow
of Brookfield India REIT and each of the SPVs and
other additional financial disclosures as required
under the SEBI (Real Estate Investment Trusts)
Regulations, 2014. The Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements were authorized for issue in
accordance with resolutions passed by the Board of
Directors of the Manager on behalf of the Brookfield
India REIT on 06 November 2024. The Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of
SEBI (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations,
2014, as amended from time to time including any
guidelines and circulars issued there under read with
SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/
CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024 (“REIT Regulations”);
Regulation 52 of the Securities and Exchange

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”,
as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (‘Ind AS') to the
extent not inconsistent with the REIT Regulations
(refer note 15(a)(i) on presentation of “Unit Capital”
as "Equity” instead of compound instruments under
Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation),
read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India.

HALF YEARLY REPORT 2023-24
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a)

Accordingly, these condensed consolidated financial
statements do not include all the information
required for a complete set of financial statements.
These condensed consolidated financial statements
should be read in conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements and related notes included

in the Company's audited consolidated financial
statements under Ind AS as at and for the year
ended 31 March 2024. Accounting policies have been
consistently applied except where a newly issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision
to an existing accounting standard requires a change
in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
are presented in Indian Rupees in Millions, except
when otherwise indicated.

Material accounting policies

Basis of Consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries
The Brookfield India REIT consolidates entities
which it owns or controls. The Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements comprise
the financial statements of the Brookfield India
REIT and its subsidiary SPVs as disclosed in
Note 1. Control exists when the parent has
power over the entity, is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns by using its power over the entity.
Power is demonstrated through existing rights
that give the ability to direct relevant activities,
those which significantly affect the entity’s
returns. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date control commences until the date control
ceases.

The procedure adopted for preparing
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
of Brookfield India REIT is stated below:

1. The Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements have been prepared using the
principles of consolidation as per Ind AS
110 - Consolidated Financial Statements.

2. The financial statements of the Group are
consolidated by combining/adding like
items of assets, liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows.
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(ii)

3. Intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between entities of Brookfield
India REIT are eliminated in full.

4. Thefigures in the notes to accounts and
disclosures have been consolidated line
by line and intragroup transactions and
balances including unrealized profit are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

5. Non-controlling interests in the net assets
(excluding goodwill) of consolidated
subsidiaries are identified separately from
the equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company. The interest of non-
controlling shareholders may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis.

Interest in joint arrangement

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which
two or more parties have joint control. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

Ajoint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. The results of joint ventures are
incorporated in these Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements using the equity method of
accounting as described below:

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost on
the date of acquisition and adjusted thereafter
to recognize the Brookfield India REIT's share
of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit and loss, and Brookfield India
REIT's share of other comprehensive income of
the investee in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill is calculated at excess of cost of
investment over share of fair value of net assets
acquired on the date of acquisition.

b)

9]

d)

Dividends received from joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment.

When Brookfield India REIT s share of losses

in an equity-accounted investment equals or
exceeds its interest in the entity, including

any other unsecured long-term receivables,
Brookfield India REIT does not recognize further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between
Brookfield India REIT and joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of Brookfield India
REIT's interest in these entities. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the

asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees are consistent with the
policies adopted by the Brookfield India REIT.

The carrying amount of equity accounted
investments are tested for impairment in
accordance with the Brookfield India REIT's

policy.

Functional and presentation currency

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
are presented in Indian rupees, which is Brookfield
India REIT's functional currency and the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
Brookfield India REIT operates. All financial
information presented in Indian rupees has been
rounded off to nearest million except unit and per
unit data.

Basis of measurement

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
have been prepared on historical cost basis except
for certain financial instruments measured at

fair value at the end of each reporting period as
explained in the accounting policies below.

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Use of judgments and estimates

The preparation of Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS), to
the extent not inconsistent with the REIT regulations,
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e)

requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimates
are revised and in any future periods affected.

Information about significant areas of estimation
uncertainty and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements is included in the
following notes:

(i) presentation of “Unit Capital” as "Equity” in
accordance with the REIT Regulations instead of
compound instrument (Note 15)

(i) determination of useful life of investment
property (Note 2.2 (g))

(i) determination of recoverable amount / fair value
of investment property (Note 2.2 (g), Statement
of Net Assets at Fair Value, Statement of Total
Return at Fair Value

(iv) determination of lease term (Note 2.2 (n))

(v) recognition / recoverability of deferred tax
assets (Note 2.2 (p) and Note 6

Current versus non-current classification
Brookfield India REIT presents assets and liabilities
in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet based
on current/ non-current classification:

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any
of the following criteria:

= it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for
sale or consumption in, the normal operating
cycle;

= jtisheld primarily for the purpose of being
traded;

= jtis expected to be realized within 12 months
after the reporting date; or

= jtiscash or cash equivalent unlessitis
restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting date.

HALF YEARLY REPORT 2023-24

f)

Brookfield India REIT classifies all other assets as
non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any
of the following criteria:

= jtis expected to be settled in normal operating
cycle of Brookfield India REIT;

= jtis held primarily for the purpose of being
traded,

= itis due to be settled within 12 months after the
reporting date; or

= the Brookfield India REIT does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by
the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

Brookfield India REIT classifies all other liabilities as
non-current.

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of
non-current financial assets/ liabilities respectively.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as
non-current assets and liabilities.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, Brookfield India REIT takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability
and how market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date.

Inputs to fair value measurement techniques are
disaggregated into three hierarchical levels, which
are directly based on the degree to which inputs to
fair value measurement techniques are observable
by market participants:

= Level 1: Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices in

active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date.
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=  Level 2: Inputs (other than quoted prices
included in Level 1) are either directly or
indirectly observable for the asset or liability
through correlation with market data at the
measurement date and for the duration of the
asset’s or liability’s anticipated life.

= Level 3: Inputs are unobservable and reflect
management’s best estimate of what market
participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date. Consideration
is given to the risk inherent in the valuation
technique and the risk inherent in the inputs in
determining the estimate.

Fair value measurement framework is adopted by
Brookfield India REIT to determine the fair value of
various assets and liabilities measured or disclosed
at fair value.

g) Investment properties
Recognition and measurement
Investment property consists of commercial
properties which are primarily held to earn rental
income and commercial developments that are
being constructed or developed for future use as
commercial properties. The cost of commercial
development properties includes direct development
costs, import duties and other non-refundable
purchase taxes, borrowing costs directly attributable
to the development and any directly attributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
its intended use. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
if any.

Equipment and furnishings physically attached and
integral to a building are considered to be part of the
investment property.

Subsequent expenditure and disposal

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the
investment property’s carrying amount only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Brookfield India
REIT and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The cost of the assets not ready for its
intended use before such date, are disclosed as
investment property under development. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when
incurred. When part of an investment property is
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h)

replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognized.

Any gain or loss from disposal of an investment

property is recognized in Statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation
Investment property is depreciated using the

straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.

The useful lives of the assets have been determined
by management after considering nature of assets,
the estimated usage of the assets, the operating
conditions of the assets, past history of replacement
and maintenance support.

The asset's residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

The useful lives of the investment property are
tabulated as below:

Particulars Useful Life (Years)
Buildings 60
Plant and Machinery 4-15
Furniture and Fixtures 5-12
Electrical fittings 4-15
Diesel generator sets 15-25
Air conditioners 15
Office Equipment 5-12
Kitchen Equipment 5
Computers 3-6

Right of Use (Leasehold Land) As per lease term

The fair value of investment property is disclosed in
the statement of net assets at fair value. Fair values
are determined by an independent registered valuer
who holds a recognized and relevant professional
qualification and has recent experience in the
location and category of the investment property
being valued.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises the purchase price, including import
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duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes and
any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to
its working condition for its intended use.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components)
of property, plant and equipment. Likewise, on initial
recognition expenditure to be incurred towards
major inspections and overhauls are required to be
identified as a separate component and depreciated
over the expected period till the next overhaul
expenditure.

Subsequent expenditure and disposal

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the
property, plant and equipment’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow
to the Brookfield India REIT and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.
When part of a property, plant and equipment is
replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced partis
derecognized.

Any gain or loss from disposal of a property, plant
and equipment is recognized in Statement of profit
and loss.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated

using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives. The useful lives of the assets have been
determined by management after considering nature
of assets, the estimated usage of the assets, the
operating conditions of the assets, past history of
replacement and maintenance support.

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided
on pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on which
asset is ready for use (disposed off).

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over

primary period of lease or the useful life of the asset,
whichever is lower.

HALF YEARLY REPORT 2023-24

Estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and
equipment are tabulated as follows: -

Particulars Useful Life (Years)
Buildings 60
Plant and Machinery 5-20
Furniture and Fixtures 3-14
Electrical fittings 10
Air conditioners 3-15
Office Equipment 3-15
Kitchen Equipment 3-5
Vehicle 8
Computers 3-14
Computer Software 5

Intangible assets comprise purchase of software.
Intangible assets are carried at cost and amortized
over a period of 5 years, which represents the period
over which the Brookfield India REIT expects to
derive economic benefits from the use of the assets.

The estimated useful life of the intangible assets and
the amortization period are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and the amortization period is
revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Brookfield India REIT assesses, at each reporting
date, whether there is an indication that a non-
financial asset other than deferred tax assets

may be impaired. If any indication exists, or

when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, Brookfield India REIT estimates the asset's
recoverable amount. Goodwill is tested annually for
impairment.

An impairment loss is recognized in the Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss if the
carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating
unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment loss recognized in respect of a CGU is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce
the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU
on a pro rata basis. A CGU is the smallest identifiable
asset group that generates cash flows that are largely
independent from other assets and groups.

Impairment losses are recognized in the Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, unless it
reverses previous revaluation credited to equity, in
which case it is charged to equity.
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Goodwill (if any) arising from a business combination
is allocated to CGUs or group of CGUs that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or CGU's fair value less costs of disposal

and its value in use. In estimating value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent
market transactions are taken into account. For the
purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot
be tested individually are grouped together into the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
from continuing use that are largely independent of
the cash inflows of other assets or CGU.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are
assessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been

a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss in respect
of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect
of other assets, such a reversal is made only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, if no impairment
loss had been recognized.

Foreign currency transactions

Items included in the financial statements of the
Brookfield India REIT are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which

the Brookfield India REIT operates (‘the functional
currency’). The financial statements are presented in
Indian rupee (INR), which is the Brookfield India REIT
functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions in currencies other
than the functional currency are translated into

the functional currency using the exchange rates

at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains or losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at reporting period end exchange rates
are generally recognized in the Statement of profit
and loss.

k)

Errors, estimates and change in accounting
policies

The Brookfield India REIT revises its accounting
policies if the change is required due to a change in
Ind AS or if the change will provide more relevant and
reliable information to the users of the Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements. Changes in
accounting policies are applied retrospectively,
wherever applicable.

A change in an accounting estimate that results

in changes in the carrying amounts of recognised
assets or liabilities or to profit or loss is applied
prospectively in the period(s) of change. Discovery of
errors results in revisions retrospectively by restating
the comparative amounts of assets, liabilities and
equity of the earliest prior period in which the error
is discovered. The opening balances of the earliest
period presented are also restated.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives
rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(i) Financial Assets - Recognition
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair
value (except for trade receivables which are
initially measured at transaction price) plus, in
the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

Classification and subsequent
measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement,
financial assets are classified in four categories:

= Debt instruments at amortized cost
A'‘debt instrument’ is measured at the
amortized cost if both the following
conditions are met:

a) The assetis held within a business
model whose objective is to hold
assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

b)  Contractual terms of the asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal

BROOKEFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE TRUST

- OUR INVESTOR RELATIONS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortization is included
in interest income in the statement

of profit and loss. The losses arising
from impairment are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

Debt instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
A'debt instrument’ is classified as at the
FVOCI if both of the following criteria are
met:

a) The objective of the business model is
achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows
represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the
FVOCI category are measured initially as
well as at each reporting date at fair value.
Fair value movements are recognized in
the other comprehensive income (OCI).
However, interest income, impairment
losses and reversals and foreign exchange
gain or loss is recognized in statement of
profit and loss. On derecognition of the
asset, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognized in OCl is reclassified from the
equity to statement of profit and loss.
Interest earned whilst holding FVOCI debt
instrument is reported as interest income
using the EIR method.

Debt instruments at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt
instruments. Any debt instrument,

which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as
FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.
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In addition, the Brookfield India REIT may
elect to designate a debt instrument, which
otherwise meets amortized cost or FVOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election
is allowed only if doing so reduces or
eliminates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting
mismatch’). The Brookfield India REIT has
not designated any debt instrument as at
FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the
FVTPL category are measured at fair value
with all changes recognized in Statement of
profit or loss.

=  Equity instruments measured at fair
value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI)
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS
109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading
are classified as at FVTPL. For all other
equity instruments, the Brookfield India
REIT may make an irrevocable election to
present in other comprehensive income
subsequent changes in the fair value. The
Brookfield India REIT makes such election
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition
and is irrevocable.

If the Brookfield India REIT decides

to classify an equity instrument as at
FVOC], then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are
recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling
of the amounts from OCI to statement of
profit and loss, even on sale of investment.
However, the Brookfield India REIT may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity.

Equity instruments included within the
FVTPL category are measured at fair value
with all changes recognized in Statement of
profit and loss.

(ii) Financial Assets - Derecognition
Afinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part
of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized (i.e., removed
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from the Brookfield India REIT balance sheet)
when:

= Therights to receive cash flows from the
asset have expired, or

= The Brookfield India REIT has transferred its
rights to receive cash flows from the asset
or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Brookfield
India REIT has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Brookfield India REIT has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

Brookfield India REIT recognizes loss allowance
using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for
the financial assets which are not fair valued
through profit or loss. Loss allowance for

trade receivables with no significant financing
component and lease receivables is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all financial
assets with contractual cash flows other than
trade receivable and lease receivables, ECLs are
measured at an amount equal to the 12-month
ECL, unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk from initial recognition in which
case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The
amount of ECLs (or reversal) that is required to
adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date,
is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in
the Statement of profit and loss.

Trade Receivables are generally written off
against the allowance only after all means
of collection have been exhausted and the
potential for recovery is considered remote.

Financial liabilities - Recognition and
Subsequent measurement

Brookfield India REIT financial liabilities

are initially measured at fair value less any
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial measurement, these are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate
(‘EIR") method or at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL).

Brookfield India REIT financial liabilities include
trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts.

The measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through
Statement of profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through Statement of profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category
also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Brookfield India REIT that
are not designated as hedging instruments

in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS
109. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognized in Statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through Statement of
profit or loss are designated as such at the initial
date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind
AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated

as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable

to changes in own credit risk are recognized in
OCI. These gains or losses are not subsequently
transferred to statement of profit and loss.
However, the Brookfield India REIT may transfer
the cumulative gains or losses within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are
recognized in Statement of profit and loss. The
Brookfield India REIT has not designated any
financial liability as at fair value through profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Financial liabilities that are not held for trading,
or designated as at FVTPL, are measured
subsequently at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortized cost of a financial
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(v)

liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortized
cost of a financial liability.

Financial liabilities - Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification

is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference between the carrying amount of
a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognized in the Statement of profit and loss as
other gains/(losses).

(vi) Income/loss recognition

= Interestincome
Interest income from debt instruments
is recognized using the effective interest
rate method. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset.
While calculating the effective interest
rate, the Brookfield India REIT estimates
the expected cash flows by considering
all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) but does
not consider the expected credit losses.

=  Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost includes interest expense as
per effective interest rate (EIR) and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent they are regarded
as an adjustment to the interest cost.

HALF YEARLY REPORT 2023-24

Borrowing costs associated with direct
expenditures on properties under
development or redevelopment or
property, plant and equipment are
capitalized. The amount of borrowing
costs capitalized is determined first by
borrowings specific to a property where
relevant, and then by a weighted average
cost of borrowings to eligible expenditures
after adjusting for borrowings associated
with other specific developments. Where
borrowings are associated with specific
developments, the amount capitalized

is the gross borrowing costs incurred
less any incidental investment income.
Borrowing costs are capitalized from the
commencement of the development until
the date of practical completion. The
Brookfield India REIT considers practical
completion to have occurred when the
physical construction of property is
completed and the property is substantially
ready for its intended use and is capable
of operating in the manner intended by
management. Capitalization of borrowing
costs is suspended and charged to the
Statement of profit and loss during

the extended periods when the active
development on the qualifying assets is
interrupted.

(vii) Embedded derivatives
Derivatives embedded in a host contract that
is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 109 are
not separated. Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.

Embedded derivatives closely related to the
host contracts are not separated. Derivatives
embedded in all other host contract are
separated only if the economic characteristics
and risks of the embedded derivative are not
closely related to the economic characteristics
and risks of the host and are measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

m) Leases
At inception of a contract, the Brookfield India
REIT assesses whether a contract is, or contains,
alease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
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contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Brookfield India REIT assesses whether:

= the contract involves the use of an identified
asset - this may be specified explicitly or
implicitly, and should be physically distinct or
represent substantially all of the capacity of a
physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a
substantive substitution right, then the asset is
not identified;

= the Brookfield India REIT has the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from
use of the asset throughout the period of use;
and

= the Brookfield India REIT has the right to direct
the use of the asset. The Brookfield India REIT
has this right when it has the decision making
rights that are most relevant to changing
how and for what purpose the asset is used.
In rare cases where the decision about how
and for what purpose the asset is used is
predetermined, the Brookfield India REIT has the
right to direct the use of the asset if either:

0  the Brookfield India REIT has the right to
operate the asset; or

o the Brookfield India REIT designed the asset
in a way that predetermines how and for
what purpose it will be used.

As a lessee

The Brookfield India REIT recognizes a right-

of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The right of use asset is initially
measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, plus any
initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated
using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of
the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of
the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-

of-use assets are determined on the same basis as
those of property, plant and equipment. In addition,
the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Brookfield India REIT's
incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Brookfield
India REIT uses its incremental borrowing rate as the
discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following:

= fixed payments, including in-substance fixed
payments;

= variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

= amounts expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee; and

= the exercise price under a purchase option that
the Brookfield India REIT is reasonably certain to
exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal
period if the Brookfield India REIT is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option, and
penalties for early termination of a lease unless
the Brookfield India REIT is reasonably certain
not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is

a change in the Brookfield India REIT's estimate of
the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or if the Brookfield India REIT
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

BROOKEFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE TRUST

- OUR INVESTOR RELATIONS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Brookfield India REIT presents right-of-use n)
assets that do not meet the definition of investment
property in ‘property, plant and equipment’ and lease
liabilities (current and non-current) in the statement

of financial position.

The Brookfield India REIT has elected not to

recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
short-term leases of machinery that have a lease

term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value

assets. The Brookfield India REIT recognizes the

lease payments associated with these leases as an i.
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

As a Lessor

The Brookfield India REIT enters into lease
agreements as a lessor with respect to its investment
properties.

Leases for which the Brookfield India REIT is

a lessor are classified as finance or operating
leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance
lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

When the Brookfield India REIT is an intermediate

lessor, it accounts for the head lease and the sub- ii.
lease as two separate contracts. The sub-lease is

classified as a finance or operating lease by reference

to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognized
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

0)
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
are recognized as receivables at the amount of the
Brookfield India REIT's net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Brookfield India REIT's net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease
components, the Brookfield India REIT applies Ind AS
115 to allocate the consideration under the contract
to each component.

HALF YEARLY REPORT 2023-24

"~ STATUTORY DISCLOSURE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Revenue recognition

Revenues are measured based on the transaction
price, which is the consideration, net of tax collected
from customers and remitted to government
authorities such as Goods and Services tax, and
applicable service level credits, discounts or price
concessions. The computation of these estimates
involves significant judgment based on various
factors including contractual terms, historical
experience, expense incurred etc.

Income from Operating Lease Rentals

Assets given under operating lease are included in
investment property. Revenue recognition under

a lease commences when the tenant has a right to
use the leased asset. Generally, this occurs on the
lease commencement date. Rental income from
operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. In determining
the lease term, management considers all facts and
circumstances including renewal, termination and
market conditions.

Income from Operating Lease Rentals also includes
percentage participating rents. Percentage
participating rents are recognized when tenants'’
specified sales targets have been met.

Income from maintenance services

Income from maintenance services consists

of revenue earned from the provision of daily
maintenance, security and administration services,
and is charged to tenants based on the occupied
lettable area of the properties. Income from
maintenance services is recognized when the entity
has satisfied its performance obligation by delivering
services as per terms of contract entered into with
tenants.

Employee benefits
Employee benefits include provident fund, gratuity
and compensated absences.

Provident fund

The Brookfield India REIT ‘s contribution to provident
fund is considered as defined contribution plans and
is charged as an expense in statement of profit and
loss based on the amount of contribution required to
be made as and when services are rendered by the
employees.
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Gratuity

Brookfield India REIT has an obligation towards
gratuity, a defined post-employment benefits plan
covering eligible employees. The present value of
the defined benefit liability and the related current
service cost and past service cost are measured
using projected unit credit method; with actuarial
valuations being carried out at each balance

sheet date. Remeasurements comprising actuarial
gains and losses are recognized immediately in

the balance sheet with a charge or credit to other
comprehensive income in the period in which

they occur. Remeasurements recognized in other
comprehensive income are not reclassified. Past
service cost is recognized in profit or loss when the
plan amendment or curtailment occurs, or when the
Brookfield India REIT recognizes related restructuring
costs or termination benefits, whichever is earlier.

Short-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
services rendered by employees are recognized
during the period when the employees render

the service. These benefits include performance
incentive and compensated absences which are
expected to occur within twelve months after the
end of the period in which the employee renders the
related service.

The cost of short-term compensated absences is
accounted as under:

(@) in case of accumulated compensated
absences, when employees render the services
that increase their entitlement of future
compensated absences; and

(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated
absences, when the absences occur.

Other Long-term employee benefits

The employees of the Brookfield India REIT are
entitled to other long term benefit by way of
accumulating compensated absences. Cost of long-
term benefit by way of accumulating compensated
absences arising during the tenure of the service

is calculated taking into account the pattern of
availment of leave. Compensated absences which
are not expected to occur within twelve months after
the end of the period in which the employee renders
the related service are recognised as a liability at the

p)

(0

(i)

present value of the defined benefit obligation based
on actuarial valuations as at the balance sheet date
by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit
Credit method. Actuarial gains and losses relating to
long-term employee benefits are recognised in the
statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
they arise.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred
tax. Itis recognized in Statement of profit and

loss except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive
income, in which case it is recognized in equity or in
other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or
receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable
in respect of previous years. The amount of current
tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount
expected to be paid or received after considering
the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is
measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise
the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) under the provisions
of the Income Tax, 1961 is recognised as current tax
in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of profit
and loss. The credit available under the Act in respect
of MAT paid is recognised as a deferred tax asset only
when and to the extent there is convincing evidence
that the Brookfield India REIT will pay normal income
tax during the period for which MAT credit can be
carried forward for set-off against normal tax liability.
MAT credit recognised as an asset is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and written down to the extent
the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried
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forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is
not recognised for:

= Temporary differences arising on the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and that affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss at the time of the transaction;

= Temporary differences related to investments in
subsidiaries, associates, and joint arrangements
to the extent that the Brookfield India REIT is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that
they will not reverse in the foreseeable future;
and

= Taxable temporary differences arising on initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to

the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be
used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong
evidence that future taxable profit may not be
available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent
losses, Brookfield India REIT recognises a deferred
tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient
taxable temporary differences or there is convincing
other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be
available against which such deferred tax asset can
be realised. Deferred tax assets—unrecognised or
recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date
and are recognised/reduced to the extent that it

is probable/no longer probable respectively that
the related tax benefit will be realised. Further,

no deferred tax asset/liabilities are recognized in
respect of temporary differences that reverse within
tax holiday period.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Brookfield India REIT expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
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assets and liabilities, and they relate to income taxes
levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend

to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised
simultaneously.

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized when the Brookfield

India REIT has a present obligation as a result of

past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, in respect of which
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Brookfield India REIT or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is

not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability
also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a
liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot
be measured reliably. The Brookfield India REIT does
not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized
when the expected benefits to be derived by

the Company from a contract are lower than the
unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations
under the contract.

Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker.

Identification of segments:

In accordance with Ind AS 108- Operating Segment,
the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of information
reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(‘'CODM’) to allocate resources to the segments and
assess their performance. An operating segment

is a component of the Brookfield India REIT that
engages in business activities from which it earns
revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues
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and expenses that relate to transactions with any of
the Brookfield India REIT's other components.

Based on an analysis of Brookfield India REIT's

structure and powers conferred to the Manager to V)
Brookfield India REIT, the Governing Board of the

Manager (Brookprop Management Services Private

Limited) has been identified as the Chief Operating
Decision Maker ((CODM’), since they are empowered

for all major decisions w.r.t. the management,
administration, investment, disinvestment, etc.

As the Brookfield India REIT is primarily engaged
in the business of developing and maintaining
commercial real estate properties in India, CODM
reviews the entire business as a single operating
segment and accordingly disclosure requirements
of Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments” in respect of
reportable segments are not applicable.

s) Subsequent events
The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
are prepared after reflecting adjusting and non-
adjusting events that occur after the reporting period
but before the Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements are authorized for issue.

t) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand and short-term money market deposits
with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

u) Earnings per unit
Basic earnings per unit are calculated by dividing the
net profit / (loss) for the period attributable to unit
holders of the Brookfield India REIT by the weighted
average number of units outstanding during the
period. w)

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per
unit, the profit or loss for the period attributable
to unit holders of the Brookfield India REIT and the
weighted average number of units outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential units.

Dilutive potential units are deemed converted as of

the beginning of the reporting date, unless they have
been issued at a later date. In computing diluted

298

earnings per unit, only potential equity units that are
dilutive and which either reduces earnings per unit or
increase loss per units are included.

Business Combination/Asset Acquisition

The amendment to Ind AS 103 Business
Combinations clarifies that while businesses usually
have outputs, outputs are not required for an
integrated set of activities and assets to qualify

as a business. To be considered a business an
acquired set of activities and assets must include,
ata minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to
Create outputs.

The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of replacing any
missing inputs or processes and continuing to
produce outputs. The amendments also introduce
additional guidance that helps to determine whether
a substantive process has been acquired.

The amendments introduce an optional
concentration test that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business. Under the optional
concentration test, the acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business if substantially all of the fair
value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in
a single identifiable asset or group of similar assets.

Brookfield India REIT has opted to apply optional
concentration test in respect of acquisition of SPVs.
Refer Note 42 of the financial statements for details.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and balance sheet respectively.

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash
flows

Condensed Consolidated Cash flows are reported
using the indirect method, whereby Profit/ (loss)
before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions
of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals
of past or future cash receipts or payments. The
cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Group are segregated. For the
purpose of the Condensed Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and short-term deposits.
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x) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount presented in the Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheet when, and only when,
the Group currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle
them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

y) Cash distribution to Unitholders
The Brookfield India REIT recognizes a liability to
make cash distributions to Unitholders when the
distribution is authorized and a legal obligation
has been created. As per the REIT Regulations, a
distribution is authorized when it is approved by the
Board of Directors of the Manager. A corresponding
amount is recognized directly in equity.

HALF YEARLY REPORT 2023-24

2)

Income support

The income support that is an integral part of an
acquisition transaction is treated as deduction in the
acquisition cost of such investment property. Where
the right to receive the income support is spread
over a period of time, the right to receive the income
support is recognized as a financial asset at fair value
and subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss.
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NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHER

As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(Unsecured and considered good)
Security deposits* 861.25 860.02
Deposits with Banks** 4.93 2.61
Interest accrued but not due on deposits with banks 0.08 0.10
To related parties (refer note 41)
Derivative Assets*** 283.50 260.25
1,149.76 1,122.98
*For balance to related parties, refer note 41
**These deposits are of restricted use being lien against debt service reserve account, bank guarantees given to various
authorities and given as security for sales tax registration.
*** Refer note 37 for fair value
DEFERRED TAX ASSET (NET)
As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Deferred tax asset (net) 4,391.56 4,621.86
4,391.56 4,621.86

The Group has recognized deferred tax asset of ¥ 6,046.88 million (31 March 2024: % 5,536.90 million) on unabsorbed
depreciation & business losses and % 1,197.83 million (31 March 2024:% 1,197.83 million) on MAT credit entitlement, considering
the deferred tax liability on existing taxable temporary differences in respective SPVs that will reverse in the future and estimated
taxable income for future years. The amount of deferred tax assets considered realizable, however, could reduce in the near term

if estimates of future taxable income during the carry-forward period are reduced.

NON-CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Advance income tax 2,573.76 2,387.76
2,573.76 2,387.76
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)

(Unsecured and considered good)
Capital advances 40.29 60.19
Lease rent equalization* 471.32 399.60
Prepaid expenses 82.16 110.36
Balance recoverable from government authorities 10.85 6.39
604.62 576.54

*For balance to related parties, refer note 41

BROOKEFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE TRUST

207-339
|

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9

10

1

12

CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - TRADE RECEIVABLES

As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Trade receivables considered good - unsecured* 947.36 73113
Trade receivables - credit impaired 159.67 127.80
Less: loss allowance (159.67) (127.80)
947.36 731.13
*For balance to related parties, refer note 41
CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Balance with banks:*
- incurrent account 231.90 123.04
- indeposit account 4,173.09 3,579.83
4,404.99 3,702.87
*For balance to related parties, refer note 41
CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHER BANK BALANCES
As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Deposits with banks* 1,684.83 1,294.01
1,684.83 1,294.01
*These deposits are of restricted use being lien against debt service reserve account, bank guarantees given to various
authorities and given as security for sales tax registration. For related parties refer note 41
CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS
As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
To parties other than related parties
(Unsecured and considered doubtful)
Advances to vendors - 3.41
Less: loss allowance - (3.41)
Loans receivables - credit impaired - 3.41
Less: loss allowance - (3.47)
HALF YEARLY REPORT 2023-24 305
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CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHER

As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(Unsecured and considered good)
To parties other than related parties
Security deposits 0.01 0.01
Interest accrued but not due on deposits with banks* 22.52 22.37
Other receivables 163.88 83.12
To related parties (refer note 41)
Other receivables 7.74 0.01
Finance receivables # 284.38 936.01
478.53 1,041.52

*For related parties balance, refer note 41

# Finance receivables represents income support guarantee received from a related party in respect of tenancy level of

investment properties of Candor Gurgaon 1, where the right to receive the income support is spread over a period of time

starting from 01 July 2023 and ending on 30 June 2025 for Candor Gurgaon 1. The income support guarantee is recognized as a

financial asset at fair value through profit and loss.

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(Unsecured and considered good)
Advances to vendors 142.19 80.79
Prepaid expenses* 137.89 105.40
Balance recoverable from government authorities 169.20 212.46
Lease rent equalization* 333.86 262.22
783.14 660.87
* For related parties balance, refer note 41
UNIT CAPITAL
Particulars No. of Units Amount
As at 01 April 2023 335,087,073 86,556.65
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2023 - (891.33)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2023 - (861.30)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2023 - (939.64)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 December 2023 - (1,088.93)
Add: Units issued during the period (refer note c) 103,998,149 27,053.59
Less: Issue expenses (refer note a (i) - (727.61)
Closing balance as at 31 March 2024 439,085,222 109,101.43
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2024 - (1,102.10)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2024 - (1,022.43)
Add: Units issued during the period (refer note c) 40,930,000 12,279.00
Less: Issue expenses (refer note a (iii)) - (2.02)
Closing balance as at 30 September 2024 480,015,222 119,253.88

BROOKEFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE TRUST

- OUR INVESTOR RELATIONS

N STATUTORY DISCLOSURE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(a) Terms/ rights attached to Units and accounting thereof

(i)

(i)

(iif)

The Trust has only one class of Units. Each Unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in the Trust.
Each holder of Unit is entitled to one vote per unit. The Unitholders have the right to receive at least 90%
of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust at least once in every six months in each financial year in
accordance with the REIT Regulations. The Board of Directors of the Manager approves distributions. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of Units held by the Unitholders. The Trust declares and
pays distributions in Indian Rupees.

Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, Brookfield India REIT is required to distribute to Unitholders
not less than 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of Brookfield India REIT for each financial year.
Accordingly, a portion of the Unit Capital contains a contractual obligation of the Brookfield India REIT

to pay to its Unitholders cash distributions. Hence, the Unit Capital is a compound financial instrument
which contain both equity and liability components in accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments:
Presentation. However, in accordance with SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43
dated 15 May 2024 issued under the REIT Regulations, the Unit Capital has been presented as "Equity”

in order to comply with the requirements of Section H of Chapter 3 to the SEBI Master Circular dealing
with the minimum presentation and disclosure requirements for key financial statements. Consistent
with Unit Capital being classified as equity, the distributions to Unitholders is also presented in Statement
of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity when the distributions are approved by the Board of Directors of
Investment Manager.

Brookfield India REIT acquired controlling stake in Candor Gurgaon 1 and Kairos by acquiring 50% equity
interest from certain members of the Sponsor Group. The purchase consideration for acquiring 50% stake
in Candor Gurgaon 1 was discharged by paying cash of ¥ 4,533.04 million. The purchase consideration

for acquiring 50% stake in Kairos was discharged by paying cash of ¥ 8,277.71 million and by allotting
12,696,800 number of Units at ¥ 315.04 per Unit, as per the table below.

On 21 June 2024, the Trust has alloted 40,930,000 Units at ¥ 300 per Unit to Bharti Sellers (refer note 1) on
prefrential allotment basis towards consideration for acquisition of 50% share capital of Rostrum.

Number of Units allotted for consideration other than cash
Name of SPV Sponsor Other than Sponsor

Sponsor Group and Sponsor Group Total
As at 31 March 2024
Candor Kolkata 54,117,888 16,364 - 54,134,252
Festus - 31,474,412 - 31,474,412
SPPL Noida - 41,483,012 - 41,483,012
ClopP - 800,727 - 800,727
SDPL Noida - 15,463,616 - 15,463,616
Kairos - 12,696,800 - 12,696,800
During the period ended
30 September 2024:
Rostrum - Joint Venture (refer note 1: - - 40,930,000 40,930,000
Trust Information)
Total number of Units issued 54,117,888 101,934,931 40,930,000 196,982,819

Expenses incurred pertaining to new issuance of units (Institutional placement and Preferential allotment)
have been reduced from the Unitholders capital in accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

(b) Unitholders holding more than 5 percent Units in the Trust

Name of Unitholders

As at 30 September 2024
No. of Units % of holdings

As at 31 March 2024
No. of Units % of holdings

BSREP India Office Holdings V Pte. Ltd. 54,117,888 11.27% 54,117,888 12.33%
BSREP India Office Holdings Pte Ltd. 41,499,453 8.65% 41,499,453 9.45%
BSREP India Office Holdings Il Pte. Ltd. 36,727,398 7.65% 36,727,398 8.36%
BSREP Il India Office Holdings Il Pte. Ltd. 31,474,412 6.56% 31,474,412 7.17%
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(c) The Trust has not allotted any fully paid-up units by way of bonus units nor has it bought back any class of units
from the date of registration till the balance sheet date. The Trust had issued an aggregate of 180,083,417 Units

for consideration other than cash from the date of incorporation till 31 March 2023.

On 02 August 2023, 91,301,349 units have been issued at ¥ 252.50 per unit via institutional placement to
arrange the funds for acquisition of 50% stake in Candor Gurgaon 1 and Kairos, these units got listed on NSE
and BSE on 3 August 2023. Further, on 28 August 2023, the Trust has alloted 12,696,800 Units at ¥ 315.04 per
Unit to Project Diamond Holdings (DIFC) Limited on prefrential allotment basis towards part consideration for
acquisition of 50% stake in Kairos, which got listed on NSE and BSE on 31 August 2023.

On 21 June 2024, the Trust has alloted 40,930,000 Units at ¥ 300 per Unit to Bharti Sellers (refer note 1) on
prefrential allotment basis towards consideration for acquisition of 50% share capital of Rostrum, these units
got listed on NSE and BSE on 25 June 2024.

(d) Unitholding of sponsor group

As at 31 March 2024 % Change during
Name of Unitholders No. of % of No. of % of thesze:‘leor:;:rd;:
Units holdings Units holdings P 2024

BSREP India Office Holdings V Pte. Ltd. 54,117,888 11.27% 54,117,888 12.33%
BSREP India Office Holdings Pte Ltd. 41,499,453 8.65% 41,499,453 9.45% -0.81%
BSREP India Office Holdings Ill Pte. Ltd. 36,727,398 7.65% 36,727,398 8.36% -0.71%
BSREP Il India Office Holdings Il Pte. Ltd. 31,474,412 6.56% 31,474,412 7.17% -0.61%
BSREP India Office Holdings IV Pte. Ltd. 15,463,616 3.22%  15463,616 3.52% -0.30%
BSREP India Office Holdings VI Pte. Ltd. 800,650 0.17% 800,650 0.18% -0.02%
Project Diamond Holdings (DIFC) Limited 12,696,800 2.65% 12,696,800 2.89% -0.25%

16 OTHER EQUITY*

September 30, 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)

As at As at

March 31, 2024

Retained earnings attributable to unit holders of Brookfield India REIT (7,828.85) (6,543.00)
Non- controlling interests** 19,847.01 20,055.00
12,018.16 13,512.00

*Refer Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity for detailed movement in other equity balances.

** Refer note 1

Retained earnings

The cumulative gain or loss arising from the operations which is retained by the Brookfield India REIT is recognized
and accumulated under the heading of retained earnings. At the end of the period, the profit/(loss) after tax is

transferred from the Statement of Profit and Loss to the retained earnings account.
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17 NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS#

As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Secured

Term loan from banks/financial institutions* 103,146.28 100,644.35

Less:- Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 21) (727.54) (935.41)

Unsecured loan

From related parties (refer note 41)

Liability component of compound financial instrument ** 193.03 212.90
12.50% Non convertible debentures 8,207.00 8,430.00
14% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures*** 3,487.91 3,497.26
Total Borrowings 114,306.68 111,849.10

*For balance to related parties, refer note 41
**15% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures holders issued by Candor Gurgaon 1
***14% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures issued by Kairos
#Refer note 23 for accrued interest
18 NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - OTHERS
As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)

From parties other than related parties

Security deposit from lessee 4,227.72 3,072.27

Retention money 14.66 12.24

From related party (refer note 41)

Security deposit from lessee 74.76 -

4,317.14 3,084.51
19 PROVISIONS

As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(CLEDT L)) (Audited)
Provision for gratuity 17.29 32.94
17.29 32.94

20 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)

Deferred income 863.43 531.30
Contract liability* 779.66 644.07

1,643.09 1,175.37

*Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited (“K1") entered into a Joint Development Agreement (“JDA") with Gurgaon
Infospace Limited (“GIL"). As per the terms of the said JDA, GIL had to pay % 1,000 million in various tranches between January
2021 to October 2023 for the development/construction of building to be used for commercial and retail purposes on certain
land parcels, the title of which is in the name of K1. Under the JDA, K1 will be entitled to 72% of the gross sale receipts and
deposits from the tenants arising out of the lease of the developed areas and GIL will be entitled to receive balance 28%.
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23 CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES- OTHERS

As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
From other than related parties
Current maturities of long-term borrowings
Secured
Term loan from banks/financial institutions 727.54 935.41
Flexi term loan 1,487.69 -
Unsecured
Commercial papers® 4,966.04 7,284.87
7,181.27 8,220.28

*0On 17 August 2023, Brookfield India REIT has issued and allotted 15,000 commercial papers at a face value of % 5,00,000 each
aggregating to ¥ 7,500.00 million, at 7.93% p.a.. The discounted amount raised by Brookfield India REIT through these commercial
papers was % 6,948.95 million and the value payable on maturity is ¥ 7,500.00 million. Discount on Commercial papers is
amortized over the tenor of the underlying instrument. These commercial papers are listed on BSE on 18 August 2023 and have
matured on 16 August 2024.

*0On 29 April 2024, Brookfield India REIT has issued and allotted 4,000 commercial papers at a face value of ¥ 5,00,000 each
aggregating to ¥ 2,000.00 million, at 7.90% p.a.. The discounted amount raised by Brookfield India REIT through these commercial
papers is % 1,870.83 million and the value payable on maturity is ¥ 2,000.00 million. Discount on Commercial papers is amortized
over the tenor of the underlying instrument. These commercial papers are listed on BSE on 30 April 2024 and would mature on
14 March 2025.

*0On 16 August 2024, Brookfield India REIT has issued and allotted 9,600 commercial papers at a face value of ¥ 5,00,000 each at
7.60% p.a., aggregating to ¥ 4,800.00 million. The discounted amount raised by Brookfield India REIT through these commercial
papers is % 4,762.32 million and the value payable on maturity is ¥ 4,800 million. Discount on Commercial papers is amortized
over the tenor of the underlying instrument. These commercial papers are listed on BSE on 19 August 2024. These commercial
papers became due for payment on 23 September 2024 and have been duly matured on the even date.

*0On 16 August 2024, Brookfield India REIT has issued and allotted 6,500 commercial papers at a face value of ¥ 5,00,000 each at
8.03% p.a., aggregating to ¥ 3,250.00 million. The discounted amount raised by Brookfield India REIT through these commercial
papers is % 3,009.65 million and the value payable on maturity is % 3,250.00 million. Discount on Commercial papers is amortized
over the tenor of the underlying instrument. These commercial papers are listed on BSE on 19 August 2024 and would mature on
14 August 2025.

#Refer note 23 for accrued interest

22 CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - TRADE PAYABLES

As at As at

30 September 2024 31 March 2024

(Unaudited) (Audited)

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 191.47 140.08

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 1,162.43 902.38
enterprises*

1,353.90 1,042.46

*For balance payable to related parties, refer note 41

BROOKEFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE TRUST

As at As at

30 September 2024 31 March 2024

(Unaudited) (Audited)

Interest accrued but not due on unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures 102.89 -
Interest accrued but not due on unsecured non convertible debentures 219.78 -
Interest accrued and not due on borrowings 60.03 23.99
Security deposit from lessee* 5,471.73 6,001.10
Retention money 112.44 143.29
Capital creditors 422.61 409.71
Employee related payables 24.59 15.72
Other payables* 71.31 110.44
Contingent consideration** 90.11 86.77
6,575.49 6,791.02

*For balance to related parties, refer note 41

** Fair value of part consideration, payable to the earlier shareholders of Candor Gurgaon 1 and Kairos, payable upon fulfilment

of certain conditions as per Share Purchase Agreements (refer note 41 for related party).

24 PROVISIONS

As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Provision for gratuity 0.82 0.36
Provision for compensated absences 6.51 11.08
7.33 11.44
25 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Statutory dues payable 354.71 256.32
Deferred income* 395.04 351.01
Other payables 1.33 8.84
751.08 616.17

*For balance to related parties, refer note 41

26 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
As at As at
30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(CLEDT L)) (Audited)
Provision for income tax 119.51 120.93
119.51 120.93
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35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES Other commitments
As at As at Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited (formerly known as “Candor Gurgaon Two Developers &
Particulars 30 September 2024 31 March 2024 Projects Private Limited”; now amalgamated in Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited w.e.f. 01 April
(Unaudited) (Audited)

2017) has an agreement with Gurgaon Infospace Limited (GIL). The title to the land is held by Gurgaon Infospace

(CRIZ\freannaoggqsggsw(?rOUp not acknowledged as debt in respect of Income-Tax matters 1,008.50 1014.74 Limited, a third party and is not affiliated to the Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited. Candor
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt in respect of Indirect tax {VAT/ 979 3996 Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited has developmental rights with respect to the property pursuant to a
Work contract/Service tax/GST} (Refer note 2 below) Joint Development Agreement (JDA) with GIL entered on 16 November 2006 as amended from time to time. Under
Grand Total 1,018.29 1,054.70 the said agreement Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited is entitled to 72% of the gross sale
receipts and deposits from the tenants arising out of the lease of the developed areas and GIL is entitled to receive
Note 1 balance 28%.
30 SEPtembergf,za: 31 March%;ﬁ In supplement to earlier JDA, a new co-development agreement was entered into between GIL (the developer) and
(Unaudited) (Audited) Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited (the co-developer) on 17 September 2007 as amended from
Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited 643.46 643.46 time to time under which the developer and co-developer will jointly carry out the process of installation of fit-outs
Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited 1.86 1.86 & fixtures and the cost of such installation shall be shared by the developer and co-developer in the same ratio as to
Seaview Developers Private Limited 154.16 155.12 sharing of gross proceeds i.e. 28% and 72% respectively. This agreement is accounted as joint operations as per Ind
Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited 209.02 21430 AS 111
Total 1,008.50 1,014.74

Contingent liabilities as at 30 September 2024 includes penalty amounting to ¥ 740.60 million (31 March 2024 : 37 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT

¥ 740.60 million) in relation to disallowance of settlement fees paid in earlier years for termination of contract. Other i) Financial instruments by category and fair value
contingencies include ¥ 267.90 million (31 March 2024 : ¥ 274.14 million) relating to other disallowances under the The below table summarizes the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial
Income Tax Act, 1961. instruments that are measured at amortized cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial

, . . . . statements. There are no financial instruments, which are subsequently measured at fair value.
The tax officer has set-off certain tax refund claimed in Income tax returns against these demands. q Y

Carrying value Fair value

Note 2 As at As at As at As at
CLRYTIE G 31 March 2024 EEELEYTIEIGIIE 31 March 2024
30 Septembergilza: 31 Marchg?);: .2024 (Audited) .2024 (Audited)
(Unaudited) (Audited) ' (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited * 3.52 17.99 ;:_tAmo.rtlzed Cost
- - — inancial assets
seaview Developers Private Limited 1458 168 Trade receivables# 947.36 73113 947.36 73113
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited 2.08 2.08 Cash and cash equivalents# 4,404.99 3,702.87 4,404.99 3,702.87
Kairos Properties Private Limited 2,51 18.21 Other bank balances# 1,684.83 1,294.01 1,684.83 1,294.01
Total 9.79 39.96 Other financial assets# 1,060.41 968.24 1,060.41 968.24
At FVTPL
* The entity has given a bank guarantee of ¥ 1.05 million (31 March 2024: % 1.05 million) to Member Secretary UP Pollution Control Financial Assets
Board. Other financial Assets” 567.88 1,196.26 567.88 1,196.26
Total financial assets 8,665.47 7,892.51 8,665.47 7,892.51
36. COMMITMENTS At Amortized Cost
Financial liabilities
particulars 30 Septembergzza: 31 Marchgi)’:: Liability component of compound financial 193.03 212.90 221.65 226.70
e (huded) T 50% Non corvertible debantures™ 8,207.00 8,430.00 8,727.47 8,968.30
, ‘ .50% verti u ,207. /430. ,727. ,968.
Capital commitments (net of advances) 20089 1.065.25 14% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures*** 3,487.91 3,497.26 3,772.95 3,609.15
The SPV wise details of capital commitments are as follows: Borrowings# 109,600.00 107,929.21 109,600.00 107,929.21
Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited 804.62 882.98 Trade payables# 1,353.91 1,042.46 1,353.91 1,042.46
Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited 18.34 50.01 Other financial liabilities# 10892.63 9,875.52 10892.63 9,875.52
Festus Properties Private Limited 4.88 27.40 Total financial liabilities 133,734.48 130,987.35 134,568.61 131,651.34
Seaview Developers Private Limited 3.09 3.41 ) ] ) ] o } ) ) )
Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited 10.50 2751 # fair va.\ue of financial assets.and financial Ma@htles which are recggm;ed at amortized cost has been disclosed to be same
Kairos Properties Private Limited 5946 7894 as carrying value as the carrying value approximately equals to their fair value.
900.89 1,065.25 A Fair value of Receivable for income support is determined on the basis of present value of expected future cash flows.

These are classified as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs. The key input for
determining the same is discount rate.
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A The fair value of derivative assets (component of 14% compulsorily convertible debentures) is determined on the basis iv) Sensitivity analysis of Level 3 fair values
of monte carlo simulation method. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of For the fair value of receivable for income support, reasonably possible changes at the reporting date due to
unobservable inputs. one of the significant unobservable inputs, holding other inputs constant, would have following effects:

* The fair value of the liability component of compound financial instruments, which are recognized at amortized cost, has Profit/ (Loss)

Increase Decrease

30 September 2024
been calculated at the present value of the future cash flows discounted at the current borrowing rate. They are classified as P

level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs. - - - - -
Financial assets measured at fair value (Receivable for income support)

** Fair value of 12.50% Non convertible debentures which are recognized at amortized cost, has been calculated at the Discount rate (1% movement) (0.65) 0.65
present value of the future cash flows discounted at the current borrowing rate.

Financial assets measured at fair value (Derivative asset relating to

*** Fair value of 14% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures which are recognized at amortized cost, has been calculated on compulsorily convertible debentures)

the basis of Net assets value (NAV) method. Volatility (1.5% movement) 49.10 (48.90)
Unadjusted equity value (10% movement) 47.30 (41.30)
ii) Measurement of fair values -
. . ' ) Profit/ (Loss)
The different levels of fair value have been defined below: 31 March 2024
Increase Decrease
Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices for instance listed Financial assets measured at fair value (Receivable for income support)
equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. Discount rate (1% movement) (4.18) 418
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded Financial assets measured at fair value (Derivative asset relating to 14%
L } : ) . ) ! - compulsorily convertible debentures)
bonds, over-the counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of Vol o . .
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs ° at\.lty(1.5 ° movement) . 6.30 (45.60)
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. Unadjusted equity value (10% movement) 43.50 (37.50)
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is e .
. A v) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values
included in level 3.
. ' a) Fair Value relating to receivable for income support Amount
T:e;e.hav|e beheﬁ no pa\t;atm;n undgrdLevzl Tdand Level Z.bThere has t()jeen no t[jandsfers mtohor out of Level 3 of Balance as at 1 April 2023 517.23
the fair value hierarchy for the period ended 30 September 2024 and year ended 31 March 2024. Add: Addition (Candor Gurgaon 1) 1847.79
Brookfield India REIT policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at Income support assets realised (1,562.01)
the end of the reporting period. Net change in fair value - unrealised (refer note 28) 133.00
Balance as at 31 March 2024 936.01
iii) Details of significant unobservable inputs Income support assets realised (695.04)
- . Inter-relationship between significant unobservable Net change in fair value - unrealised (refer note 28) 43.41
Significant unobservable inputs . .
inputs and fair value Balance as at 30 September 2024 284.38
Financial assets measured at fair value (Receivable for income support)
Discount rate (30 September 2024- 11.75% ; 31 March The estimated fair value would decrease (increase) if discount b) Fair Value relating to derivative asset (14% compulsorily convertible debentures)
2024-11.75%) rate is higher (lower) Balance as at 28 August 2023 (acquisiton date of Kairos) 214.60
Financial assets measured at fair value (Derivative asset relating to compulsorily convertible debentures) Net change in fair value - unrealised (refer note 33) 45.65
Volatility rate The estimated fair value would increase/ (decrease) if the Balance as at 31 March 2024 260.25
volatility rate is higher/ (lower) Net change in fair value - unrealised 23.25
Unadjusted equity value The estimated fair value would increase/ (decrease) if the Balance as at 30 September 2024 283.50

unadjusted equity value is (lower)/ higher
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40 MANAGEMENT FEE

Property Management Fees

In terms of the REIT Regulations, the manager of the REIT is required to undertake management of the assets of the
REIT, either directly or through the appointment and supervision of appropriate agents. Therefore, pursuant to an
internal restructuring of the Investment manager, the property management services previously undertaken by the
Investment manager are now to be undertaken by the Brookprop Property Management Services Private Limited
(Service Provider) w.e.f. 1T April 2023 (Restructured Amended and Restated Service Agreement), and accordingly the
Amended and Restated Service Agreement, dated December 1, 2020 and the Amended Agreement dated February
11,2022, between the Investment manager and the CIOP (together the ""Original CIOP PMF Agreement””) is being
terminated by way of entering into a termination deed of even date.

Further, REIT has acquired stake in Kairos w.e.f. 29 August 2023 and new property management agreement has
been signed between CIOP and Kairos dated 18 May 2023 which is effective from Acquisition Date. Hence pursuant
to the Restructured Amended and Restated Service Agreement dated 01 April 2023 and acquisition of Kairos,
Service Provider is entitled to a yearly fees @ 3% of the income from operating lease rentals as recorded in the
books of accounts of SPPL Noida, Candor Kolkata, SDPL Noida and Kairos (w.e.f. Acquisition Date), payable on a
monthly basis, exclusive of applicable taxes. The fees has been determined for providing real estate operating
services to CIOP in relation to the Operational Services rendered by it with respect to SPPL Noida, Candor

Kolkata, SDPL Noida and Kairos. The said Management fees for the quarter and half year ended 30 September
2024 amounts to ¥ 90.91 million and ¥ 177.69 million respectively. There are no changes during the period in the
methodology for computation of fees paid to the service provider.

Also in light of the abovementioned internal restructuring of the Investment Manager, the property management
services previously undertaken by the Investment manager are now to be undertaken by the Brookprop Property
Management Services Private Limited (Service Provider) w.e.f. T April 2023 (Restructured Amended and Restated
Service Agreement), and accordingly the Amended and Restated Service Agreement, dated December 1, 2020
between the Investment manager and the Festus (together the “"Original Festus PMF Agreement””) is being
terminated by way of entering into a termination deed of even date.

Pursuant to this Festus Restructured Service Agreement dated 01 April 2023, Service Provider is entitled to a yearly
fee of 3% of the income from operating lease rentals as recorded in the books of accounts of Festus, payable on

a monthly basis, exclusive of applicable taxes. The fees has been determined for providing real estate operating
services to Festus in relation to the management and operation of the Kensington and any other properties
developed by Festus from time to time (“Festus Properties”). The said Management fees for the quarter and half
year ended 30 September 2024 amounts to ¥ 15.66 million and ¥ 31.50 million respectively. There are no changes
during the period in the methodology for computation of fees paid to the Service Provider.

Also, REIT has acquired stake in Candor Gurgaon 1 w.e.f. 19 August 2023 and new property management agreement
has been signed between MIOP and Candor Gurgaon 1 dated 18 May 2023 which is effective from Acquisition

Date. Hence, effective from Acquisition Date, the Service Provider is entitled to a yearly fees @ 3% of the income
from operating lease rentals as recorded in the books of accounts of Candor Gurgaon 1, payable on a monthly
basis, exclusive of applicable taxes. The fees has been determined for providing real estate operating services to
Mountainstar India Office Parks Private Limited in relation to the Operational Services rendered by it with respect
to Candor Gurgaon 1. The said Management fees for the quarter and half year ended 30 September 2024 amounts
to ¥ 49.21 million and ¥ 94.10 million respectively. There are no changes during the period in the methodology for
computation of fees paid to the Service Provider.

REIT Management Fees

Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 17 July 2020, Investment Manager is entitled to fees

@ 1% of NDCF, exclusive of applicable taxes (also refer note 45). The fees has been determined for undertaking
management of Trust and its investments. The said Management fees for the quarter and half year ended 30
September 2024 amounts to ¥ 27.49 million and ¥ 52.25 million respectively. There are no changes during the period
in the methodology for computation of fees paid to the Investment Manager.
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41 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

A. Related parties to Brookfield India REIT as at 30 September 2024
BSREP India Office Holdings V Pte. Ltd. - Sponsor
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited - Investment Manager or Manager
Axis Trustee Services Limited - Trustee

The Ultimate parent entity, sponsor groups and fellow subsidiaries, with whom the group
has related party transactions during the period, consist of the below entities:

Ultimate parent entity
Brookfield Corporation (Formerly known as Brookfield Asset Management Inc.) - ultimate parent entity and
controlling party

Sponsor
BSREP India Office Holdings V Pte. Ltd. - Sponsor

Sponsor group

a) BSREP Il India Office Holdings Il Pte. Ltd. (BSREP Il India)

b) Kairos Properties Private Limited (Formerly known as Kairos Property Managers Private Limited) (Kairos)
(till 07 September 2022)

) BSREP Moon C1 L.P (till 07 September 2022)

d) BSREP Moon C2 L.P (till 07 September 2022)

e) BSREP India Office Holdings Il Pte Ltd. (BSREP India Office Ill)

f)  BSREP India Office Holdings Pte. Ltd. (BSREP India Holdings)

g)  BSREP India Office Holdings IV Pte. Ltd. (BSREP India Office IV)

h)  BSREP India Office Holdings VI Pte. Ltd. (BSREP India Office VI)

i) Project Diamond Holdings (DIFC) Limited (Project Diamond)

Fellow subsidiaries
a) Mountainstar India Office Parks Private Limited
) Striton Properties Private Limited

Witwicky One Private Limited

@ e)

)
d) Brookfield HRS TS LLC
e) Brookprop Property Management Services Private Limited
f)  Aerobode One Private Limited
g)  Cowrks India Private limited
h)  Parthos Properties Private Limited
i) Equinox Business Parks Private Limited
j)  Clean Max Enviro Energy Solutions Private Limited
k)  Project Diamond FPI Holdings (DIFC) Limited

=

Project Cotton Holdings One (DIFC) Limited

m) Schloss Chanakya Pvt. Ltd.

n)  Summit Digital Infrastructure Limited

0) Brooksolutions Global Services Private Limited

Associates of Subsidiaries

Reco Cerium Private Limited (w.e.f. 18 August 2023)
Reco Rock Private Limited (w.e.f. 18 August 2023)
Reco Iris Private Limited (w.e.f. 18 August 2023)

Reco Europium Private Limited (w.e.f. 28 August 2023)
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Joint Venture
Rostrum Realty Private Limited (w.e.f 21 June 2024)

Other related parties with whom the transactions have taken place during the quarter/ year
Axis Bank Limited - Promotor of Trustee*
Axis Capital Limited- Fellow subsidiary of Trustee*

*Based on the internal assessment, the Trust has disclosed transactions from previous financial year ended 31 March 2024,
for all the periods presented.

Brookfield India REIT's interests in subsidiaries are set out in note 1"- Organization structure.

Directors & Key personnel of the Investment Manager (Brookprop Management Services Private
Limited)
Directors Key Personnels

Alok Aggarwal - Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director- India  Amit Jain - Chief Financial Officer - India office business
office business (Chief Executive Officer to Chief Executive Officer and ~ (w.e.f. 09 May 2024)

Managing Director w.e.f 12 February 2024) Ankit Gupta- President - India office business (w.e.f. 09
Akila Krishnakumar (Independent Director) May 2024)
Shailesh Vishnubhai Haribhakti (Independent Director) Shantanu Chakraborty- Chief Operating Officer- India

. . : , , office business (w.e.f. 09 May 2024)
Anuj Ranjan (Non-Executive Director) (till 12 February 2024)

Sanjeev Kumar Sharma - Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer - India office business (till 09
Thomas Jan Sucharda (Non-Executive Director) (w.e.f. 30 March 2023) May 2024)

Ankur Gupta (Non-Executive Director)

Rajnish Kumar (Independent Director) (w.e.f. 30 March 2023) Saurabh Jain- Compliance Officer

Key Managerial Personnel of SPV's
- Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited
Subrata Ghosh- Managing Director (till 13 February 2024)

- Festus Properties Private Limited
Lalit Kumar- Company Secretary (till 01 July 2024)

- Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited
Juhi Sen - Company Secretary (w.e.f. 24 April 2023)
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As at As at

Outstanding balances 30 September 2024 31 March 2024

(Unaudited) (Audited)
Trade Payable (net of withholding tax)
- Brookprop Management Services Private Limited 33.28 22.09
- Brookfield HRS TS LLC 7.99 15.93
- Brookprop Property Management Services Private Limited 36.69 32.62
- Schloss Chanakya Pvt. Ltd. = 0.09
- Striton Properties Private Limited 1.31 534
- Clean Max Enviro Energy Solutions Private Limited 0.05 0.08
- Cowrks India Private limited 2.32 -
- Equinox Business Parks Private Limited 0.04 0.08
Total 81.68 76.23
Other Payable (net of withholding tax)
- Brookprop Property Management Services Private Limited 0.34 15.04
- Witwicky One Private Limited = 247
- Mountainstar India Office Parks Private Limited 1.27 1.86
- BSREP India Office Holdings V Pte. Ltd. = 9.51
- Brookfield Corporation (formerly known as Brookfield Asset Management Inc.) 0.08 0.08
Total 1.69 28.96
Prepaid expenses
- Mountainstar India Office Parks Private Limited 0.24 0.94
- Brookprop Property Management Services Private Limited 0.02 1.26
Total 0.26 2.20
Other receivables
- Mountainstar India Office Parks Private Limited 0.01 0.01
- Aerobode One Private Limited 6.40 -
- Striton Properties Private Limited 0.13 -
- Equinox Business Parks Private Limited 0.13 -
- Brookprop Property Management Services Private Limited 1.06 -
Total 7.73 0.01
Lease equalisation reserve
-Brooksolutions Global Services Private Limited 20.57 -
Total 20.57 -
Finance receivables*
- Mountainstar India Office Parks Private Limited 284.38 936.01
Total 284.38 936.01
Deferred Income
- Mountainstar India Office Parks Private Limited 0.48 1.43
Total 0.48 1.43
12.50% Non convertible debentures
- Reco Iris Private Limited 6,980.00 7,076.00
- Reco Rock Private Limited 1,227.00 1,354.00
Total 8,207.00 8,430.00
14% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures
-Reco Europium Private Limited 3,487.91 3,497.26
Total 3,487.91 3,497.26
Derivative Assets
-Reco Europium Private Limited 283.50 260.25
Total 283.50 260.25

BROOKEFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE TRUST

- OUR INVESTOR RELATIONS N STATUTORY DISCLOSURE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(Allamounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As at As at
Outstanding balances 30 September 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)

Security deposit from lessee

-Cowrks India Private limited 36.08 31.37
-Brooksolutions Global Services Private Limited 74.76 -
Total 110.84 31.37
Security Deposit Receivable

- Mountainstar India Office Parks Private Limited 4,57 4,57
Total 4.57 4.57
Liability component of compound financial instrument

- Reco Cerium Private Limited 193.03 212.90
Total 193.03 212.90
Term loans from banks

- Axis Bank Limited 19,510.99 19,453.25
Total 19,510.99 19,453.25
Trade receivable

-Summit Digital Infrastructure Limited - 0.76
-Mountainstar India Office Parks Private Limited 0.02 0.17
-Brooksolutions Global Services Private Limited - 0.15
Total 0.02 1.08
Contingent consideration payable

- Project Diamond Holdings (DIFC) Limited 38.97 37.52
- Project Cotton Holdings One (DIFC) Limited 0.00 0.00
- BSREP India Office Holdings Il Pte. Ltd 51.11 49.22
- BSREP India Office Holdings Pte. Ltd 0.03 0.03
Total 90.11 86.77
Balance with banks (in current account)

- Axis Bank Limited 24.89 46.75
Total 24.89 46.75
Balance with banks (in deposit account)-Cash and cash equivalents

- Axis Bank Limited 1,478.90 2,741.12
Total 1,478.90 2,741.12
Balance with banks (in deposit account)-Other bank balances

- Axis Bank Limited 496.83 177.30
Total 496.83 177.30
Interest accrued but not due on deposits with banks

- Axis Bank Limited 5.06 6.60
Total 5.06 6.60

*Represents income support provided by Mountainstar India Office Parks Private Limited to Candor Gurgaon 1 as part of Income
support agreement starting from quarter ended 30 September 2023 until the quarter ending 30 June 2025.
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42 ASSETS ACQUISITION

(i)  On 18 August 2023, Brookfield India REIT acquired controlling stake by acquiring 50% of the equity interest and
compulsorily convertible debentures of Candor Gurgaon 1 as described in more detail in Note 1 - Organization
structure; for a total consideration of ¥ 8,602.64 million. Brookfield India REIT has also incurred directly
attributable expenses in relation to this asset acquisition, amounting to ¥ 66.87 million, resulting in the total
purchase consideration of ¥ 8,669.51 million (the “Purchase consideration”).

Brookfield India REIT applied the optional concentration test, under Ind AS 103, and concluded that the
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business because substantially all of the fair value of the gross
assets acquired is concentrated in investment properties, with similar risk characteristics. Accordingly, this
transaction has been accounted for as an asset acquisition.

Brookfield India REIT identified and recognized the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed; and allocated the purchase consideration to the individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the
basis of their relative fair values at the date of acquisition.

The allocated value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Candor Gurgaon 1 as at the date of acquisition

were:

Assets Amount (in million)
Property, plant and equipment 58.51
Investment property 42,954.58
Investment property under development 211.74
Other assets 4,741.86
Total Assets (A) 47,966.69
Liabilities

Borrowings (including current maturities of long term borrowings) 28,471.45
Other liabilities 2,460.04
Total Liabilities (B) 30,931.49
Non-Controlling Interest (C) 8,365.69
Net Assets (A-B-C) 8,669.51

(i) On 28 August 2023, Brookfield India REIT acquired controlling stake by acquiring 50% of the equity interest and
compulsorily convertible debentures of Kairos as described in more detail in Note 1 - Organization structure;
for a total consideration % 15,256.85 million (including issue of units of Brookfield India REIT of ¥ 4,000 million).
Brookfield India REIT has also incurred directly attributable expenses in relation to this asset acquisition,
amounting to ¥ 67.91 million, resulting in the total purchase consideration of ¥ 15,324.76 million (the “Purchase
consideration”).

Brookfield India REIT applied the optional concentration test, under Ind AS 103, and concluded that the
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business because substantially all of the fair value of the gross
assets acquired is concentrated in investment properties, with similar risk characteristics. Accordingly, this
transaction has been accounted for as an asset acquisition.

Brookfield India REIT identified and recognized the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed; and allocated the purchase consideration to the individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the
basis of their relative fair values at the date of acquisition.

The allocated value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Kairos as at the date of acquisition were:
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Assets Amount (in million)
Property, plant and equipment 30.54
Investment property 63,699.62
Investment property under development 493.46
Other assets 2,378.32
Total Assets (A) 66,601.94
Liabilities

Borrowings (including current maturities of long term borrowings) 34,063.11
Other liabilities 5250.18
Total Liabilities (B) 39,313.29
Non-Controlling Interest (C) 11,963.89
Net Assets (A-B-C) 15,324.76

ACQUISITION NOTE ON JOINT VENTURE

On 21 June 2024, Brookfield India REIT acquired 50% equity interest in Rostrum Reality Private Limited (Rostrum)
and its subsidiaries for a consideration of ¥ 12,279.00 million settled by issuance of 40,930,000 units to Bharti
Sellers (refer note 1) at a price of ¥ 300 per unit. The remaining 50% equity interest in Rostrum is held by Metallica
Holdings (DIFC) Limited (Dubai), a fellow subsidiary and a related party of Brookfield India REIT. The transaction cost
of ¥ 43.59 million is capitalized along with the cost of acquisition of Rostrum.

The relevant activities of Rostrum require the unanimous consent of both the shareholders, resulting in Rostrum
being accounted as a joint arrangement. Therefore, investment in Rostrum is accounted under equity method from
the date of acquisition as per Ind AS 28-Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

The share of loss of equity method investee from the date of acquisition is ¥ 79.30 million.

A. Details of utilization of Institutional placement (02 August 2023) as on 30 September 2024
are as follows:

Probosed Actual Unutilized

Objects of the issue as per the placement document utilizpation utilization upto amount as at

30 September 2024 30 September 2024

Funding of the consideration for the (i) Downtown Powai 22,000.00 21,896.76 103.24
Acquisition; and/or (ii) G1 Acquisition

General purposes 203.59 206.28 =

Issue expenses 850.00 732.89 114.42

Total 23,053.59 22,835.93 217.66

Note: Amount of ¥ 2.69 million has been used for general corporate purposes from the proposed utilization towards
issue expenses.

B. Details of utilization of proceeds of Commercial Paper (issued on 17 August 2023) as on
30 September 2024 are as follows:

Probosed Actual Unutilized

Objects of the issue as per the letter of offer utilizpation utilization upto amount as at
31 March 2024 31 March 2024

For repayment of debt of Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) of 6,948.95 BERESE )
Brookfield India Real Estate Trust and towards transaction
expenses, capital expenditure and working capital
requirements of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust and its SPVs
Total 6,948.95 6,948.95 -
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C. Details of utilization of proceeds of Commercial Paper (issued on 29 April 2024) as on
30 September 2024 are as follows:

) ) Proposed . Actual Unutilized

Objects of the issue as per the letter of offer utilization utilization upto amount as at
30 September 2024 30 September 2024

For repayment of debt of Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) 1870.83 R e 22411
of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust, towards transaction
expenses, capital expenditure, working capital requirements
and expenses of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust and its
SPVs and for any other general corporate purpose.
Total 1,870.83 1,646.72 224.11

D. Details of utilization of proceeds of Commercial Paper (issued on 19 August 2024) as on
30 September 2024 are as follows:

) ) Proposed . Actual Unutilized

Objects of the issue as per the letter of offer utilization utilization upto amount as at
30 September 2024 30 September 2024

For repayment of debt of Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) 4,762.32 ez B
of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust, towards transaction 3,009. 65 2737.68 27197
expenses, capital expenditure, working capital requirements
and expenses of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust and its
SPVs and for any other general corporate purpose
Total 7,771.97 7,500.00 271.97

DISTRIBUTION POLICY

In terms of the Distribution policy and REIT Regulations, not less than 90% of the NDCFs of our Asset SPVs are
required to be distributed to Brookfield REIT, in proportion of its shareholding in our Asset SPVs, subject to
applicable provisions of the Companies Act. The cash flows receivable by Brookfield REIT may be in the form of
dividends, interest income, principal loan repayment, proceeds of any capital reduction or buyback from our Asset
SPVs/ CIOP, sale proceeds out of disposal of investments of any or assets directly/ indirectly held by Brookfield REIT
or as specifically permitted under the Trust Deed or in such other form as may be permissible under the applicable
laws.

At least 90% of the NDCFs of Brookfield REIT (“REIT Distributions”) shall be declared and made once every quarter
of a Financial Year by our Manager. In accordance with the REIT Regulations, REIT Distributions shall be made within
five working days from the record date. The REIT Distributions, when made, shall be made in Indian Rupees.

The NDCFs shall be calculated in accordance with the REIT Regulations and any circular, notification or guidelines
issued thereunder including the SEBI Guidelines.
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46 IN ACCORDANCE WITH REGULATION 52(4) OF SEBI (LODR) REGULATION, 2015, THE TRUST HAS
DISCLOSED FOLLOWING RATIOS:
For the For the For the For the For the For the For the
quarter quarter quarter half year half year half year
ended ended ended ended ended ended Y&2' ended
Financial Ratios 31 March
30 September 30 June 30 September ENTII01 s 31 March 30 September 2024
2024 2024 2023 2024 2024 2023 .
(ULEDGHETD] (Unaudited) (Unaudited) BROLEDERGL)] (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)
Current ratio (in times) 0.45 0.47 0.51 0.43 0.47 0.43
(refer note a)
Debt-equity ratio (in times) 0.93 0.91 0.94 0.93 0.98 0.94 0.98
(refer note b)
Debt service coverage ratio 0.48 1.06 1.27 0.66 1.27 1.39 0.29
(in times) (refer note c)
Interest service coverage 1.46 1.51 1.46 1.48 1.42 1.59 1.48
ratio (in times) (refer note d)
Outstanding redeemable NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
preference shares
(quantity and value)
Capital redemption NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
reserve/debenture
redemption reserve
Net worth (Amounts in 131,272.03 133,180.13 126,377.09 131,272.03 122,613.43 126,377.09  122,613.43
% million)
Net profit after tax 252.32 393.18 19.58 625.85 211.84 (250.47) (38.63)
(Amounts in ¥ million)
Earnings per unit- Basic 0.69 113 0.05 1.81 0.96 (0.68) 0.59
(Amountsing)
Earnings per unit- Diluted 0.69 113 0.05 1.81 0.96 (0.68) 0.59
(Amountsing)
Long term debt to working (14.26) (11.14) (11.62) (14.26) (11.54) (11.62) (11.54)
capital (refer note e)
Bad debts to Account 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.10 0.00 014
receivable ratio (refer
note f)
Current liability ratio (in 0.12 013 0.14 0.12 013 014 013
times) (refer note g)
Total debts to total assets 0.46 0.45 0.46 0.46 0.47 0.46 0.47
(in times) (refer note h)
Debtors turnover (in times) 23.46 2555 18.30 2774 23.59 17.92 28.56
(refer note i)
Inventory turnover NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
Operating margin (in %) 72% 72% 67% 72% 72% 67% 70%
(refer note j)
Net profit margin (in %) 417% 6.65% 0.47% 5.23% 1.90% -3.39% -0.21%
(refer note k)
Formulae for computation of ratios are as follows basis condensed consolidated financial statements (including non
controlling interest):-
a) Current ratio = Current Assets / Current Liabilities
b) Debt Equity ratio= Total Debt (including lease liability) / Total Equity
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c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio = (Earnings available for debt service) / (Interest expense+Principle repayments
made during the period which excludes bullet and full repayment of external borrowings)

d) Interest Service Coverage Ratio =Earnings available for debt service / Interest expense

e) Longterm debt to working capital= Long term debt (including non current lease liability) / working capital (i.e.
Current assets less current liabilities)

f)  Bad debts to Account receivable ratio = Bad debts (including provision for doubtful debts) / Average trade
receivable

g)  Current Liability Ratio =Current Liability / Total Liability

h) Total debts to Total assets; =Total debts (including lease liability) / Total assets;

i)  Debtors turnover =Revenue from operations (Annualized) / Average trade receivable

j)  Operating margin =(Earning before interest, depreciation and tax - Other income- Interest income) / Revenue
from operations

k)  Net profit margin =Profit after tax / Total Income

Pursuant to National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT") order dated 08 May, 2024, Festus Properties Private Limited
(Festus) has reduced its issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the Company from % 4,646.41 million
consisting of 464.64 million equity shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid, to ¥ 464.64 million consisting of 464.64 million
equity shares of ¥ 1/- each fully paid, by reducing the face value of each share from % 10/- each to % 1/- each fully paid
thereby reducing the equity share capital to the extent of ¥ 4,181.77 million to set off the accumulated losses (i.e.,
debit balance of profit and loss account) of ¥ 4,181.77 million.

Pursuant to National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT") order dated 07 June 2024, Shantiniketan Properties Private
Limited (N1) has reduced its issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the Company from ¥ 1,438.65
million consisting of 143.87 million equity shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid, to ¥ 1,150.92 million consisting of 143.87
million equity shares of ¥ 8/- each fully paid, by reducing the face value of each share from ¥ 10/- each to ¥ 8/- each
fully paid thereby reducing the equity share capital to the extent of ¥ 287.73 million; and utilized ¥ 1,268.94 million
out of the balance available in the securities premium account of N1 to set off the accumulated losses (i.e., debit
balance of profit and loss account) of ¥ 1,556.67 million.

Pursuant to National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT") order dated 07 June 2024, Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech
Structures Private Limited (K1) has utilized % 3,086.20 million out of the balance available in the securities premium
account of the Company to set off the accumulated losses (i.e., debit balance of profit and loss account) of

¥ 3,086.20 million, The said petition has been duly filed with Registrar of Companies on 09 July 2024 thereby making
the Scheme effective from 09 July 2024.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, pursuant to the provisions of Section 123 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, the board of directors of SPPL Noida in its meeting held on 30 October 2024,
recommended and declared an interim dividend of ¥ 0.35 per equity share (4.375%) on the face value of ¥ 8/- per
share aggregating to ¥ 50.35 million for the period ended on 30 September 2024.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, pursuant to the provisions of Section 123 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, the board of directors of CIOP in its meeting held on 30 October 2024, recommended
and declared an interim dividend of ¥ 6000.00 per equity share (60,000%) on the face value of ¥ 10/- per share
aggregating to ¥ 60.00 million for the period ended on 30 September 2024.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, pursuant to the provisions of Section 123 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, the board of directors of Rostrum in its meeting held on 30 October 2024, recommended
and declared an interim dividend of % 6.30 per equity share (63%) on the face value of ¥ 10/- per share aggregating
to ¥ 413.89 million for the period ended on 30 September 2024.
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49 o)

The figures for the quarter ended 30 September 2024 are the derived figures between the unaudited figures in
respect of the half year ended 30 September 2024 and the unaudited published figures for the quarter ended
30 June 2024, which were both subject to limited review by the statutory auditors.

The figures for the half year ended 31 March 2024 are the derived figures between the audited figures in
respectoftheyearended31March2024 andthe unaudited publishedyear-to-datefiguresupto 30 September2023
which were subject to limited review by the statutory auditors.

50 “0.00" Represents value less than % 0.01 million.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT)

Ankur Gupta Alok Aggarwal

Director CEO and Managing Director
DIN No. 08687570 DIN No. 00009964

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024 Date: 06 November 2024

Amit Jain

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 November 2024
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